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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMHRE

(For the year ended 31 December) (BEZ+=A=+—HIFE)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY AEMBRE
RMB’000 AREFTT
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E——F ZE-=F —ETNF —T-HF ZT-R"E
Revenue WA 3,097,511 4,150,509 5,011,426 4,182,049 5,239,564
Gross profit E 749,150 988,400 1,049,024 884,383 1,134,710
Profit before tax R ITl 420,102 626,506 698,913 447 370 626,922
Profit attributable to owners VN/NCIE 2SN
of the Company FEMERF 328,644 490,587 584,269 355,986 501,961
Basic earnings per share (RMB)*  FREARRF (ARE) * 0.519 0.748 0.838 0.509 0.661
Diluted earnings per share (RMB)* SFREERF| (ARE) 0.519 0.733 0.684 0.374 0.659
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,697,359 2,834,179 3,792,168  4,045360 4,788,195
Current assets hEEE 2,366,323 3,466,554 4,416,582 5606612 6,206,336
Non-current liabilities FERBEaE 577,652 1,323,185 2,276903 3,610,834 3,064,308
Current liabilities AR 1,634,118 2,378/436 2,791,255 2,540,015 3,725,973
Net assets BEFE 1,851,912 2,599,112 3,140,592 3,501,123 4,204,250
* The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic and * R ZE T -RFEREAREERT

diluted earnings per share for the years 2012 to 2015 have been adjusted and

restated for the rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every five existing

shares held by shareholders of the Company at the price of HK$2.60 per share.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EEHE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present China Singyes Solar
Technologies Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Benefited from the recovery of the Chinese market and the smooth progress
of the Group’s businesses, the green building, solar and new material
business of the Group have achieved very encouraging results in 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the overall business of the
Group continued to grow rapidly. The revenue was RMB5,239,564,000,
representing a year-on-year increase of 25.3%. Its profit attributable to
shareholders was RMB501,961,000, representing a year-on-year increase
of 41%. The Board recommended the distribution of a final dividend of
HK$0.07 per share.

RENEWABLE ENERGY BUSINESS

As a major business of the Group, the revenue of Renewable energy
business increased by 25.4%, accounting for 61.3% of the total revenue
of the Group, of which EPC revenue increased significantly by 51.6% to
RMB2,225,600,000. The Group continues to maintain its core strengths in
the solar EPC sector and achieve high quality growth in the EPC business
under the continuous support of national policies and the gradual regulations
of the solar industry.

In respect of solar power station investment, the Group adopts the principle
of “centralized distribution and orderly advancement” to implement the
model of continuous development and timely sale. As at 31 December 2016,
the Group has 466 MW photovoltaic power station projects, of which nearly
50% are located in Guangdong Province.

CURTAIN WALLS AND GREEN BUILDING
BUSINESS

The revenue of curtain walls and green building business increased by
25.6% to RMB1,972,400,000. In 2016, the Group completed nearly 30
green building consultancy service projects. The newly established Zhuhai
headquarter R&D Building was awarded the national “Three-star Green
Building Design Logo Certificate” as a demonstration, promotion and
application of green building in subtropical regions.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

In line with the current new requirements of national building energy
efficiency, the Group will focus on and develop the assembly of building,
create intelligent, industrialized green building with high-end curtain wall,
energy-saving windows and doors, renewable energy usage and intelligent
building control system integration.

NEW MATERIAL BUSINESS

The sales revenue of new materials increased by 50.7% to RMB90,887,000.
With the broad market prospects of smart light adjusting glass and projection
system, the Group will focus more on multimedia glass external wall, light-
adjusting projection window and other outdoor multimedia and advertising
sectors.

“ONE BELT ONE ROAD” OVERSEAS MARKET

The Group follows the national “One Belt One Road” policy, obtaining more
opportunities in the overseas market with its rich engineering experience,
significant cost advantage and advanced integration technology. The annual
revenue of overseas business increased 44.4% to RMB399,253,000,
accounting for 20.3% of the total revenue of the curtain walls and green
building business. In addition, the Group obtained the 100 MW solar EPC
project in the Republic of Uzbekistan, with a total contract amount of US$147
million; and is promoting intelligent micro-grid projects in the South Pacific
island countries.

FUTURE PLANS

The Group will actively adapt to the higher building demand accompanied
by social development and technological progress, and actively promote
the application of green building and assembly building with its advantages
accumulated in the green building sector; Fully utilize its own advantages
to expand overseas markets and participate in the establishment of “Made
in China” quality brand. The Group will continue to uphold the concept
of innovation and development; fully adopt the three major capabilities in
market, resource integration and customer service; and adhere to solid
development in four sectors, including green building, green energy, new
materials and photovoltaic agriculture.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

OVERVIEW

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective accountability. This
report outlines the principles and the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors consider that, for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the Code, except
for the deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the Code as described below in the
section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” on page 12.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee in compliance with paragraph C.3
of the Code to oversee the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. It
has also established a nomination committee and a remuneration committee

with defined terms of reference.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance practices
of the Company to ensure formal and transparent procedures are in place to
protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices
adopted and observed by the Company from the listing date up to the date of
this report (the “Review Period”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year.
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TEERRE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
supervising and monitoring the performance of the senior management who
are delegated with the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Company. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including three executive
Directors, namely, Mr. LIU Hongwei, who is also the Chairman of the
Company, Mr. SUN lJilin and Mr. XIE Wen, two non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. LI Huizhong and Mr. CAO Zhirong and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. WANG Ching,
and Mr. CHENG Jinshu.

The Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over half
of the board members are non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made in the
best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
Further details of these committees are set out below on pages 14 to 16.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound board level experience and expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. The Board is comprised of
members with extensive business, government, regulatory and policy
experience from a variety of backgrounds. There is diversity of nationality,
ethnicity, educational background, functional expertise and experience. A
Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc
meetings will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board
meeting. Reasonable notices will also be given to the Directors for ad-hoc
board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of

communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All the
Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for Board meetings.

Prior notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched to the Directors
setting out the matters to be discussed. At the meeting, the Directors were
provided with relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or a Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive
directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is maintained on the
website of the Company and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of 4 Board meetings. The
attendance of individual Directors at the board meetings and annual general
meeting are set out below:
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N\ % =504 FF A=
TRERMS
Board Meetings EFXees

Attendance

HEER

Name of Directors Annual General Meeting Board Meeting
EENS BRERBEXE EEEER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. LIU Hongwei DUATHE S 1/1 4/4
Mr. SUN Jinli reksE 0/1 4/4
Mr. XIE Wen OXkRE 0/1 3/4
Non-executive Directors ERITESE
Mr. LI Huizhong TgREE 0/1 4/4
Mr. CAO Zhirong EELRE 0/1 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIIFHITES
Dr. WANG Ching T =L 1/1 4/4
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SIKEBEE 1/1 4/4
Mr. CHENG Jinshu BEwiiE 0/1 4/4

SKILLS, KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND
ATTRIBUTES OF DIRECTORS

All Directors of the Board had served in office during the period under review.
Every Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their understanding and
commit to high standards of corporate governance. The executive Director
brings his perspectives to the Board through his deep understanding of the
Group’s business. The non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience, understanding
of local and global economies, and knowledge of capital markets to the
Group’s business. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable continuous professional development programmes for all Directors to
hone and refresh their knowledge and skills.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is required
to undertake an induction program to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of his duties and responsibilities. The induction program
includes an overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Board meetings’ procedures, matters reserved to the Board,
an introduction of the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and
duties, relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the Board
and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings with senior
officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors should RIEFANECEAGLE  2REEESHE
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh BEEEI  UBREEFERSEZMZH R
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution to the Board BE o I RBRMSHEEABEImENKE
remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had participated BB THESSELER - TR 2588
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways ESALEAGHACHESEERETY B
of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s HEEAARRARIER RESRAE LBEEI
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. RIEN,SEIEIERE R

The company secretary of the Company maintains records of training ARAE 2 AAMERTESHES I 258k -
attended by the Directors. The training attended by each Director during the RER - FEFHFEEINZBEREINAT
Year is tabulated as follows:

Training Records IR 8k

Name Type of trainings Training matters

34 EalER 3E3IZEIE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(fF&EL) (fzE2)

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. LIU Hongwei (Chairman) BlaT s (/%) a, b i, i, iii, iv

Mr. SUN Jinli R e a, b i, i, dii, iv

Mr. XIE Wen @ XEE a,b i i, il iv

Non-Executive Directors EMITES

Mr. LI Huizhong Te Rt a, b i i, i, iv

Mr. CAO Zhirong BEEEE a, b i i, i, v

Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ JBIIFERITEE

Dr. WANG Ching T gL a,b i, i, i, iv

Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SRR E a,b i, i, il iv

Mr. CHENG Jinshu e bt a, b i, i, ii, iv

Note 1: MIEEL -

a attending seminar or training session a LR g SEIgH

b self-development and updates relating to general economy, business b EBREMEARELE XBBR -ES

development, director’s duties and responsibilities, etc. HBENELES -

Note 2: fsE2 -

i corporate governance i TEER

i regulatory compliance ii JEIREST

ii finance iii g3

iV management and operation iv BEREE



China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Hongwei, the Chairman of the Group, is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, ensuring that all material issues are
decided by the Board in a conducive manner. Mr. Liu Hongwei is also
responsible for running the Group’s business and effective implementation
of the strategies of the Group. The Company is aware of the requirement
under paragraph A.2.1 of the Code that the roles of chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. Nevertheless, the Board considers that the combination of
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company as the Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Group. The Board is of the view that this structure
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership, which can facilitate
the formulation and implementation of its strategies and decisions and enable
it to grasp business opportunities and react to changes efficiently. Moreover,
the Board considers that the sufficient measures have been taken and it will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management. As such, it is beneficial to the business prospects of the Group.
Therefore Mr. Liu Hongwei is performing the roles of both Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company possess a wealth
of professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have played a
significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and
their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they
bring an impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategy, performance and
control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of Shareholders are taken into consideration,
and the interests of the Company and its shareholders are taken into account
in all business decisions. The Company has received the annual confirmation
signed by each independent non-executive Director to acknowledge their
respective independence. After prudent enquiry, the Board is of the view that
each of Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. WANG Ching, and Mr. CHENG Jinshu
maintains the independence as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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All independent non-executive Directors of the Company will review, on an
annual basis, any decisions in relation to new business opportunities referred
to the Company. As at the date of this report, there is no new business
opportunity introduced to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
Throughout 2016, no claim had been made against the Directors and the
officers of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term of three years commencing
13 January 2012, and will be automatically renewed for another three years
upon expiry.

Mr. Cao Zhirong and Li Huizhong, the non-executive Directors of the
Company, had entered into service contracts with the Company for a specific
term of three years from 1 September 2012 and 1 July 2011, respectively.
Their service contracts will be automatically renewed for another three years
upon expiry.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term
of three years from 19 December 2008. Their service contracts will be
automatically renewed for another three years upon expiry.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with Rules 3.21 to
3.23 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting process and
internal control procedure of the Group, to review the financial information
of the Group and to consider issues relating to the external auditor. The
Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Cheng Jinshu,
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2016 and for the year ended 31 December
2016, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the

system of internal control.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee held HE-Z—X"F+-_A=+—HIFE X
2 meetings. ZEERITMAEH -
The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit TREYEZZEEXNELFEEENBR
Committee’s meetings:

No. of Audit Committee

meetings attended/held:
Directors: HEBITEREES
EE: EREREL :
YICK Wing Fat, Simon (Chairman) ZKE(TE) 2/2
WANG Ching Sy 2/2
CHENG Jinshu | 2/2
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its ERLZEQERRACARBITEARE - 1%
duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be viewed on LZE e s B E R AR RA KRR

the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with paragraph B.1 of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy for remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors.
The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, including three
independent non-executive Directors and the Chairman of the Board, namely,
Mr. Cheng Jinshu, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. Wang Ching and Mr. Liu
Hongwei. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Jinshu.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting to assess individual performance of the Directors and review
the remuneration packages and overall benefit of the Directors.

The following table shows the attendance and members of the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2016:

FWNESE
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No. of Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE BIHFmMEEE
EE: BREARE] :
CHENG Jinshu (Chairman) Bel(FE) 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon SoKE 1/1
WANG Ching F X 1/1
LIU Hongwei AT 4 1/1

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details
of which can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with
Recommended Best Practices of paragraph A.5 of the Code. The primary
duties of the Nomination committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board on a regular basis and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes. The Nomination Committee
consists of five members, including three independent non-executive
Directors and two executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Xie
Wen, Mr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Cheng Jinshu. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hongwei.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and approval
of such nomination by the Board, The Nomination Committee will evaluate
potential candidates by considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting. The following table shows the attendance and members of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2016:
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No. of Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: Wi BITREESH
EE: BREARE] :
LIU Hongwei (Chairman) Bl (F/) 11
XIE Wen ;X 1/1
WANG Ching F R 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon SoxEE 1/1
CHENG Jinshu i) 1/1
The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its RELZEQEREHACARBITARE - %
duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee ZEeZBRIBESBENASRTRESE
are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details of which A - BEFIB TR R B8 UL & Frag s
can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock B

Exchange.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is
responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each meeting of the Board or
the Board committees including any dissenting views expressed by the
Directors, which should be available to all Directors for inspection. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. All agenda, relevant materials and document are required to be
sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
meetings of the Board committees. It is the responsibility of the Company
Secretary to send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the Board or the
Board committees are also required to be sent to all Directors for record. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as well as internal
codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Finance Department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
the preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies,
disclosure requirements under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in
the annual and interim reports to the Shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The audit committee of the Board is responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
authorized external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors. The Company engaged Ernst & Young as
its external auditors, and also engaged Ernst & Young in connection with the
comfort letters and other assistance in respect of the issue of senior notes.
Details of the fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young during the year ended 31
December 2016 are as follows:

ZEETEN &

EXEELRBEAANERE BEMEEX
FESNEPIZERED - HEAE SN X BRED 2 BN e HE
3R AR BRSO B B BHE SRR I B BT
A& - MEFESFLHER - ARFRIDRBR
IKEETEN B P RSN BIED - BB BB T
BAERBNS R LM G ER K&
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BEN/ BRZKEAMEBANERMOT

Audit service ZEAR

— Interim review and annual audit - FHAR MR RMBS,190,000
AR 8,190,000 7T
— Spin off - DiF RMB400,000
AR 400,000 7¢

Non-audit services FEZERTS
— Tax service — B AR HK$195,500
195,50078 7T

— Agreed upon procedures — AR RIBINETTES

on rights issue and offshore KB ERR T
bonds issuance
— Internal control review — MEBESIE AR T

RMB1,400,000
AR 1,400,000 7T

RMB350,000
AR 350,000 7T

Internal control and risk management

The Group appointed Shinewing Risk Services Limited to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2016. The Group is also in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control manual to further enhance its internal control
and risk management system.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for the
Group’s system of internal control and risk management as well reviewing its
effectiveness an on-going basis, and, in particular, considering the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, training programmes and budget. The
Board will conduct periodic review, at least annually, which cover all material
aspects, including financial, operational, risk management functions and
is in compliance with all relevant regulations and endeavor to enhance the
internal control and risk management measures of the Group. Such systems
are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2016, which were prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 78 to 85.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective and on-going
communications with Shareholders and continues to act in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps Shareholders and
investors informed of its business performance and strategies by adopting
a transparent and timely disclosure policy which complies with the Listing
Rules and provides all Shareholders equal access to such information. The
Company also publishes all documents on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) also provides a
forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the Shareholders directly.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer questions
during the AGM. Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and
related papers were posted to Shareholders for their consideration at least 20
clear business days prior to the AGM.

At each general meeting, the chairman of the meeting proposes individual
resolutions in respect of each substantially separate matter. All matters at
the Company’s general meetings are resolved by poll and the procedures for
conducting a poll will be explained at the meeting. Independent scrutineer
will be engaged to ensure all votes at general meeting are properly counted.
Poll vote results will be posted on the websites of the Company and HKEX in
a timely manner.

AGM proceedings and policies regarding Shareholders’ communication of the
Company are continually reviewed in the light of corporate governance best
practices.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirements under Paragraph O of the Code which is effective from 1 April
2012.

(a)  Convening of general meeting on requisition by shareholders

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Company’s registered
office in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton,
HM11, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108,
31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three (3) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions
of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

(b)  Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any number
of the shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company, or not less
than one hundred of such shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting any
statement of not more than one thousand words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all the
requisitionists must be deposited at the Company’s registered office
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in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31/F,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board on the secretary of
the Company, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the enquiries.

INVESTOR RELATION

During the period under review, there had been no significant change in the

Company’s constitutional documents.

GOING CONCERN

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that cast

significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

The Company has been introducing, and continues to introduce, measures to
comply with the former and revised Corporate Governance Code. Enhancing
corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with
the Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange but about promoting
and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. During the period
under review, the Board considered the following corporate governance
matters:

(i) review of the compliance with the Code; and

(i) review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk management
systems of the Group through the Audit Committee.

The Board considered the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2016 are effective and
adequate. We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our
current practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
developments. Any views and suggestions from our shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.

RAEREBKE

ARFEKI S EBESERE - NETER
REFTREERTA - /A BEREAKFIIE
EREMR BTz EEERTR] - I8
B RFERABRERE2Z CEXL - REIE
HE > EFEEEGUTEEELEE

(i) FBELTETTA R

(iy BEECZESENARERZEZE
g TR ERERERER -

EZgRR BE_TRFT-A=1t—H
LFFE - ARRMEREE R AREIEGE A
BREGER - BFHZRER BERIZES
RER - THRNTNEERIEARAZH
TR - ARRECARRRHERE R FiEE
PSR RIE IR R ZERE -



—NEFR PR ARG RITER AR AT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE - HERERRE

ABOUT ESG REPORT
Introduction

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
illustrates the principles and implementation of corporate citizenship in
renewable energy field of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,

noow

the “Group”, “we” or “us”). The ESG report elaborates various works of
the Group supporting the principles of sustainable development in 2016
and its performance of social governance. For the information of corporate
governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 7 to

22.

Scopes of Report

The ESG report covers the environmental and social policies of the Group’s
principal businesses in Mainland China. The Group will continue to review its
performance on environmental and social aspects. The period covered by the
ESG report is consistent with the financial statements of the Group, from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

Reporting Guide

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Participation of Stakeholders

The ESG Report was prepared with the participation of colleagues in various
departments, giving us a clearer picture of the current development level on
environmental and social aspects. The information collected is the summary
of the works of the Group related to environmental and social aspects in 2016
and the basis for our short and long term sustainable development strategy.
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Information and Feedback

For more detailed information about the environment and corporate
governance of the Company, please refer to our official website (http://www.
singyessolar.com) and annual report. We highly value your opinions for this
report. If you have any opinions or suggestions, please feel free to contact us
by:

Tel: (852) 2548-8231
Email: ir_sye@zhsye.com

ABOUT US

The Group strives to provide high and new technologies for energy
conservation, environmental protection, renewable energy and new materials,
and has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 2009.
The businesses of the Group comprise five scopes: (i) Design, manufacture
and installation of conventional curtain walls and green building construction;
(i) Design, installation and operation of solar projects; (iii) Manufacture, sale
and research and development of renewable energy goods; (iv) Manufacture,
sale and installation of new materials; and (v) Provision of construction design
services. We have two production plants in Mainland China and have offices
in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, Malaysia, etc.

We have shown our dedication to the goal of transforming every building into
mini power plant, with a will to become a global leading provider of clean
energy application system. By utilising the advantage of our existing building
curtain wall business and technology, we continuously conduct research
and development on enhancing the synergy between the clean-energy
technology and energy-saving building knowledge, which support the future
development of ecological construction and low-carbon economy. “People-
oriented, Growth with Technology” is the foundation and motto of the Group.
The Group is committed to creating a favorable circumstance for caring for
the environment, caring for the community and caring for our employees.
With the foundation of scientific and technological capabilities, the Group
has continuously upgraded the service qualities of new energy, energy
saving, environmental protection and new materials to achieve satisfaction
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among customers. “Harmonious Growth, Joint Development” is the principle
and belief of the Group. We are dedicated to achieve harmonious and joint
development of our nature, society, human and business and established
the concept for the development of integrity management, law compliance
and scientific management. We will keep paying back to the society with our
pioneering and aggressive spirit, and our effort in industrial development. We
will also protect the natural environment, share fruitful enterprise growth with
employees, and build more harmonious, civilised and progressive society.

ENVIRONMENTAL CARE
Green Industry

We witness the worsening problems of global warming , and the threat of
climate to human beings. As an environmental friendly enterprise, we have
shown our dedication to the goal of transforming every building into mini
power plant, promoting emission reduction form source and enhancing
energy efficiency to improve environment, cherish the blue sky and lead
the low-carbon economic development. Over the years, we have constantly
promoted and improved solar technology. During the first “China Photovoltaic
+ Innovation and Development Forum”, we shared the successful application
model of photovoltaic combining with green building and micro-grid. We
also participated in the “13th China International Solar Energy Utilization
Products Exhibition and the 11th China Heat Pump, Water Purification
and HVAC Products Exhibition”
Solar Thermal Industry Federation, the China Association of Rural Energy

, which were jointly organized by the China

Industry, the Solar Thermal Professional Committee and the China Energy
Conservation Association Solar Professional Committee, in order to promote
the new development of solar technology.

Besides promoting the use of solar technology, we proactively regulate
green buildings to ensure a higher specification for the sustainability of the
buildings. Singyes Energy-saving Technologies Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group, is one of the editorial units of the Key of Preparation and Review
on Zhuhai City Green Building Construction Drawing Design Document
issued by Zhuhai City Housing and Urban Planning and Construction
Bureau. Moreover, the Group participates in the preparation of the Glass
in Building — General Technical Requirements for Recycling Building
Photovoltaic Components issued by the Building Glass Standardization
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Technical Committee of International Organization for Standardization (ISO/
TC 160), which mainly solves the processing problems of photovoltaic waste
components generated by the operation of photovoltaic industry. We expect
that from the aspects of material supply and environmental protection,
together with the establishment of standard measures, to achieve our final
objectives of avoiding squandering resources, reducing the production of
raw materials of photovoltaic components, and reducing the secondary

environmental pollution.

Green Products

Coal, oil and other fossil fuels not only are non-renewable resources, but
also generate carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases and waste during
combustion. On the contrary, solar energy is a renewable and inexhaustible
resource. Solar energy is also a clean energy, and its utilisation will not
emit greenhouse gases which intensify greenhouse effect. Therefore, we
vigorously promote the development of solar technology. With the concerns
that solar energy may cause visual pollution in city, we proactively develop
Building Integrated Photovoltaic (“BIPV”) Technology, by using photovoltaic
components as building materials. BIPV application has to be incorporated
into the overall design of building, rather than only a simple combination
of solar photovoltaic components and buildings. It is necessary to consider
various functions and utilizations of building and is an attempt to form new
architectural design ideas and energy-saving building methods. BIPV is not
only for the effect of beautifying the building, but also for the realizations of
shading insulation, heat preservation, energy saving and the reduction of
energy consumption inside the building.

In additional, we also advocate green definition of building, i.e. the
conservation of land, water, energy and material. Pursuant to the principle
of “Passive Priority, Active Optimization”, with the goal of “Ultra-low Energy
Consumption”, we aim to create low-carbon energy-saving building with
rational planning and design at early stage and effective control and
management at later stage, on the basis of high performance maintenance
structures (high visible light transmittance, low shading coefficient), and
supplemented by applying various types of ventilation technology, considering
external shade and ventilation of photovoltaic power generation technology,
and combining with building intelligent control system, etc. Zhuhai Singyes
Green Building Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, is the
chairman of the Chinese Enterprise Committee of US-China Clean Energy
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Research Center- Building Energy Efficiency (CERC-BEE) consortium. The
Group actively participates in the activities of the consortium and adheres
to active and productive joint technology development, application and
promotion with its members on the platform of the consortium. We took an
epoch-making step in 2016 to complete the CERC-BEE Project, which is
the Singyes Solar Research and Development Building Project. The building
takes full account of the application of passive technologies, combined with
active technologies to enhance its applicability and utilized a total of 36 green
building energy-saving technologies in total. The building was awarded the
Certificate of Green Building Design Label with Three-star Rating, which is
the highest level certificate of green building in Mainland China. In recent
years, amidst the advancement of urbanisation and industrialisation in
Mainland China, the conflict between rapid economic development and
energy shortage and environmental deterioration has become increasingly
prominent. We believe that the important purpose of green building
development is to integrate new energy into building, through technological
innovation, to reduce the cost of green building so that it is accessible to
ordinary people. Therefore, we promote the development of energy-saving
and environmental industry in green building, distributed energy resources
and other aspects to make greater contributions to clean energy.

Treasure the Resources

We not only put effort on environment in our business, but also proactively
step towards low-carbon lifestyle in our operation, and require the
reduction of the total consumption of water, electricity and paper of the
Group compared with the previous year. For instance, our Zhuhai Singyes
Renewable Energy Industrial Park fully utilizes photovoltaic power generation
technology and energy integrated management technology, becoming a
demonstration project of distributed power station and intelligent micro-grid.
Our staff quarters also use the building integrated solar thermal technology,
by combining the solar and thermal system with building construction to
provide employee with hot water, heating and air conditioning, etc., in order
to reduce our demand for thermal power and lessen environmental pollution.

We regularly carry out employee education for the promotion of energy-
saving, requiring employees to save resources, and following the “Say No
to Waste” system to minimize unnecessary energy usage. In order to avoid
additional resource consumption caused by facility failure, we will repair
the facility immediately after the failure is found. In order to encourage
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employees to take positive initiative on the environment actively, we recognize
and reward employees who suggest rational proposals to save resources
and reduce waste. Furthermore, we implement responsibility and penalty
policies in respect of office equipment, such as air conditioning, and
computer, specifically for employees who do not switch off air conditioning
or computer after work. In addition, the operation of the Group tends to be
paperless. We encourage employees to use e-mail for internal or external
communication, and promote double-side printed internal documents to fully
utilize paper. We recycle waste paper documents and send them to waste
recycling companies for recycling regularly. We use office automation (OA)
system for notifications, transfer applications, holiday applications and other
administrative procedures as paperless office. Our OA system also contains
different workflows of different positions for employees to understand work
process conveniently, thus reducing the paper used for the copy process of
internal communication and approval.

Emissions Management

We have set sustainable development as our strategy, and taken zero
tolerance on any pollution incident as our target. The Group strictly abides by
the “Trial Standard of Industrial “Three Wastes” Discharge” and related laws
and regulations. Our main air pollution is vehicle exhaust emission and, as
such, we require that all vehicles must meet the vehicle emissions standard
implemented by Zhuhai Municipal Environmental Protection Bureau. The
Group’s wastewater is mainly domestic sewage, which will be discharged
directly into municipal drainage system. In respect of noise pollution, the
Group’s major source of noise is incurred by air compressor and vehicles.
Therefore, we build sound insulation room for air compressor to solve the
noise problem from air compressor; we also strengthen the management and
maintenance of vehicles, aiming to ensure that silencers and speakers are in
compliance with the national requirements and reduce vehicle noise.
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Waste Management

We set a management target for waste control. We set up recycling bins in
various departments and request our employees to separate and collect
recyclable and non-recyclable wastes. The Group will deliver recyclable
waste to recycling company, and dispose non-recyclable waste to waste
disposal company designated by the Zhuhai Environmental Protection
Bureau. We require 100% recovery and disposal of the Group’s solid and
liquid hazardous wastes. We collect the hazardous wastes, including various
kinds of containers contaminated with toxic and hazardous substances, and
dispose the collected hazardous wastes to the designated collection point
and ensure that there is no mixture or leakage in the process of collection
and transportation.

PEOPLE ORIENTED
Employee Rights

Employee is the cornerstone of scientific management and the core
competency of the Group. We have focused on talent nurturing, and have
committed to creating a favorable atmosphere for caring employee. Our
business philosophy fully shows our respect to the employees’ interests,
and the exploration of employees’ full potential. The Group strictly abides
by relevant laws and regulations of employees’ right, such as the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). During the recruitment process,
we solely consider the applicant’s ability to meet the appropriate conditions
of service, without considering his/her gender, age, race, religion, etc. The
Group strictly complies with the Prohibition of Using of Child Labor, and
carries out identity document verification of new recruits to prevent the
employment of child labor. Subsequent to the expiration of probation, each
employee should pass the comprehensive assessment on business capability,
ideology and moral, work attitude and other aspects, and we will conduct
a comprehensive study. After passing the assessment and inspection, the
employees can be formally recruited. We enter into Labor Contract with
our employees to ensure that there is no forced labor. We offer market-
competitive remuneration and adjust their performance awards and annual
bonuses based on their regular performance appraisal results. The Group
has introduced 8-hour day and 5-day workweek and provides holidays, and
has provided employees with annual leave, marriage leave, maternity leave,
paternity leave, breast feeding leave, etc. For resigned employees, we will
handover work on their last working day and pay the outstanding wages on
time.
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Employee Benefits

In addition to fixed salaries, monthly performance awards and annual
bonuses, we provide various benefits for our employees. Besides catering,
communication and transportation subsidies, we provide housing allowances
to support their basic needs. In order to encourage employees to work long-
term in the Group, we provide annual service allowance for employees who
have joined the Group over one year. The Group sets up attendance awards
to appreciate the employees who have their full attendance for a whole
month. We also grants gifts to employees to celebrate their new stage of life.

Apart from monetary support, we pay more attention to their spiritual
satisfaction. By establishing the labor union for employees, the Group strives
to provide practical contribution for them, resolve their practical difficulties,
listen to their difficulties and become their supporter. We have also set up
a recreation club for the purpose of enriching their lives through organising
various sports associations, including football, badminton, tennis, swimming,
hiking, etc. for their spare time. We provide our employees with festive
bonuses to share the joy during festivals. Besides, we hold regular group
activities every year, including the New Year Games, Spring Festival Night,
Mid-Autumn Night, etc. The New Year Games on the Eve demonstrates the
spirit of our employees’ hard work, and reminds them to meet new challenges
with healthy bodies in the coming year. Spring Festival Night and Mid-
Autumn Night bring all employees together as a family to celebrate in a warm
and harmonious atmosphere with the Group, and to share good memories
with joy and laughter.

Employee Health

The Group adheres to the safety objective of “Zero Significant Safety
Accidents, Zero Occupational Dieseases” and sets up the idea of “Life First,
Safety First” and strictly abides by the requirements of the Occupational
Health and Safety Management System (GB/T 28001-2001) of Mainland
China to protect the safety of employees as the core belief. We also provide
annual medical examinations for employees. We care employees’ safety and
health, and identify, evaluate and control the hazards in various production
activities and the occupational health and safety deficiencies of the Group
that may lead to accidents, improve production condition and working
environment. We establish and implement occupational safety and health
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programs for significant occupational health and safety factors based on the
valuation results of occupational health and safety factors and environmental
factors, to ensure the achievement of occupational health and safety
objectives. In response to the possibility of accident, we have developed

respective contingency plans with regular review and relevant drills.

We set occupational health and safety objectives, and set up different
indicators to supervise the effectiveness of health measures on employees.
We understand that equipment safety is closely related to employees’ safety.
As such, we have developed equipment control procedures. The equipment
control procedures clearly specify the necessary safety measures when the
equipment is in use, and clearly indicate occupational health and safety
control methods. For example, we require employees to check equipment
daily before operation to ensure that the equipment is well maintained at
normal working condition and stable operational capacity. We also make
sure that all equipment operation and maintenance personnel are well
trained, while project managers, construction quality and safety inspectors,
special operators, chemical management, etc. also are required to report
duties with licenses in accordance with the requirements of national laws
and regulations. We evaluate the abilities of certain employees annually to
ensure that their operations would not cause and safety problems. In order
to enhance the safety awareness of employees, we provide trainings for
special positions and provide safety tertiary education for new employees
and regular trainings on occupational safety education for all employees’. We
conduct questionnaire survey for the participants to continuously improve
our training effectiveness. We will continue to analyse and improve the safety
management of our employees.

Employee Development and Training

Considering that we have to build an outstanding team and stretch their
potential in line with the long-term development of the Group, we provide
clear promotion path as well as training for our employees. Employees can
be promoted through three career development paths, including technical
path, management path and operating path, each of development career can
be subdivided into more professional development. No matter it is technical,
management or operating path, employees shall enjoy the corresponding
benefits as long as the same level, including salary income, benefit, spiritual
honor, etc. In order to grow with our employees, we provide different types of
training for them, conduct annual investigation based on staff training needs,
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and formulate annual training program. We strive to improve their production
techniques, design methods, management capabilities, equipment
maintenance capabilities, etc., so that they can perform better in their
respective professional fields, thus further enhancing the professional status
of the Group. We will continue to improve the training quality for employees
through assessing the effectiveness of the training. We have established the
“Singyes College” in 2015 as our corporate training school, combining theory
with practice of the Group and explaining the most practical application
knowledge to our employees.

MUTUAL DEVELOPMENT WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Cooperation with Suppliers

The Group expects to have long-term cooperation with suppliers to joint
sustainable development and take initiative of innovation. The Group has
been conducting public bidding procurement in an open, fair and honest
manner as competitive principle. During the selection process of suppliers,
we evaluate suppliers in the aspect of the qualification and reputation, supply
capacity, price and after-sales service, and inspect their main materials,
equipment and facilities, to ensure that they are able to provide materials
satisfying quality, health and safety requirements to reduce the possibility of
environmental and social risks. Save as the conditions above, we give priority
to suppliers in neighboring areas to shorten traffic distance, thereby reducing
the carbon footprint generated during transport.

Products and Services

The Group places considerable value on the quality of products, with the goal
of 100% passing rate of project and service quality. The Group strictly abides
by the Quality Management System — Requirements (GB/T 19001-2008)
of Mainland China and the Code for quality management of engineering
construction enterprises (GB/T 50430). We take different measures to ensure
that the quality of products meets the requirements of customers and laws
and regulations. We measure and monitor the characteristics of products
at each stage of production from raw materials, production processes
to completion, to ensure that the product meets the health and safety
requirements. We also identify the resources, raw materials, equipment,
spare parts, semi-finished products, finished products and engineering
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inspection status for the project to trace the quality of the project and the
safety quality of the products. Unqualified materials will not be used. In
addition, we actively communicate with our customers at different stages of
the project and respond to their demands to satisfy their needs. We collect
customer feedback, satisfaction and opinions through different means, such
as research, return visit, and conduct analysis and research on the direction
of market development and the improvement direction of management
system. We also devote our effort to protect the intellectual property rights
and personal information of customers. We enter into confidential agreements
with employees and provide monthly confidential subsidies to employees to
ensure that the information of customers will not be leaked out. The Group
strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations such as the Patent Law of
the PRC and the Trademark Law of the PRC to protect intellectual property
rights. We issued a number of patents in respect of micro-grid research and
renewable energy applications. As at 31 December 2016, the Group applied
a total of 25 invention patents and 208 utility model patents, which in turn
received 3 invention patents and 112 utility model patents. During promotion
and sales, the Group complies with the Advertising Law of the PRC and other
relevant laws and regulations, promised not to provide false information to

customers.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to preventing the occurrence of corruption, strictly
complies with the Company Law of the PRC, the Criminal Law of the PRC
and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC. We have adopted a
clear avoidance system, prohibiting direct leadership relationships among
employees who have husband and wife relationship, immediate family
relationship, three generation collateral relatives and other close family
relationships. Moreover, we clearly stipulate that employees should be
honest, loyal to their duties, and shall not abuse their official powers to seek
any improper benefits.

HARMONIOUS SINGYES

As an enterprise with social responsibility, the Group actively supports young
students, helps those in distress, utilizes our technological achievements
to promote public welfare development, and brings solar technology to
people in remote areas. The Group launched the solar street lighting project
“Singyes Solar into Yuexi County” in 2015, with the donation of solar street
lights to Diangian Town, Yuexi County, Anging City, Anhui Province, and the
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installation has been fully completed in 2016. The solar street lighting allows
the public to enjoy the convenience of new energy technology, and can
effectively solve and improve rural lighting. The Group is the system integrator
of the first photovoltaic poverty alleviation project in Hunan Province —
100kW photovoltaic power generation system in Qishan Village, Shaoyang
County, which was built in May 2016. The project construction model is
“Linked Pieces of Conserved Land/Divided User Gain” village photovoltaic
power plant, with an installation capacity of 100kW, and an estimated annual
generation capacity of 100,000kWh, making an income of RMB100,000 for
Qishan Village and helping more than 120 poor households to solve their
basic living problems. As the normal life of the project is 25 years, the poor
households shall enjoy benefit for more than 20 years. The investment on
anti-poverty photovoltaic power station creates an advantageous turning
point for changing the anti-poverty model of “Blood Transfusion” to “Blood
Making”, which is quickly effective and stably solves the basic living problems
of poor households in the long run.

Save for focusing on the needs of remote areas and actively building
photovoltaic power station projects in different regions, we focus on
personnel training. In December 2016, we invited students from Zhuhai City
Polytechnic with specialty on Electrical Automation Technology to participate
in the basic training course for the operation and maintenance of photovoltaic
power station organized by Singyes College. According to the special working
environment of photovoltaic power station and the skill requirements of
operation and maintenance positions, the training course consisted of three
scopes: enterprise cognition, operation and maintenance of power station,
and safety production. The course comprised visiting the headquarter of
the Group, studying the culture of Singyes, basic knowledge of electrician,
basic working principles of photovoltaic power station, commonly used
measurements and main instruments of photovoltaic power station, main
operation and maintenance work and processes, management system of
photovoltaic power station, etc. with 12 courses in total. During the training,
lecture theories were combined with practical exercises of equipment and
measuring instruments to enhance operational skills. We arranged the
qualified students to various photovoltaic power stations in Guangdong
Province for site practice. It plays an essential role in promoting the talent
development in new energy photovoltaic installation, adjustment, operation
and maintenance, and generalization and standardisation of vocational skill
system.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a professional renewable energy solution provider and building
contractor. Our main businesses are design, fabrication and installation
of conventional curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included
Building Integrated Photovoltaic System (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar
system and ground mounted solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”); we also
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of renewable energy goods. Our
BIPV system involves (i) the integration of photovoltaic technology into the
architectural design of buildings and structures and (ii) conversion of solar
energy into electricity for use. Our system allows the electricity generated
from solar panels to be connected to the power grid of a building and the
electricity generated from sun power will be consumed simultaneously. No
extra electricity storage cost is required. In addition, we also engage in the
production and sale of renewable energy goods, including smart grid system
and solar thermal system. In 2011, we also started a new business called
Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO”) business or “New material” business.

Leveraging on our track record and extensive experience in our curtain
wall business, we will further strengthen and develop our renewable energy
business in respect of BIPV systems and renewable energy goods. Apart from
the above, we also provide engineering design services and engage in the
sale of curtain wall materials. Our Group will endeavour to continue our focus
on solar business. In the long run, we will aspire and strive to grow into an
enterprise with a focus on renewable energy business.
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FUTURE PLAN AND STRATEGIES
Curtain wall and green building business

The domestic market is recovering, and also because of the blooming of
overseas market, revenue from curtain wall and green building business grew
by 26.8% or RMB343.4 million. At the same time, some favorable policies
were implemented by the Mainland China government recently and we
believe the demand for green building will remain strong.

Solar EPC business

We are a one-stop solution provider in Solar EPC, the year-to-year solar EPC
revenue recorded a strong recovery, revenue grew by RMB757.9 million or
51.6% compared with the year 2015.

The Group has firstly entered into the Solar EPC market in China in 2007,
because of the strong support by the Golden Sun Demonstration Project
(“Golden Sun”), our Solar EPC business recorded a significant growth over
the past few years. The National Energy Administration of China (“NEA")
set the target for additional solar installation capacity of 18.1GW in 2016,
while the accumulated solar energy installed capacity is over 50GW. In
addition, the National Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC”) has
uplifted the surcharge levied on electricity bill to end-users from RMBO0.015
per kWh to RMBO0.019 per kWh in January 2016, representing an increase
of approximately 26.7%, the payment efficiency of the electricity tariff
could well be improved after the increase of the surcharge. In addition, the
Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) has announced the sixth batch of renewable
energy subsidies for solar farms that was grid-connected before February
2015 in September 2016 and it also issued the Notice on Organization and
Declaration of Additional Funding Subsidies Directory for Renewable Energy
which started to prepare registering solar farms that was grid-connected
before March 2016 to receive the seventh batch of renewable energy
subsidies and this has already been open for registration by the solar farm
operators.
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The favorable policies and strong domestic demand in China could support
the long term healthy growth of the solar EPC business of the Group.

Development of renewable energy goods

Apart from solar EPC, we also produce different kinds of renewable energy
goods. Renewable energy goods include solar photovoltaic materials and
solar thermal products. Solar thermal products include air-source heat
pump, solar heat collectors and solar heating system. Our long-term strategy
is, through our innovative research and development team, to diversify the
application of solar, and to widen the solar application in different area, like
rural application and irrigation.

Self-developed solar projects

At 31 December 2016, the Group had 270.7 MW grid-connected power
stations and 73.4 MW projects awaiting for grid-connection. In the future,
the Group will consider investment opportunities in solar power stations in
provinces with high electricity demand, for example Guangdong province,
given that the solar farms there have not encountered any curtailment in
electricity generation.

Overseas business opportunities

Revenue outside China accounted for approximately 7.6% of our total
revenue in the year 2016 (2015: 6.6%). We anticipate contribution from the
overseas market will be growing if the construction progress of the sizeable
contracts is on schedule.

In the meantime, we keep looking into opportunities in solar EPC projects in
the overseas market.

In December 2016, the Group secured a 100 MW of solar EPC project in the
Republic of Uzbekistan with a total sum of USD147 million, this project is
mainly financed by Asian Development Bank (“ADB”).
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table set out the breakdown of revenue:

EX RO
L ON

TRIRKRAD IR :

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—hEF
RMB million RMB million
ARBEET AREEET
Curtain walls and green buildings Bt LA EEE
— Public work — QAT 237.3 2929
— Commercial and industrial - I 1,173.0 781.5
— High-end residential — 2iEFE 213.6 206.1
1,623.9 1,280.5
Solar EPC KF58EEPC
— Public work — RHTE 16.2 0.2
— Commercial and industrial — I 2,209.4 1,467.5
2,225.6 1,467.7
Total construction contracts FEEASRBEE 3,849.5 2,748.2
Sale of goods EmigE
— Conventional materials — EHME 335.3 282.4
— Renewable energy goods — A EARERE R 882.3 1,022.4
— New materials — ¥t 90.9 60.3
Total sale of goods EmiHEEE 1,308.5 1,365.1
Sale of electricity, including tariff adjustment & iK% - BEEERHAL 161.6 118.1
Rendering of design and other services TRHRRET R E AR 13.2 8.0
5,332.8 42394
Tariff adjustment BIEMAL (93.2) (57.4)
Total revenue FEU PN 5,239.6 4,182.0
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Gross profit and gross profit margin EFREFZE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FF
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEERT AREBEET
Construction contracts BEAR
— Curtain walls and green buildings ~— — & ki BEE 260.6 16.0 177.0 13.8
— Solar EPC — KFGaEEPC 579.2 26.0 397.1 27.1
839.8 21.8 574.1 209
Sale of goods EmiEE
— Conventional materials — EGEM R 55.9 16.7 53.0 18.8
— Renewable energy goods — AIBARREMD 196.8 22.3 235.4 23.0
— New materials — R 35.6 39.2 23.7 39.3
288.3 22.0 312.1 22.9
Sale of electricity, including BHE
tariff adjustment BPIEEEMAL 92.6 57.3 49.1 416
Rendering of design and REHEE R
other services E AR 7.2 54.5 6.5 81.3
Total gross profit and gross profit BMEFRERNE
margin including tariff adjustment BIREEMRL 1,227.9 23.0 941.8 22.2

The Group’s revenue (including electricity tariff adjustment) increased by
RMB1,093.4 million or 25.8%, from RMB4,239.4 million in the year 2015
to RMB5,332.8 million in the year 2016. Gross profit (including electricity
tariff adjustment) increased by RMB286.1 million or 30.4%, from RMB941.8
million in the year 2015 to RMB1,227.9 million in the year 2016.
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=T —RHEM AR 941,800,000 7T I A
R ¥ 286,100,000758,30.4% = = T — N EH
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1)

2)

i

Curtain wall and green building

Revenue from curtain wall and green building business reached
RMB1,623.9 million, representing an increase of RMB343.4 million or
26.8% compared with the year 2015.

The increase in revenue was because of the recovery of construction
industry domestically inside Mainland China and the increase in
business in the overseas market. Gross margin also improved because
of the increase in percentage of high-end business such as curtain wall
with green building components.

Solar EPC

Revenue from solar EPC amounted to RMB2,225.6 million,
representing a strong growth of RMB757.9 million or 51.6% from
RMB1,467.7 million reported in the year 2015, while gross margin for
the sector remained strong at 26.0% (2015: 27.1%).

The Group has won the tender for the design, execution and
completion of the works under a design, build and operate contract
granted by Uzbekenergo regarding a 100 megawatt solar farm in the
Samarkand Province of the Republic of Uzbekistan. The total sum
of the Contract is approximately US$147 million. Winning of the bid
for the contract showed that the Group’s capabilities in the Solar EPC
met the international standards required by Uzbekenergo. This also
reinforced the Group’s strategy to follow the “One-Belt-One-Road”
initiative as announced by the Chinese Government. We expected the
transaction to provide positive revenue growth to the Group.

1)

2)

FiERGEEE

BERGOBRBERGHNRANEARR
1,623,900,0007C + ftL =% — A F 18
ANA R ¥ 343,400,000 7T 5% 26.8% ©

YOI B0 TS R A AR B K B 3 587 T 36
BaR RBINTISRFEIEIN - EFIH I

REMmEBL P (AR ZERED)
S

KFEHEEPC

K B5 BEEPCH) L A B A R ¥
2,225,600,0007C © 8 =T — A F 15
A R #1,467,700,000 7038 91E & A
R #757,900,0007C8%51.6% * AR5 8k
EPCHYER E#IFRE - /326.0% (=
T—AF :27.1%) °

N8 [E P IZ Uzbekenergo % T 2 38 51 -
AT T AL R & 24 Rl 5o 1738 H 1B
HMEBRES E’JlOOJI:Ei‘Hj(EE*SIEE
REREr BEMELEER - ZARA
SEH 147,000,000% Lo AR FE
BERAEEBTAGEEEPCHEENFTE
Uzbekenergo T 2 sk A B BRI 2E - [RIBF
HEREBREFE EﬁUTF*ﬁ*EXJ
A ERAM - BMTEHARRS
AAEEEREEmRSIEE



=

—NEFR PR KR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBEENwRED

3)

i

Sale of goods

(M)

(iii)

Sale of conventional materials accounted to RMB335.3 million,
up RMB52.9 million or 18.7% driven by the stable growth in
domestic market demand.

Sale of renewable energy goods recorded a decrease of
RMB140.1 million from RMB1,022.4 million in the year 2015
because the Group has spent more resources in solar EPC
projects.

New Material business represented sale of Indium Tin Oxide
(“ITO”) film and its products. ITO film can be processed into
touch-screen ITO film and switchable ITO film, while the
switchable ITO film can further be processed into smart light-
adjusting glass and smart light-adjusting projection system. ITO
film and smart light-adjusting products are relatively new to
the consumers in China and therefore, the market penetration
is currently quite low. Riding on the increasing sales volume
generated by our Group’s successful marketing strategies,
revenue surged by RMB30.6 million or 50.7% and gross margin
remained high at 39.2% (2015: 39.3%).

3)

(iii)

BER TR A R AR
i E
EHEMBEERRARY

335,300,0007T © B AT %5 H
KIRTEIREMIES  BIMARE
52,900,000 7L, 18.7% °

AR AN EE R KAELEPCIE B
BARZER Al BERRE M
HEHBE _ZT—HAFHAR
#1,022,400,000 7T & D A R ¥
140,100,000 7T °

MBI EBIEHEERGELY
(ITOBEEREKHEEM - ITOEE
RAI MK BEERFITOEER R
AIAEITOBERE - Al FEITO
BEREA S INT BTN
W RBEANEBERLG - ITOE
BN EREE t%uuﬂﬁpl%)f'
MEEHE Bt mEEEX
FERIE - BEARE lﬁklﬁ“iﬁ
RESEEHE TETE I - WA
T+ A B 30,600,000 7T 5, 50.7%
MEFREHFEN2%9EE(ZF
—AF :39.3%) °
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(iv)  The following table sets out the Group’s self-invested solar power vy TRBEIWNAEBRAZ-ZZ—RF
stations as at 31 December 2016. TZA=+T—HETERENHKE
BETE L o
Pending grid
On-grid connection In-progress Total
348 SEEGE TEEH “ast
Location Mw Mw MW MW
HhEy KT JkE Kk kE
Guangdong province ERE 118.0 — 102 220.0
Northwest China FREIFE LB 113.0 58.5 — 171.5
Hebei province Mg — — 20.0 20.0
Golden Sun/Distributed Power & A5,/ D= Bk 39.7 14.9 — 54.6
270.7 73.4 122 466.1
The Group’s accumulated on-grid capacity increased from 207 AEBEHRFHEAREH-Z
megawatts (“MW”) at 31 December 2015 to 270.7 MW at 31 —RHF+ZA=1+—HH/H207 )k
December 2016, which comprised of 39.7 MW Golden Sun F(KENDEEZZ—RF+=
or distributed power stations, and 231.0 MW ground-mounted B=+—HM2707kE - 81
solar farms. The sale of electricity, including tariff adjustment, 39.7 K FL& K5k 2 = 5B uh &
therefore, increased by 36.8% to RMB161.6 million in the year 2310 M E K58 E uh o B
2016 from RMB118.1 million in the year 2015. b BHEE(REEEMHM) B

— T — A F AR# 118,100,000
TLIEM3E8SE—_E—NEFEAR
# 161,600,000 7T, ©
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Revenue and gross profit contribution from different business  REZARREEFREEHHBANREF :
sectors:

Revenue split (including tariff adjustment) WAFF (BIEEEHL)
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—AHF
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEST ARBEETT
Curtain walls and i kA mREER!
green building business! 1,972.4 37.0 1,570.9 37.1
Renewable energy business? Al BARLIRER? 3,269.5 61.3 2,608.2 61.5
New material business MRS 90.9 1.7 60.3 1.4
5,332.8 100.0 4,239.4 100.0
Gross profit split (including tariff adjustment) EFFD (BEIFEERL)
2016 2015
—T-RE ZT—hF
RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEST AREBEET
Curtain walls and B OEEER!
green building business! 323.7 26.4 236.5 25.1
Renewable energy business? Al A REIREETS 2 868.6 70.7 681.6 72.4
New material business R T 35.6 2.9 23.7 25
1,227.9 100.0 941.8 100.0
L Included curtain wall and green building construction contracts, sale of i BREERRGEELELAR  HEFRMAR
conventional materials and rendering of design and other services. RAERET R EMARTS
2 Included solar EPC construction contracts, sale of renewable energy goods and 2 BEAGEPCREAR - HEHMERE M

sale of electricity and tariff adjustment. MIHEBH REE ML -
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Other income and gains

Other income and gains mainly represented deferred income released,
interest income on retention money, gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and fair value gains on derivative financial instruments. The
amount increased by 41.2% to RMB243.1 million in the year 2016 mainly
because of the gain on disposal of solar farms under Golden Sun during the
year.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB20.7 million or 19.2%.
The increment was mainly caused by the increase in staff costs, and other
business related expenses. The levels of changes in other items were
consistent with our business growth.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses dropped by RMB29.9 million or 7.7%. The relatively

higher administrative expenses in the year 2015 was mainly driven by the
impairment loss of trade receivables and goodwill.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly represented the bank charges and loss on settlement
of derivative financial instruments.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB51.1 million or 16.1% mainly
because of the increase in interests on bank and other loans which was
caused by the rise in average loan level in Hong Kong.

H b\ R 2

HtW AR EEZABEIELTERE - GRE
FEWA « HEWE - B REREOWE T
AR TAEATERZ - 2BILMIL2% 2
T NE AR 243,100,000 THEERRA
RFRNHEBRS ARG AR REE I

HERSHFAX

415 % 5 48159 32 8 30 A R 5 20,700,000 72 5
19.2% + EMEE MR E TRA KA L1
WIS - RAIBE BB KT RARE R
BHER—H -

1THBAZ
1T BB 52 TP A R 15 29,900,000 L3 7.7% ©

“E-RFRERSTRAX T 2R AREKR
B 5 HRE NS EREREME

HibFa3Z

iR ERIERTNE REHITESRTA
Bi8 -
REE A

7<% B @& B AN S 0 A R % 51,100,000 7T 3%
16.1% @ TEHREBFBTHEZKT LTE
BURTT R E A EFRA R B8 00 o
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Income tax expense FRiEHiRX

Income tax expense during the year included RMB112.6 million of taxation RAFE  FISHRASXERHEIEARE

charge and RMB1.8 million of deferred tax charge to profit or loss during the 112,600,000 ST R AR F E it Al 2 IEER

year. For the year 2015, it included RMB91.5 million of taxation charge and 8 AR#1,800,0007C - —ZE—HF - FiEH

RMB1.6 million of deferred tax credit. X B IER A H A R 91,500,000 7T K ik
TR B S AR 1,600,000 7T °

The taxation charges mainly represented the income tax provision for FRIE N EEiEh B RREN B A R R ATS T
subsidiaries inside Mainland China. No deferred tax charges on dividend & - AEERMEFEIRE RN FBKR

withholding tax based on 5% of the net profits in the operating subsidiaries PRy BB A RAFI 5% T ER IR B TE
located inside Mainland China were provided for both years. FHERERIEMAY -

Healthy current ratio BRmEt

The current ratio being current assets over current liabilities, was 1.67 as at MEE R (BIREBEERARESEERNLR)

31 December 2016 (2015: 2.21). R RFE+-_A=+—HAL67(=Z
—hF:221)-
Trade receivables/trade and bills payables turnover days FEWEE SRR TEHE SMIERERE
#AEA
At 31 December At 31 December
2016 2015
RIT—RE R_E—ARF
+=BA=+—H +=—A=+—8H
Turnover days Days Days
AR =] A
Trade receivables FEWCE 5718 181 188

Trade and bills payables BB SHE R EMNRE 99 119
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Trade receivables turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade receivables, net of impairment, for the
year divided by the revenue during the year and multiplied by the number of
days during the year. Trade receivables turnover days at 31 December 2016
was 181 days. Trade and bills payables turnover days is calculated based on
the average of the beginning and ending balance of trade and bills payables
for the year divided by the cost of sales during the year. Trade and bills
payables turnover days at 31 December 2016 was 99 days.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s primary source of funding included receivables from
construction contracts and material sale, as well as income from electricity
sale. In order to meet the expanding plan, the Group has completed certain
fund raising activities during the year.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy level in
order to support the growth of our business. Gearing ratio, represented by
consolidated net borrowings (total of bank and other loans, bank advances
for discounted bills, convertible bonds and senior notes minus cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposits) to total equity at 31 December 2016 was
83.0% (2015: 75.3%).

With the existing cash resources and available banking facilities obtained
from its bankers, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its
commitments and working capital requirements.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures of the Group amounted to RMB1,155.6 million for the
year (2015: RMB552.7 million) and were mainly for the construction of self-
invested solar farm, factory premises and plant and machinery.

JEWE S EEE R HIRIEFNEWE S HE
WY R F R AR TFIEIRIAE - RIAF
AWA - BRINEFNBHETE - BKEHH
HEEHER - F+=-A=+—HA181
H - BN E S RIBRENZIEEE A TIRESF
NIER 8 5 308 R EN RN F I R FRES
BFIE RAFANHEERATE - ERHES
FEMENEEEAEAER T —RF+_A
=+—HAPA -

RBEERUBER

AEEESNTBERBEREREEEAR R
KHHEMEKEIE - URKBEEHHENHK
A RIARREE  FAXEEDTRET
BEEY -

REBERE RIS E E B B R REFRBRK
T UERHEBERE - EABBRERIERE
BEFHE(RRITREMER - BIRRIERRT
EX - AIMREFREAZERZBERESR
REFEYRERFHR) BRAERERE R
E-—RFFTZA=Z+—HASM%(ZZ—H
G :753%) °

BRAARSERARRRITERNES - K
SEHE T RNMEERKEMNEARE R EE
BT -

BEA2H

RAFE  AEENELAZIEAARE
1,155600,000( — T —HF: AR
552,700,0007T) + ZZREREBTIREN
RIGEEB U - BMENE R EERMIEF RE
X °
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Borrowings and bank facilities

The outstanding borrowings comprised bank and other loans of RMB2,918.3
million with effective interest rates ranging from Hong Kong Inter Bank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) + 0.95% to HIBOR + 4% for property mortgage
loan and revolving loans in Hong Kong and London Inter Bank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR™) + 1.5% to LIBOR + 3.75% for syndicated loan and term loans in
Hong Kong. Interest rates for domestic loans inside Mainland China were
ranging from 3.92%-9.55%.

As at the date of this announcement, apart from the bank and other
borrowings, the Group also issued RMB930 million of convertible bonds
with coupon rate of 5% per annum, RMB560 million, HKD250 million and
USD260 million of senior notes with coupon rate of 7.875%, 7.75% and
7.95% per annum respectively. All of them are unsecured.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s principal businesses are located in Mainland China and most
of the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s assets are
denominated in RMB. On the other hand, part of the loans of the Group are
raised in Hong Kong and they were denominated in USD or HKD, mainly
included USD110 million of syndication loans, HKD250 million of senior
notes and other bank loans in Hong Kong.

Any material fluctuation between HK$, USD and RMB may bring significant
impact to the Group’s financial position. As a results, the Group had entered
into various cross currency swap and interest rate swap contracts with banks
to hedge against the risk of increase in interest rate as well as the risk on
currency fluctuation.

EERRITER

AEEEERERTREMERARE
2,918,300,0007T * BB HERBERKRE
RERME @ ERFENTEARITRERS
E([BBRITRAZERLSE]) M0.95% EEH
IRITRIZEFRBERIN4% - B BREERRE
HERME @ ERNEARBIRITRZEREE
(IMRBIRITRIZER B X ) IN1.5% EMBUERTT
FIEFEEM3.75%  FREARFEERHFIEN
F3.92% £ 9.55% °

RAAHBBEE  RIBITREMEEN K
SENEETEABRRATFIRNAR
#930,000,000 T AT MW EH - BE B X
DBl B & F7.875%  7.75% . 7.95% 6 A
R #560,000,0007T * 250,000,000/ 7T &
260,000,000 & Tt B S TR - FTB AT IRAR(E
% RBEER BEER o

ShEs LB

AEE TR EBANFBARERAE SRS IA
ARBHET - REBRILABEENARED
BeS—7mE FAEENFLOERREES
KX UERTIETLINE  TEBENREEN
110,000,000 7t R [ & X - 250,000,000 %
TTEERBREMBITER -

BT - ELRARE ZRNERENKE AL
HAREENMENEREATE - At &
SECERITAIVE TRXEREMNXREHEL
VAR 58 hnfe\fg N E R B o
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Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
and other receivables, and other financial assets represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Substantially
all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Mainland China, which management believes are of
high credit quality.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

As at the end of the report period, the Group had certain concentration of
credit risk as 8.3% and 26.4% (2015: 4.3% and 28.2%) of the Group’s trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers, respectively. All of these customers have good credit quality by
taking into account of their credit history, a long-term business relationship
has been established by both parties. The Group has delegated a team which
is responsible for determination of credit limits and monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up actions will be implemented to recover overdue debts.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the settlement
from customers and the payment to vendors.

EEER

RekReEEY  BRGER - BREZFR
REMRWFIAN A M EREENREERR
AEEASRSREEFRNRSEER
B ARBEBAKNRE MRS FEMHER
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(ZE—HF 1 43% K%28.2%) - BiBT K%
EXPHEEREL  ERERPHEEE R
WEEE R A TERYRANEBRE -
FEBEER—ZEBEEBETEERELE
ZRRfF - BRI EREEETE I E S B R
EE °

MENE & E S

AEBERBERADESEATAEREES
FREERR - 2 TAARESRTARERE
= (DI UE 5 508) B A A R FaAHE
BEBREREFAE -

AREORHE LT ERANELSHHEER
B (RET R T R mE B
Z ST -



T REFR hEEE NG RMTER AR AR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W RO

Dividend

The Directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of HK$0.07 per
share (2015: HK$0.03 per share). The actual dividend payout ratio in each
year will depend on the actual performance of the Group, the general industry
and economic environment.

Closure of register of members

The register of members will be closed from Wednesday, 31 May 2017
to Monday, 5 June 2017, both days inclusive. In order to entitle to the
attendance of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all
share transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 29 May 2017.

The Company’s register of members will be closed from Friday, 9 June
2017 to Monday, 12 June 2017 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrars and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22 Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 8 June 2017.

Cheques for final dividend (subject to approval in the annual general meeting
mentioned above) will be dispatched to the shareholders of the Company on
or before Friday, 21 July 2017.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had about 2,650 employees. Employee
salary and other benefit expenses maintained at similar level at RMB268.1
million in the year 2016 compared with RMB268.0 million in the year 2015.
The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees, which will be reviewed regularly every year. Apart from
provident fund scheme (according to the provisions of Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes for Hong Kong employees) or the state-managed retirement
pension scheme (for Mainland China employees) and medical insurance,
discretionary bonus are also awarded to employees according to the
assessment of individual performance.

ANER
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The table below sets forth information regarding our Directors:

TRENBEEENER

Name Age Position 21 Fih 52

Liu Hongwei 53 Chairman and executive Director 24T 53K FEENITES
Sun Jinli 53 Deputy Chairman, and executive Director FeE 535 BIERERHITES
Xie Wen 51 Executive Director # X 51ER BITEE

Li Huizhong 67 Non-executive Director Teh 673 EHITESE

Cao Zhirong 43 Non-executive Director BEL 435 HHITES

Wang Ching 62 Independent non-executive Director F R 625 BUIERITES
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 59 Independent non-executive Director Sok%E  BIBR BN IERITES
Cheng Jinshu 64 Independent non-executive Director Bel 645 BIERITES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Liu Hongwei aged 53, is the Chairman and an executive Director of our
Company.

He joined our Group since August 1995. He is responsible for the formulation
and execution of our Group’s overall business strategies and policies as well
as the overall management of our Group. Mr. Liu has more than 12 years’
experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than 16 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial University, now
known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in inorganic materials
engineering, Mr. Liu worked at a state-owned glass manufacturing enterprise,
Shaanxi Glass Factory, as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1991, Mr.
Liu was the director of production department at another glass manufacturing
enterprise, Zhuhai Glass Factory. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Liu Hongwei was
the manager of the operation department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass.
In 1995, Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass jointly established Zhuhai Singyes
Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Singyes”, formerly known as
Zhuhai Singyes Curtain Wall Engineering Co., Ltd) with Zhuhai City Township
Enterprise. Since November 2003, Mr. Liu has been an executive Director
of our Company. From August 1995 to October 2007, Mr. Liu was appointed
as Zhuhai Singyes’s general manager, taking charge of general supervising
and controlling on technologies. In December 2000, Mr. Liu was certified as
a Level 1 Project Manager by the Guangdong Province Construction Bureau.
In January 2001, Mr. Liu was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of
construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau.
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In 2003, Mr. Liu became an adjunct professor of Wuhan University of
Technology. In August 2004, Mr. Liu was appointed as one of the experts to
the Standardisation Technical Committee of the PRC Ministry of Construction
for Curtain Walls, Doors and Windows. Mr. Liu is currently a member of the
Standing Committee of the Zhuhai Municipal People’s Congress of the PRC
Mr. Liu is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Sun Jinli aged 53, is our Deputy Chairman and an executive Director.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for formulating the
overall sales and marketing strategies of our Group. Mr. Sun has more than
nine years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than
16 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining
a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
inorganic materials engineering, Mr. Sun worked at Beijing Electronics
Factory as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1995, Mr. Sun was the
manager of the production department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass. From
August 1995 to January 2001, Mr. Sun was a project manager of Zhuhai
Singyes, responsible for the development and management of business
projects. From January 2001 to October 2007, Mr. Sun was the deputy
general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, responsible for planning the overall sales
and marketing strategy of Zhuhai Singyes and our Group. Since March 2005,
Mr. Sun has been an executive Director of our Company. Since 2007, Mr. Sun
has also been working as the general manager of Singyes Renewable Energy.
In December 1994, Mr. Sun was certified as an engineer by the Guangdong
Province Zhuhai Designation Reform Committee In March 2002, Mr. Sun was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction. In
December 2007, Mr. Sun was registered as a constructor by the Ministry of
Construction. Mr. Sun is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is
the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Xie Wen aged 51, is our executive Director.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for supervision at
our work-sites and research and development of BIPV technologies. Mr.
Xie has more than 16 years’ experience in curtain wall engineering sector.
Mr. Xie graduated from Zhengzhou Textile Engineering College majoring in
mechanical engineering (textile machinery) in 1987. From 1987 to 1994,
Mr. Xie worked at the Equipment Energy Team in Hunan Shaoyang No. 2
Textile Machinery Factory. Mr. Xie joined Zhuhai Singyes in August 1995
as a project manager, responsible for the development and management
of business projects of Zhuhai Singyes. From January 2003 to September
2007, Mr. Xie was the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, in charge
of technical guidance and supervision at various worksites. In October 2007,
Mr. Xie became the general manager of Zhuhai Singyes. In December 2002,
Mr. Xie was certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of
Construction. In June 2004, Mr. Xie was certified as a senior engineer in
respect of machinery by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. In
February 2008, Mr. Xie was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry
of Construction. Mr. Xie is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which
is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Li Huizhong, aged 67, was appointed as non-executive director of our
Company on 1 July 2011. Prior to this appointment, he was a vice general
manager of Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai
Singyes”), a subsidiary of the Company and retired from his position
in Zhuhai Singyes in year 2010. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Heilongjiang Radio and Television University in July 1986.
Prior to joining the Group in year 2000, Mr. Li was the general manager of the
Zhuhai office of Daging Petroleum Administrative Bureau.

Cao Zhirong aged 43, is our non-executive Director. He joined our group
in September 2009. Currently Mr. Cao is Director of BNP Paribas Equities
(Asia) Limited Shanghai Representative Office. Previously he worked at ICEA
Capital Limited and Wing Lung Finance Limited and has approximately 15
years of experience in investment bank. Mr. Cao obtained a master degree in
business administration from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Ching, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company in December 2008. Dr. Wang has near 20 years’
managerial experience in investment banking, securities, treasury and asset
management in the United States, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. He
was the president of Investment and Proprietary Trading Group for Jih Sun
Financial Holding Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the managing director of JS Cresvale
Securities International Limited, the managing director of SinoPac Securities
Asia Ltd. in Hong Kong, SEVP of SinoPac Securities Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the
director of Investment Banking Department at Standard Chartered Bank
Hong Kong and the associate director of Bear Stearns & Co. Inc., New York
and Hong Kong. Dr. Wang currently is the managing director of Shanghai
International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd., a licensed corporation
registered with Honk Kong Securities and Futures Commission. He is also
the executive director of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited, an investment fund company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 770). Dr. Wang obtained his master degree in business administration
from the University of Houston and Ph.D. in finance from Columbia University
in the city of New York.

Yick Wing Fat, Simon, aged 59, is our independent non-executive director
and chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Yick holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, majoring
in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in
England. Mr. Yick has over 30 years of experience in audit, direct investment,
investment banking and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Yick also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (both
are listed on the Stock Exchange). Since August 2015, Mr. Yick has been
appointed as independent non-executive director, convener of the nomination
committee and member of the strategy committee and the audit committee of
Chengdu Xingrong Environment Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.
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Cheng lJinshu, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of our Company in December 2008. Mr. Cheng is the professor
director of Science and Technology Division and director of the Green
Construction Material & Manufacture Project Research Institute of Ministry
of Education of Wuhan University of Technology. He was the vice-dean
of Material Project Department, vice-dean of Material College and vice-
director of Silicate Material Project, key laboratory of the Ministry of
Education of Wuhan University of Technology. Mr. Cheng graduated from
the Hubei Construction Industry College, now known as Wuhan University
of Technology, majoring in glass fiber in September 1976. Mr. Cheng has 34
years’ education and academic research experience relating to construction
materials.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Xiong Shi, aged 53, is the Chief Engineer of our Group. He is responsible
for the research and development of technology. He has more than 12
years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more then 16 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Xiong joined our Group
as a project manager in August 1995. From November 2001, Mr. Xiong
assumed the position of Chief Engineer of Zhuhai Singyes until August 2007.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xiong was the manager of the quality testing
department at Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass from 1988 to 1995. Mr. Xiong
also worked as a technical officer at a state-owned glass manufacturing
enterprise, Xiangfan City Glass Factory, from 1986 to 1988. Mr. Xiong was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction
in December 2000. Mr. Xiong was certified as a senior engineer in respect
of construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in
December 2001. Mr. Xiong obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
Wuhan Industrial University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology,
majoring in inorganic materials engineering in July 1986. In December
2007, Mr. Xiong was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry of
Construction.
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Zhuo Jianming, aged 56, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
He has approximately 14 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering
sector. He joined our Group as project manager in February 2000. From
January 2001, Mr. Zhuo assumed the position of deputy general manager
of production of Zhuhai Singyes. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhuo was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction
in March 2002. Mr. Zhuo obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering and
construction from Xi’an Jiaotong University in 1983.

Zhao Feng, aged 51, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes since
August 2007. He is also a director of Zhuhai Singyes. He joined our Group
as a sales and marketing manager in December 2002. He has approximately
12 years of experience in the construction sector and approximately 11
years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Zhao worked as an engineer of Hubei Province Shashi
Construction Materials Scientific Research Institute from 1987 to 1995. Mr.
Zhao was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of construction materials
by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in December 2004. Mr.
Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
materials science in July 1987. Mr. Zhao became the general manager of
Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Co., Ltd, and responsible for managing its
daily operation.

Zhang Chao, aged 44, is the operating general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
Mr. Zhang joined our Group in December 2002 as the manager of the
business department of Zhuhai Singyes. He has approximately 12 years of
experience in the construction sector and approximately 11 years’ experience
in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Zhang graduated from Qigihaer
Railway Transportation Employee University majoring in industry and civil
construction in July 1995. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang worked as a
construction budgeteer at Heilongjiang Province Hei He City Railway (Group)
Company from 1995 to 2002. In January 2006, Mr. Zhang was certified as
a constructor by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. Mr. Zhang
was also certified as a National Construction Appraiser by the Construction
Department in 2003 and construction engineer by Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in 2005. In December 2007, Mr. Zhong was registered as a constructor by
the PRC Ministry of Construction.
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Luo Duo, aged 38, is the chief engineer of Zhuhai Singyes. She joined
our Group as a designer in July 2001. She has approximately 12 years of
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Ms. Luo worked as the
vice-director of design institute of Zhuhai Singyes from November 2004 to
December 2006 and the director of design institute from January 2007 to
January 2008. In February 2008 she was appointed as the chief engineer
of Zhuhai Singyes. Ms. Luo was certified as a Class 2 Registered Structural
Engineer by the PRC Ministry of Construction in January 2005. Ms. Luo
was certified as a Plan-Design Engineer by the Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in February 2008. Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Construction
Engineering from Qingdao Construction Engineery College in July 2001.

Liang Bingqiang, aged 39, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes
and responsible for the development of the overseas market. He has more
than 13 years of experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. He joined
our Group as a designer in April 2002. Mr. Liang worked as the director
of design department of Zhuhai Singyes Beijing representative office from
July 2004 to July 2006 and he worked for Zhongshan Shengxing Curtain
Wall Company Ltd from August 2000 to March 2002. In August 2006, he
was appointed as the manager of the photo-electricity business department
of Zhuhai Singyes. In April 2008, he was appointed as the deputy general
manager of Singyes Renewable Energy. Mr. Liang was certified as an
Assistant Engineer by the Zhongshan Personnel Bureau in October 2001.
Mr. Liang was certified as a Construction Design Engineer by the Zhuhai
Personnel Bureau in January 2006. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in construction engineering from Tianjin Institute of Urban Construction in
July 2000.

YU Chon Man, aged 39, was appointed as the co-chief financial officer of the
Group in October 2016, he has been the qualified accountant and company
secretary of our Company since 2008. He is responsible for financial
reporting and general investor affairs of our Company. He has approximately
16 years of experience in financial accounting. Mr. Yu is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining us,
he had approximately seven years of working experience with international
audit firms and was mainly responsible for financial auditing, internal control
reporting and compliance advisory. He graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s degree (Hons) in accountancy in
2001.
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Mr. Yu also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman of
audit committee of Time2U International Holding Limited (stock code: 1327).

Mr. Guo Yangyang, aged 33, was appointed as the co-chief financial officer
of the Group in October 2016. He graduated from the accounting discipline
of the China University of Mining and Technology in June 2005, and is
an intermediate accountant. Since joining the Group in July 2006, he has
worked as a manager in the Company’s financial planning department
and accounting and auditing department. He was appointed as the chief
accountant and deputy financial controller of the Company in January 2011.
He has over 10 years of financial and accounting experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY

YU Chon Man, is our company secretary. For further details regarding Mr.
Yu, please see the paragraph headed “Senior Management” above.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEGREE

The directors (the “Directors”) of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 24 October 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.
The Company has established a principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and was registered with the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as an oversea company under Part
Xl of the Companies Ordinance on 29 August 2008. Mr. Yu Chon Man has
been appointed as the authorised representative of the Company for the
acceptance of service of process and notices on behalf of the Company in
Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Bermuda, the operation of the
Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution comprising

a memorandum of association and the bye-laws.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
professional renewable energy system integrator and building contractor, it is
principally engaged in the design, fabrication and installation of conventional
curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included building integrated
photovoltaic (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar system and ground mounted
solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”). The BIPV system involves (i) the
integration of photovoltaic technology into the architectural design of buildings
and structures and (ii) conversion of solar energy into electricity for use. In
addition, the Group also engages in the production and sale of renewable
energy goods, including smart grid system, and solar thermal system. The
Group’s principal operating market is in Mainland China.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s top five customers are the main contractors of various public
or commercial BIPV or curtain wall or solar form investors. In aggregate, the
largest and top five customers contributed approximately 9.8% and 29.3% of
the Group’s total revenue in 2016 respectively.

The Group currently outsources part of the construction works for various
sub-contractors in the PRC, as well as sourcing PV penal, aluminium and
glass from suppliers inside the PRC. In 2016, the top five suppliers include
material suppliers and sub-contractors, sub-contracting fees paid or material
purchase to its largest and five largest suppliers were about 6.6% and 20.4%
of the Group’s total cost of sale in 2016 respectively.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries which principally affect
the results as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
Company’s and the Group’s financial positions as at the same date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 86 to 256. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of
HK$0.07 per share (2015: HK$0.03 per share).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 90 to 91 of the annual report and in note 35 to the financial statements
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Final dividend amounting to RMB52,226,000 was declared by reduction
in distributable reserve. As at 31 December 2016, the Company's reserves
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
applicable law of Bermuda, amounting to RMB3,588,000. A resolution will
be proposed in the forthcoming annual general meeting for reduction of
share premium of RMB80,000,000 to the distribution reserve for distribution
of final dividends.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2016 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and equipment
are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 33 to the financial statements. A rights issue of one
rights share for every five existing shares held by members on the register
of members on 20 June 2016 was made at a price of HK$2.60 per share,
the rights issue was completed on 19 July 2016, resulting in the issue of
139,012,199 shares (the “Rights Issue”). Save as the Rights Issue, the
Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed
securities of the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last 5 financial years is set out on page 4 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LIU Hongwei
Mr. SUN Jinli

Mr. XIE Wen

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LI Huizhong
Mr. CAO Zhirong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. WANG Ching

Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon

Mr. CHENG Jinshu

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Sun Jinli,
Mr. Cao Zhirong and Dr. Wang Ching are required to retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Each of the above Directors will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management members
of the Group was based on their individual performance as well as market
trends and practices. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2016 were within the following bands:

Bands EE

— TN P ERE AR AR A A

REBEEZZ—"FF+A=+—HLFE %
NERERB(TEEES) 2HFMNFRU
TEE

Number of
Senior Management

BREEERE

RMB100,001 to RMB1,000,000
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000

AR 100,001 TZE AR # 1,000,000 7T
AE# 1,000,001 TE AR 1,500,000 7T 2
AR 2,000,001 7TE AR 2,500,000 7T

Total: A&t

11

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of 3 years, which is renewable automatically for
successive terms of 3 years each commencing from the day immediately
after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment unless terminated
by not less than 3 months’ notice in writing served by either party. Each of
the non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of three years, which
is renewable automatically for successive terms of 1 year each commencing
from the day next after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment
unless terminated by not less than 2 months’ notice in writing served by either
party. Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for
a term of three years which is terminable by either party by giving the other
party not less than 2 months’ prior notice in writing. None of the Directors
has a service agreement with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company and by reference to the remuneration policies of other
companies in similar capacity and the experience of the directors.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of
Directors (the “Board”) may at its discretion, offer eligible persons (being any
Director or employee (whether full-time or part-time), consultant or advisors
of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible Persons”) who the Board may in its
absolute discretion select to subscribe for such number of Shares as the
Board may determine at a subscription price determined in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Group and for such other purposes as the Board may
approve from time to time.
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R T 8l TR AR B B 488

Total number of Shares available under the Share Option
Scheme

ATERRIE B IR S TR H 8B B
RET AT BE B 1T VAR 1) B B & % /&5 20,503,590
& HERARFRARE BHBEBITRAE
2.46% o IRIEEEIRERT B 2 650 - MIARTTIE
BIREZITEE N SkmH BB BAHRmE
TEH A% o IRIRREEARE ST 8 2 (R FR S Bt 22 P
R_ZETRFNARBEMERMRIUE
17.03(13) RIA T BB AR TR 2 i 7e 45 5 - 1
RITHERERIE 2 TTHEEMRRHER 2L TS
AEEFE AT -RNFLAZ+HEE
adjusted in the following manner with effect from 20 July 2016: B

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 20,503,590 shares,
representing 2.46% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the date of this
report. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price
of and/or the number of Shares subject to the outstanding Share Options are
required to be adjusted as a result of the Rights Issue. In accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the supplementary guidance issued
by the Stock Exchange on 5 September 2005 regarding adjustment of share
options under Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules, the exercise price of and
the number of Shares subject to the outstanding Share Options have been

Before Adjustments After Adjustments
R A HEIE
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
subject to the subject to the

Exercise price

outstanding
Share Options

Exercise price

outstanding
Share Options

per Share BRER per Share BRER
Date of grant Bk ITERREZ Bk ITERREZ
=k TiEE 8 E 1TiE(E 8 E
HK$ HK$
BIT BIT
23 July 2009 —TENFLA=+=H 3.58 11,214,000 3.56 11,263,214
10 Oct 2011 —E——%+H/+H 2.68 7,200,000 2.67 7,231,599
22 May 2015 e S S S ) = |y L =) 8leZ0) 6,000,000 11.65 6,026,332
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Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Person in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1.0% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Persons and his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting and the number and
terms (including the subscription price) of such options being fixed before
such general meeting and other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.

Time of exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The Board is currently unable to determine such minimum
period. The date of grant of any particular option is the date on which the
offer relating to such option is duly accepted by the grantee in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the offer in whole or in part by the
grantee (or his personal representatives) before its expiry by giving notice
in writing to our Company stating that the option is to be exercised and the
number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised provided that the number
of Shares shall be equal to the size of a board lot for dealing in Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof. Such notice must be
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
the Shares in respect of which the notice is given. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from
the date of grant. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme by Shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.
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Price of Shares

The subscription price for a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of
the option) shall be such price as the Board shall determine, save that such
price must not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer to grant
option (provided that the new issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before the listing of the shares
where our Company has been listed for less than five business days as at
the date of offer to grant option); and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A
consideration of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of an offer of the grant
of an option.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event
no further option will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and options
granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

Apart from the Rights Issue disclosed above, there was no exercise of any
conversion or subscription rights under any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights issued or granted at any time by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2016.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 8 August 2014, the Company issued 930 units of 5% convertible bonds
due 8 August 2019 with a nominal value of RMB930,000,000. The Company
repurchased face value of RMB6,000,000 of CB for a consideration of
USD837,000 in 2015.
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The salient terms and conditions of the CB are as follows:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate

The Company shall pay an interest on the CB at 5.0% per annum.

Conversion price

The CB will be convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares at the
initial conversion price of HK$16.11 per share, subject to adjustments.
Amongst others, consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital distribution, rights issues of
shares or options over shares, rights issues of other securities, issues at
less than the current market price, other issues at less than the current
market price, modification of rights of conversion etc., other offers to
shareholders, change of control and other usual adjustment events.
The conversion price may not be reduced so that the conversion
shares would fall to be issued at a discount to their par value.

Maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased and cancelled,
the Company will redeem each of the CB at the US Dollar equivalent of
the RMB principal amount on 8 August 2019.

Redemption at the option of the Company
The Company may:

(1) Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to
the bondholders, at any time after 8 August 2017 but not less
than 14 days prior to the maturity date redeem the bonds in
whole but not in part at a redemption price at the US Dollar
equivalent of the RMB principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest to such date; provided that no such redemption
may be made unless the closing price of the shares (translated
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(v)

(vi)

into RMB at the RMB: HK$ fixed rate as set out in the terms and
conditions of the CB) for 20 out of 30 consecutive trading days
ending on a date which is no more than three stock exchange
business immediately prior to the date upon which notice of
such redemption is given, was at least 130%. of the conversion
price then in effect (translated into RMB at the RMB: HK$ fixed
rate as set out in the terms and conditions of the CB); or

Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 90 days’ notice
to the bondholders and the Trustee (which notice will be
irrevocable), the Company may at any time redeem all, but not
some only, of the bonds for the time being outstanding at the US
Dollar equivalent of the RMB principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest to such date provided that prior to the date of
such notice at least 90%. in RMB principal amount of the bonds
originally issued have already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

Redemption at the option of the holders

The Company will, at the option of the holder of any CB, redeem all
or some only of such holder's CB on 8 August 2017 at the US Dollar
equivalent of the RMB principal amount.

Redemption of delisting or change of control

Following the occurrence of a change of control (means when Mr.
Liu Hongwei cease for any reason to be the majority shareholder of
the Company or any other events lead to the significant change of
the ownership structure of that the Company, “Change of Control”)
or delisting of the Company (including suspension of trading of the
Shares on the stock exchange for a period equal to or more than
20 consecutive trading days) (the “Relevant Event”), the holder will
have the right to require the Company to redeem all, or but not some
only, of such holder’s CB at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date fixed for
redemption.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their respective associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any
rights or options to acquire Shares or debentures during the year ended
31 December 2016.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save for the Rights Issue disclosed above, the Company and its subsidiaries
did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of the Company during

the year.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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Company/name
of associated
corporation Number of Approximate %
Name AT HEE Capacity Type of interest shares of shareholding
i EEZE St SRR BRBEE IRER AT 9L
Mr. Liu Hongwei Company Interest of a controlled Long 305,858,750 36.67%
AT HESTHE ViN/NE] corporation ! A
RimEE !
Company Beneficial interest ? Long 1,386,056 0.17%
AT B2 RE
Sub-total: Long 307,244,806 36.84%
NEE RE
Mr. Sun Jinli Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,386,056 0.17%
Reliat ZAN/NG| ety ok RAE
Mr. Xie Wen Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,386,056 0.17%
# kA& /NG| Bt ? rA
Mr. Li Huizhong Company Beneficial interest 2 Long Nil Nil
FEHREE ZAN/NG| B 2 RAE i el
Mr. Wang Ching Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 120,526 0.01%
T RE&E RN Bt ? rA
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, ~ Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 241,053 0.03%
Simon PiN/NE] B 2 A
VDS v
Mr. Cheng Jinshu Company Beneficial interest ? Long 241,053 0.03%
BeikE /NG| Bt 2 rAE
Notes: M3 -

1l These 305,858,750 Shares are held by Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. whose share 1L¥
capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei. Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO.

2; Such interests represent the options of the Company held by the relevant 2

305,858,750 f% %7 B Strong Eagle Holdings
Ltd. % & - if1 B 4L 4 5t 4 % /& Strong Eagle
Holdings Ltd. B84 2 53% * iR IEFH R HE
Wl - BIAMEEERRARZERDTHESE

s -

ZE R AAMERITSENAR RIBAGE o
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, so far as the Directors are aware, save as disclosed
above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief executive
of the Company) who have interest or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each
of such persons’ interest in such securities, together with any options in
respect of such capital, were as follows:

Capacity/nature

FERRRIRG - 265 RE
FPHEERES

RZZE—RF+A=+—0  BESHE -
Bk EXXCHBEESN U AT ZOEB (AR
AEFEREIBTBRAR) RARARN KA
Bin - HE D REIMRIBEF LI GDIE
BHAFEMNBELMOERRIER - HIRIE
EH LB IRDIFE XV #REE 2 K 377 BB 2 1R XA
MARRWE 2 EHRIORE - HEEIERE
B R AT I R MEARREE A RAD
KB RAZBRERAE HRR 2 HAERIRAT
B10% A LHEm - AEZFEALEBRNZ
SBRHFEAERYE  EREAXERLAY
N2 (E IR T

Approximate %

Long/short of interest Number of shareholding
Shareholder position g4 of shares BRAERE LY
IR R 7ER Rt BRHEE Bt
Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. ! Long position Beneficial owner 305,858,750 36.67%

RE BEEBEAA

1. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. is owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Sun Jinli, Mr. Xie
Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi and Mr. Zhuo Jianming as to 53%, 15%, 13%, 10%, and 9%
respectively.

1. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. % Bl 1 £ 4T 4 5
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NON-COMPETITION

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is actual
or potential conflict in interest.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2016.

No contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by our controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2016.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No transactions as set out in the “Related party transactions” in note 40 to
the financial statements are subject to the reporting, announcement and/or
independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Byelaws,
or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Upon
the enquiry made by the Company all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 19 December 2008 with
terms of references adopted on 19 December 2008 in compliance with the
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the audit
committee are the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman
of the audit committee. The audit committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication between other directors, the external auditor and the internal
auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, external
and internal audits and such other financial and accounting matters as the
Board determines from time to time. The audit committee is to assist the
Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as may be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee has
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. For further details of the audit committee and other
committees of the Board, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” from pages 7 to 22.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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KEY FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The key financial and business performance indicators comprise profitability
trend and gearing ratio. Details of profitability analysis are shown in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report. Details
of gearing ratio analysis are shown in Note 44 (Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies) to the Financial Statements in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social governance
essential for creating a framework for motivating staff, and contributes to the
community in which we conduct our businesses and creating a sustainable
return to the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has implemented energy saving practices in its offices and
premises where applicable. The Group also plans to upgrade its air-
conditioning and electricity systems to achieve the energy saving and
provision of clear air to workplace where possible.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its long-term goals and development.
To maintain its brand competitiveness and market status, the Group
aims at delivering consistently high standards of quality in the service to
its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and procedures,
and members of the senior management are delegated with the continuing
responsibility to monitor adherence and compliance with all significant legal
and regulatory requirements. These policies and procedures are reviewed
regularly. As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material aspects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key stakeholders
which comprises employees, customers and shareholders.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Groups’ human resource management
is to reward and recognize performing staff by providing a competitive
remuneration package and implementing a sound performance appraisal
system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and
progression by appropriate training and providing opportunities within the
Group for career advancement.

Customers

The Group has the mission to provide excellent and creative customer service
whilst maintain our long-term profitability, business and asset growth. Various
means have been established to strength the communication between the
customers and the Group in the provision of quality customer service towards
market penetration and expansion.

Shareholders

One of our corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate value to
shareholders. The Group is poised to foster business developments for
achieving the sustainability of earnings growth and rewarding shareholders by
stable dividend payouts taking into account capital adequacy levels, liquidity
positions and business expansion needs of the Group.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited by
Ernst & Young which will retire, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
LIU Hongwei

Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B AZHEN RS

To the shareholders of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Singyes
Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 256, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

PSR EEIE

Accounting for convertible bonds
AJ R &5 ) B 5 FE

As at 31 December 2016, the convertible bonds issued in
2014 amounted to RMB719,216,000, which included the
liability component and conversion rights (the “Conversion
rights”). The liability component was subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method and the
Conversion Rights were accounted for as derivative financial
liabilities which were measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. During the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group recorded an amount of
RMB48,325,000 in fair value change in the Conversion Rights.
RZE—R"F+ZA=+—0 RZE—UFBT 28K
BEHFeBAAREKT719,216000T @ BIEAEIS LERKE
(TeiE]) - BEBD HEERERFEEZEEK AR
NRERBEERITESRMAEIE  BATEHE A TE
ZE—RFTZA=+—HLEFE -
EEESGERENTEZESEARE 48,325,000 °

The Group is required to reassess the fair value of the
Conversion Rights at each reporting period end date. The
valuation of the Conversion Rights is based on a valuation
model with inputs including discount rates and expected
share price volatility. We focused on this area because of the
significant judgement involved in determining these inputs of
the fair value of the Conversion Rights. Management engaged
an external valuation specialist to perform the valuation of the
Conversion Rights.
EEERNESERERRARASAEREL ATE - &
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The disclosures about the convertible bonds are included
in notes 2.4, 3, 29 and 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BRATIRRESNREBHI N GRE M EHREME24 329
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

P EREREEZPRINAEEN

Our audit procedures included:

BAEZIEF B

o assessing the objectivity, independence and competence
of the valuation expert;
FHEMEZSREOZEMN B REE

o involving our valuation specialist to assist us in reviewing
the valuation model and the unobservable inputs to the
model;
FEBMNEEZER BB MR EER RZER ST
AR ABUR

° evaluating the Group’s estimates of unobservable inputs
through understanding how they had been derived and
checking to the Group’s source data;

FHEE REHN AR R ABIRN R - AR TR
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o checking the consistency of application of the valuation
methodologies and related inputs; and

ZERMMETNEMBBEABRN—BUE - &

° assessing the related disclosures of convertible bonds in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

PR EEIE

Construction contract revenue recognition

BEE IR TR

The Group derived a significant portion of its revenues from
construction-type contracts that were accounted for by applying
the percentage-of-completion (POC) method. The POC method
involved the use of significant management’s judgement
and estimates including estimates of the progress towards
completion, the scope of deliveries and services required, total
contract cost, remaining costs to completion and total contract
revenues. In addition, revenue, cost and gross profit realised
on such contracts can vary from the Group’s original estimates
because of changes in conditions.
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The disclosures about construction contracts revenue
recognition are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BARESRBABERNBEESRTINGE W BREMTE24
3%2le

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

PAs B R IH B A P R I BE Y

Our audit procedures included:

BfIMEZIEF R

o assessing the controls over construction contract
revenue recognition, cost forecast and progress billing
process;

SIS R AR - KATER R ERSERIERE T
Bl

° reviewing the individually significant construction
contracts and the progress billings accepted by related

customers;
EHENERBRESRAUREBEEFERNEEEE
B

° checking significant cost incurred to the delivery and
acceptance notes signed by the customers;

BREINEENEARAAREFEZNEIRE |

° comparing the forecast results of each significant
contract to its actual results and assessing the historical
accuracy of forecast prepared by management;
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o discussing the progress of construction contracts with
project-in-charges;
HTREEAFNRREESRNELE

° recalculating the percentage of completion of the
significant construction contracts and the provision
required for the loss contracts;

BV EERAEESRAMNT LA LA REREEAR
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° performing physical inspection of the significant
constructions; and

HEANARTEHRE : &

o assessing the disclosures regarding the revenue
recognition of construction contracts in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Key audit matter

PASEEEIE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

JEWE 550 R B EAHE

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables amounting to
RMB3,122,110,000 were material to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The assessment of impairment provision
for trade receivables involved significant management’s
judgement including their assessment of customers’ financial
positions and expected future cash flows from customers.
RZE—RF+ZA=+—H0 ERBEZIRESTEARYK
3,122,110,000 THE LB 2 FE M BmMAM S EERX © UK
BOFENREREIHIRENEBENFE  BERS
SRR P RB IR R B P TR KRR SR -

The disclosures about the impairment assessment of trade
receivables are included in notes 3, 22 and 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BHERWE 5 IER B L IREEHT NGRS B SRR
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL

REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

P EREREEZPRINMAEEN

Our audit procedures included:

B EZEFEE
° checking the ageing analysis of accounts receivable by
customer;

ZEEF RBIRFE KRR DT

o checking the debtors’ historical payment patterns and
the bank receipts for the payment received subsequent
to year end;
ZEESANBAEN TR R FEEBRENT TR
FTHEE

° checking the evidence including correspondence with
the debtors for the latest progress of the outstanding
amounts and credit status of these debtors by performing
company search; and
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o assessing the disclosures about the Group’s exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Leung Wai Lap, Phillip.
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

29 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

relEmRAEMEERGER

Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFT ARETT
REVENUE 9N 4 5,239,564 4,182,049
Cost of sales SHE AR (4,104,854) (3,297,666)
Gross profit E7 1,134,710 884,383
Tariff adjustment EEFE 4 93,224 57,387
Other income and gains E A R 5 243,076 172,210
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAT (129,029) (108,290)
Administrative expenses THHEX (356,112) (385,984)
Other expenses X (15,984) (13,067)
Finance costs A& R AR 6 (368,028) (316,911)
Share of losses of associates PMEBE N REE (23,260) (5,944)
Fair value gains on conversion AR G5 E R
rights of convertible bonds B AT E MR 29(b) 48,325 163,586
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BaFL AT F 7 626,922 447,370
Income tax expense P s 10 (114,373) (89,924)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEEF 512,549 357,446
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS: Hith 2 HEESE :
Other comprehensive loss to be eRBERFEENSEE
reclassified to profit or loss in BamEMtMEmEEE
subsequent years:
Available-for-sale investments: AMEHERE

Changes in fair value NEEEE) - (5,228)




ZEAEER PRREXAGERMERER AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

melEmRkEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ =T —"F+-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFT ARETT
Other comprehensive loss not to be TERBERFESEHHE
reclassified to profit or loss in EERMEMEEERE
subsequent years:
Exchange differences on translation of HME SRR AE X Z 5
financial statements (82,218) (53,041)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS XEFHG2EEBE
FOR THE YEAR (82,218) (58,269)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEELEWESEE
FOR THE YEAR 430,331 299,177
Profit attributable to: AR AT &R
Owners of the Company PANNCIEZ SN 501,961 355,986
Non-controlling interests IR =S 10,588 1,460
512,549 357,446
Total comprehensive income attributable to: A T~ AT /E(E 2 EUREAE%E
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE 2N 419,743 297,717
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A A 10,588 1,460
430,331 299,177
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AAFEERESHEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF Bl SRR T
THE COMPANY
Basic HAK 12 RMBO0.661 RMB0.509
AR¥E0.6617T AR#0.5097C
Diluted e 12 RMBO0.659 RMB0.374
ARE0.6597C AR#0.374 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 December 2016 —ZE—X~"F+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARETR ARBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN =& 13 4,363,547 3,835,238
Investment properties REYHE 14 68,150 -
Prepaid land lease payments B R E A 15 203,001 96,136
Intangible assets B EE 16 3,105 3,486
Payments in advance B FIA 17 9,114 30,137
Investments in associates RIS N FIRE 18 11,126 (4,744)
Deferred tax assets FEEFIAE E 31 32,288 34,107
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 80,512 51,000
Pledged deposits TR 24 17,352 -
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 4,788,195 4,045,360
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories FE 20 182,600 93,171
Construction contracts BEAR 21 710,543 927,498
Trade and bills receivables FEUWE 5508 & eI R IR 22 3,373,065 2,292,195
Prepayments, deposits and ERRE - FJek
other receivables H b fEYGRIE 23 871,083 652,390
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 27 22,961 -
Pledged deposits BTN 24 365,879 376,055
Cash and cash equivalents B MREEED 24 680,205 1,265,303
Total current assets mEEERE 6,206,336 5,606,612
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENAfE
Trade and bills payables RN B 5508 RE N RIE 25 1,345,952 903,503
Other payables and accruals H b e I R e AT SR 26 510,622 331,289
Bank advances for discounted bills BRI 2 IR1TE R 41(a) 144,949 251,699
Interest-bearing bank and other loans M B ERIT R EME R 28 1,148,300 1,040,777
Tax payable FEETIS B 21,939 12,747
Senior notes BEZR 30 554,211 o
Total current liabilities mENB B 3,725,973 2,540,015




ZEAEER PRREXAGERMERER AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 December 2016 —ZE—X~"F+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—B—RE —E—RHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PiEE ARETR AREFTT
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 2,480,363 3,066,597
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEAERREEE
LIABILITIES 7,268,558 7,111,957
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERE
Convertible bonds AR E A 29 719,216 697,569
Senior notes BEEE 30 216,792 746,692
Interest-bearing bank and other loans M BERIT R EMER 28 1,769,970 1,541,906
Deferred tax liabilities FEREFIEAE 31 86,860 86,860
Deferred income IRIE Wz 32 271,470 537,807
Total non-current liabilities IR A G 3,064,308 3,610,834
Net assets BEZHE 4,204,250 3,501,123
EQUITY S
Equity attributable to owners AAT R N EGHES
of the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 33 55,785 46,443
Reserves B 35 4,086,037 3,378,179
4,141,822 3,424,622
Non-controlling interests e R 62,428 76,501
Total equity LA 4,204,250 3,501,123
Mr. Liu Hongwei Mr. Xie Wen
Bal kA Bk
Director Director
2 EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEREBHE

Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN 2PN
Difference
Available- arising from
for-sale Safely change
investment fund of non-
Share revaluation  Statutory  Enterprise Share surplus— Exchange controlling Non-
Issued ~ premium reserve* feserve  expansion opfion ~reseve™ fluctuation interests™ controlling
capital  account*  Contributed g fund* fund*  resene* 7% resere’  Refaled  FFERER inferests Total
BEf1 B osupst  HERE T % ERE EeR% Ei  opoft BEEL Total Fik equiy
Br BER SAER EREE REES:  BRED: i B RBEE REER 2R 5] En  EafE
RMBOO0 RMBOO0 ~ RMBO00 ~ RMBOO0  RMB0O0  RMBOODO ~ RMB0O0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBO00O
ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARRTR \RETR ARETR
(note 33) (nofe 35(a))  (note 35(b)) ~ (note 35(c)  (note 35(d))
(333) (HisE3ola))  (HisE3o(o)) (MsE3olc))  (Hisk36(a))
At 1 January 2015 RZ%-15-5-A 46466 641869 10480 - 1M 59834 21847 - (12%0) 2222421 1021 313996 606 314059
Profitfo the year RERET - - - - - - - - - 3596 - 5% 1460 357446
Other comprehensive oss forthe year: ~ AEEEH2HER
Changes in fair vaue of avalable- TRLERENATE
forsale investmens, net of tax 25 NhiE - - - 62 - - - - - - - 6 - B
Exchange differences on HENBRRNELZE
translation of financial statements - - - - - - - - (53,041) - - (53,041) - (53,041)
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEF2ENAEE - - - 62 - - - - (304) 3596 -9 1460 29177
Acquistion of non-controling LetiEING )
interests of subsiaries SHEs - - - - - - - - - - (551) (551 (457 3B1)
Shares repurchased EER (87) (490 - - - - - - - - - (06 - 606
Evercise of share opfons fEEkiE B 2488 - - - - - - - - - 2532 - 253
Transfer of share option resenve upon ~ 17(EEE IR ET%
the exercise of share opfions EfRERE -l - - - - (1,207) - - - - - - -
Equity-setfled share opfion nisERkERE
arrangements (nofe 34) (Mz4) - - = 5 - - 104 - - - 1041 - 0415
Transfer from retained profits SYEREER - - S - 4088 2150 B = - (6868 - - - -
Transfer to contrbuted surplus SYTH)\BE - (60000 60000 S = = = = = B = 3 - -
Debt-for-equity conversion EhEnEEL = = : < = ~ = = = = = - B0 B0
Caplal contribution from HBAREER
non-controling Shareholders L
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 20013 2013 80987 110,000
Establishment for safety fund RURRESEHRE
surplus resenve = - > = - - - #3163 - B8y - - - -
Utlisaton of safety fund surplus reserve. B %2 ¢ BEAEE = = = = B = - B8 - 816 = = z z
Final 2014 dividend declared BER-T-DMERERE - - (49423 = & = - > 3 = - (49423 - (49423
At 31 December 2015 RoE-RET-AZT-H 46443 580,964 21,057 (5,208 181380 81428 34,055 - (4 2509731 20483 3424622 76501 3501123
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

v/ * i \ b= Eb %‘%

Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ =T —"F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRRARL
Difference
Available- arising from
forsale Safety change
investment fund of non-
Share revaluation  Statutory ~ Enterprise Share surplus— Exchange controlling Non-
Issued ~ premium reserve* Teserve  expansion option reseve*  fluctuation interests* controlling
capital  account*  Contributed T fund* fnd*  reserve* R2 resenet  Retained  FHERER interests Total

g¥ Bl osupst  HERE fivd b BRE 2eER Ei o opoftt SEHEE Tt FER equity
Rt BER SARR: EGEE BEES BRES B G REGE  RERN 28 &5t ]
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETL ARMTR ARETR  ARETR ARMTR ARRTR ARBTR ARMTR ARBIR AREFR ARETR

(note 33) (note 35(a)) - (note 35(b))  (note 35(c))  (note 35(d))
(& 33) (et 35()) (WaE3s(h) (RE3sie)) (M35l

At 1 January 2016 R-F-75-F-R 46,443 580,564 21,057 (5,228) 181,380 81428 34,055 - (54,291) 2,509,731 29483 3424622 76,501 3,501,123
Profitfor the year TERET - - - - - - - - - 500,961 - 501961 10588 512549
Other comprehensive loss orthe year: ~ RSB A2 EHE:

Exchange diffrences on HENERRNELZE

ranslation of financial statements - - - - - - - - (82218 - - (82218 - (82218

Total comprehensive income for the year  AEE2EHAAE - - - - - - - - (82218) 501,961 - 419743 10588 430331
Acquistion of non-contrling B BB LA

interests of a Subsiary FihEa - - - - - - - - - - (872 (8722 (31,278) (40,000
Transfer fiom retained profis SYERBER - - - - 340 11723 - - - 4913 - - - -
Issue of shares (note 33) HIRG(HER) 9342 302,071 - - - - - - - - - 31413 - 311413
Share isste expenses (note 33) ki RE) - (681 - - - - - - - - - B8 - (581
Equity-setled share opfion RasEERERE

arrangemens note 34) (Fz4) - - - = = -1 - - - - um - um
Capial contribution from WRARFER

non-controling Shareholders fhRaE

of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 6,279 6,279 6,617 12,896
Establishment for safety fund RURRELEHRE

surplus reserve - - - - - - - 68,077 - (68,077) - - - -
Utiisaton of safety fund surplus resenve. - BF %2 E¢BREE - - - - - - - (68070 - 680T - = s =
Fingl 2015 dividend declared BER-T-RERERS - - (17469) = - - - - - - - (17469) - (17469
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+-AZt-H 55785 8763818 3,588 (5,228) 218,790 93,151 45,828 - (136,509) 2,962,559 27,040 4141822 62,428 4,204,250
2 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of ¥ REAMBRARA - ZERERRERS

RMB4,086,037,000 (2015: RMB3,378,179,000) in the consolidated statement & AR ¥ 4,086,037,000L(ZE—RHEF :

of financial position. AFR#3,378,179,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
an\ EE%UILE%%

Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFT ARBET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING FETDHEENBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax FR B RT3 A 626,922 447,370
Adjustments for: PATIEE fEL A% -
Depreciation of property, plant V¥ - REREEBITE
and equipment 13 151,275 134,489
Depreciation of investment properties REMENE 14 557 -
Amortisation of prepaid land TENT AR SRR B
lease payments 15 2,133 2,252
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EE 16 936 1,013
Impairment loss on trade receivables EWE 5 F B RIEE S 22 21,390 26,771
Impairment loss on other receivables HAth EYGRIE R B & 18 - 2,485
Impairment loss on goodwill Pé'ﬁﬁi)ﬁi{é}éﬂ% - 9,783
Share of losses of associates PaN(=Y:c /NIl SEi=| 18 23,260 5,944
Loss on settlement of ,\uﬁf/ﬂ_t._i BT H
derivative financial instruments R E1E 6,960 4813
Transaction costs related to BN B ARG W
listing shares of a subsidiary HIZZ Z KA 9,696 -
Fair value gains on derivative PTESBMT AN
financial instruments NFERZE 27 (22,961) -
Fair value gains on conversion rights of AR E S R
convertible bonds NFEEWEE 29(b) (48,325) (163,586)
Equity-settled share option expense MR GEE R S 34 11,773 10,415
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEME - WEMEE
plant and equipment I8 B M Uas 5 (146,002) (12,332)
Unrealised foreign exchange REIRINE (B518) Was
(losses)/gains, net HRE (4,888) 6,284
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FNBARIZER 36 8 -
Interest income from available-for-sale A EEFTAR
debt instruments FEWA 5 (1,413) -
Interest income .8 HﬂU\ 5 (26,066) (44,948)
Deferred income released to profit or loss  B$EEZERYEILIL A 5 (19,830) (77,190)
Finance costs A& R A 6 368,028 316,911
953,453 670,474
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, () (89,429) 21,415
Decrease/(increase) in construction BEARRL, ()
contracts 216,955 (632,583)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FENE 5 508 I fE W R BRI hn (1,088,094) (122,445)
Increase in prepayments, deposits ?ﬁﬁﬁw\ - Bl RE A RELR
and other receivables IE—i‘jJD (198,978) (131,895)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and TEH"’% IEEUEH:RT){*
bills payables #h0, O 442,449 (384,923)
Increase/(decrease) in other ﬁ{mﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ
payables and accruals #n, Od) 43,086 (17,046)
Income tax paid BT FTEE (103,362) (96,893)
Net cash flows from/(used in) e EREES (FTA)M
operating activities HeREFRE 176,080 (693,896)




ZENFFR PEEE RS R E R A
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
n‘/-.r\ IE@U“}E%
Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ =T —"F+-A=+—HILFE
2016 2015
—E—RF —T—HF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREBTR AREETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REGTBHEEHRSRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, EEME BMEMREEE
plant and equipment (949,294) (436,661)
Purchase of intangible assets BEBEEE (593) (2,905)
Payment for prepaid land lease payments  Ft¥EN + AR E FKIE 2 3% (109,498) (19,644)
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling LU ES — IR & & B FFH% A%
interests of a subsidiary W2 R (40,000) (42,923)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —FE RS B A A - 3,533
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets  H&E &L EE 2 FrE5I8 51 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR 64,701 25,938
Purchase of available-for-sale investments ~ BBE At HE®RE (27,243) (43,234)
Purchase of equity interest in an associate B E — B & A A B AE S (39,130) (1,200)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE - HELRFHEER
plant and equipment LTS RE 146,528 63,005
Settlement of derivative financial instruments 4&& 74 % V‘EIH (6,960) (7,855)
Receipt from maturity of pledged deposits 1877 7 2| HAFT 15 208 1,186,542 1,468,242
Placement of pledged deposits FAB TR (1,193,718) (1,343,970)
Unrefundable deposits received for sale HENTE A R ATUCA AT R [E]
of subsidiaries HES 22,434 -
Interest received BT & 10,781 18,168
Interest income from available-for-sale A EEFETA
debt instruments B BUA 1,413 -
Receipt of government grants related AT R B 2 AR A O IER T 4 B
to assets 888 175,724
Net cash flows used in investing activities & ZEBFTAMIR S REF 5 (933,098) (143,782)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETHELANELSRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN TS RA 311,413 =
Share issue expenses BITRMH X (5,817) -
Net proceeds from issue of senior notes BITERARBGREFE - 182,492
Payment for repurchase of BRI ES 2K
convertible bonds - (5,297)
Repurchase of shares fE B A% 1D - (5,067)
Capital contribution from non-controlling B A EFEER
shareholders of a subsidiary R E 12,896 110,000
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1T RS AR AT 1S SR - 2,532
Payment of transaction costs related to EBMB ARG EHH
listing shares of a subsidiary R 2R (9,552) -
Proceeds from bank and other loans IRIT M EME RIS RIE 1,419,822 2,220,649
Repayment of bank and other loans BERITREMER (1,168,823) (1,070,347)
Proceeds from bank advances ARIR IR IRTTE R PTS IR
for discounted bills 144,949 251,699
Repayment of bank advances AR EIRIRTTER CEE
for discounted bills (251,699) (184,378)
Payment of other financing costs ST E MR E R A (9,459) (4,989)
Dividends paid BEAARE (17,469) (49,423)
Interest paid ERFE (259,355) (245,332)
Net cash flows from financing activities BEEHELENRSREFH 166,906 1,202,539
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
an\ EE@UILE%%

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ= T —

NEFTZA=+—HBLFE

2016 2015
—B—RE — R4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B sE ARETT AREFTT
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH HERFEZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (BY)  inigssE (590,112) 364,861
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzRe RS EEY
beginning of year 1,265,303 897,473
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EXRESHHTLE  FH
changes, net 5,014 2,969
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZEEREEZEEY
AT END OF YEAR 680,205 1,265,303
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND IR&RIR&ZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS e
Cash and bank balances Be KIRITETF 24 680,205 1,265,303




“E-REFER hEEERGRERMTER AR AR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR AR MY 5T

31 December 2016 —ZE—X~"F+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 24 October 2003. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located
at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Center,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the design,
manufacture, supply and installation of conventional curtain walls
and building integrated solar photovoltaic systems, as well as the
manufacture and sale of solar power products. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Strong Eagle Holdings Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

1.

AT REEEH

B B 3 K (5 B B AT AR B BR 2 =) (TR
ARADRZZEZ=F+A=Z+EARE
REFMK AEREERETAR -
AN B] ) FE AT 9% 35 B 3 1k 7% Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda ° AR Al B4 iy
MNEBTHIET 168-2005k Z1=HR 018
ERAEI31#E3108F °

FA - AR REMBAR (FES [
SEDTIEREFGRERRKGREL
RE-RIERGR & HER
R URKGRERBENFE - F
N AEETEXEBOMEEL EEAE

EERR ARAINE QA R&RE
IR B R 558 B 2 BF & 5T B S Y
Strong Eagle Holdings Limited °
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31 December 2016 —Z—XF+-A=+—8

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ATRREESEH(E)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries BRMBATIZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: AREEEMB AR ZFBAT
Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation/ Nominal interests
registration and value of attributable to
business paid-up the Company  Principal
Name B3l share capital KRATIFEN  activities
& BAREEME BERFEE EHEs EEEH
%
Directly held:
HERH:
Singyes Engineering Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Design,
(H.K.) Co., Ltd. BB BT supply and
(“Singyes Engineering”) installation of
FREETIEBRAR curtain walls
(THXTRE]) Hat - HhRE
RZEEE
Indirectly held:
R
Macao Singyes Renewable Energy Macau - 100%  Design,
Technology Co., Ltd. JBFT supply and
(“Macao Singyes”) installation of
RPTEEIRE R ER AR curtain walls
(DRFIEE ) RET - HIE
RZEELE
Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Mainland China us$ 100%  Design,
Technology Co., Ltd.® EalEipN 49,000,000 manufacture,
(“Zhuhai Singyes”) 49,000,000% 7T supply and

WEERZEREMREBRAR®
([3RBEE )

installation of

curtain walls and

solar photovoltaic

power stations
#ot s

B R ZERIE R

ARBREH R E IS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—8

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AT REEEH (B)

AEAMBATZEH ()

AREEEZMBARZFBEWT : (B)

(Continued)
Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation/ Nominal interests
registration and value of attributable to
business paid-up the Company  Principal
Name ML share capital KATIEME  activities
&% TR REEE HERFEE EnEstt BB
%
Indirectly held: (continued)
EiERE : (B)
Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Mainland China Us$ 100%  Design,
Energy Co., Ltd.® B AR 28,125,000 manufacture,
(“Singyes Renewable Energy”) 28,125,000 37T supply and
WEEEMRER AR BRAFO installation of
(E:==ir- ) solar photovoltaic
power stations
Rat o BlE
HERZE
YNGRV
Zhuhai Singyes Xinye Electricity Mainland China RMB 100%  Development of
Technology Co., Ltd.® B AR 20,000,000 new energy
(“Singyes Xinye”) AR 20,000,000 7T materials, and
HWEEXBENRBAERARO development of
(IB£E5)) marine biology
technology
FEETRERM R R
B8 T
Zhuhai Singyes Applicable Mainland China RMB 100%  Research,
Materials Co., Ltd.® R B AR 62,500,000 manufacture
(“Singyes Applicable Materials”) AR™ 62,500,000 70 and sale of

WeERERAMHMEERAR®
([ ])

photovoltaic film
o BER
HERINEE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

AT REKEEH (B)

AEFAMBATZEH ()

ARREEZMBRARZFBEWT : (B)

Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation/ Nominal interests
registration and value of attributable to
business paid-up the Company  Principal
Name MR share capital KATIMEM  activities
&% B REENE HEBRAEE EEEstt BB
%

Indirectly held: (continued)

EERE  (B)

Hunan Singyes Solar Mainland China RMB 100%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd. AR ERRE 410,143,000 development,
(“Hunan Singyes”) AR 410,143,000 7T manufacture and

HEEERGERRERAR sale of solar
([ E]) products

W B 2ER
HEKGREER

Singyes Energy-saving Mainland China us$ 100%  Research and
Technologies Co., Ltd.® B AR 65,000,000 development of
(“Singyes Energy-saving”) 65,000,000 37T energy-saving

B R BR AR © products
([ HRE ) MERAEEEER

Xinjiang Singyes Renewable Energy Mainland China RMB 94.9%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd©@ lEiy N 438,270,000 design and
(“Xinjiang Singyes”) AR 438 270,000 7T investment of

FBEERALRARAF O

([FrsES )

solar power projects
B~ AR
HEKRZEEIEE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ASIREEEHE (E)

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

AEAMBATZEH ()

AREEEZMBARZFBEWT : (B)

Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation/ Nominal interests
registration and value of attributable to
business paid-up the Company  Principal
Name ML share capital KATIEME  activities
&% TR REEE HERFEE EnEstt BB
%
Indirectly held: (continued)
m#ERE  (B)
Hunan Singyes Green Energy Co., Ltd.”  Mainland China RMB 949%  Research
(“Hunan Green Energy”) ey N 912,000,000 and development
R EEZERRROARAT AR #912,000,000 7T of electricity and
(MHms el new energy
MELFAEBNR
¥EER
Gansu Singyes Green Energy Mainland China RMB 949%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd. B KR 74,000,000 construction and
(“Gansu Singyes”) AR 74,000,000 7T operation of solar
HEAZG O RREARAT power stations
(TH@Ex]) - BR
YN
Wuwei Dongrun Solar Energy Mainland China RMB 94.9%  Research,
Development Co., Ltd. ©© AR KRE 5,000,000 construction and
(“Wuwei Dongrun”) AR 5,000,000 7T operation of solar
REREAGERAEERAF 0O power stations
(MR BRE]) MR - ER
KN EIEN
Gansu Singyes Solar Mainland China RMB 100%  Research,
Technologies Co., Ltd. AR A B 20,000,000 development,
(“Gansu Technologies”) AR 20,000,000 7T manufacture
HEBEEEAGEREERAR and sale of

(TH&RR)

solar products
My - FE - HER
HEAGEER
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ASIREEEHE(E)

(Continued)
HHAMBATIZER (B)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

ARREEZMBRARZFBEWT : (B)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation/ Nominal interests
registration and value of attributable to
business paid-up the Company  Principal
Name MR share capital KATIMEM  activities
& BRI RERME HRERAEE EEalt EEEH
%

Indirectly held: (continued)

EERE  (B)

Yangjiang Singyes Green Energy Mainland China RMB 94.9%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd. © LBy 184,080,000 design and
(“Yangjiang Singyes”) AR 184,080,0007T investment of

BIEEGERERBARAR® solar power projects
([FBIEE]) M - Btk

BEKGHEER

Yangjiang Huazhi Green Energy Mainland China RMB 94.9%  Research,
Technology Co., Ltd. B KR 171,623,019 design and
(“Yangjiang Huazhi”) AR# 171,623,019 investment of

BIERGEERERRARAR solar power projects
(IR ]) M - Btk

REKGEIAR

Suixi Xinye Photovoltaic Mainland China - 94.9%  Research,

Electricity Co., Ltd.© AR A B design and

(“Suixi Xinye")

EEBMESNETFARAFC

(MEEME])

investment of

solar power projects
M - Rtk

BB K5 E
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

Notes:

(a) These subsidiaries were registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprises under PRC law.

(b) These subsidiaries were registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under PRC law.

(c) As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s equity interests in these
companies were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank loans of
RMB954,637,000.

(d) On 2 September 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Excel Deal Investment Limited to sell 81% equity
interests in Xinjiang Singyes and Wuwei Dongrun (together as the “Target
Subsidiaries”) for a total consideration of HK$861,000,000. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has received deposits
of HK$25,080,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB22,434,000) in
relation to the sale of equity interests in the Target Subsidiaries. The
transaction is conditional upon fulfilment of certain conditions precedent
set out in the relevant conditional sale and purchase agreement.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries has material non-controlling interests.

—NEFR PR ARG RITER AR AT

AT REEEH ()

AEAMBATZEH ()

AREEEZMBARZFBEWT : (B)

GEX

() ZEMBRARRESEERZTMAT
SIMEBEDRE -

(b)  ZEMEARREDBEIEEFEM A
BEEDE -

(c) RZB—RNFT+ZA=+—0 %%
ERZERBNRAEDECEM - F
7%$$|§/\EM9546370007EE’]§E
TTERERS -

d RZF-R"EALAZR AEEHREF
EREBRAFBLEERS - UK
# X B 861,000,000 JT Hi & ¥ 58 8
ERBARE(SREATERMELR
ADM8I%E - REE—F— X
FH+ZRA=+—HLEFE A58
EtHE B RME QR RAKDR
£ 25,080,000/ T (HERHDARE
22,434,0007T) © XS AFEKIER
BREEERZEARI 2B TRAG
& > TEHEE o

ERINTEEMBA/IBFEAKESF
BEENBRAEEEEFEERID
ARRIMBAR - EERA Tﬂﬁ,\
M BRRZFEREHFES

Eo

BRI R R A AR A o
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 RREH

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and International Accounting Standards
(“1ASs”) and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee that
remain in effect and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments, conversion
rights of convertible bonds, and certain available-for-sale investments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2016. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

AP BRERNBHELERERITERE
28 (R RE R ) - EP e
RERE LR ES ([ER e ER
BEE])HENERRREREBEK
SRR S eiE B MR EER
S EA(TERGHEL ) REBKR
BZEenRBREB QRN IE
B o REMB IR TR L K AME R
mE EITESRIA  ATRREST
B R A SR EE TRAFER
B - BRAATHIN  AEMBHRHUA
RE (AR 2REMEEEDTE
AAEREAH TR ©

FAMBRREBEARBREMBAR
RBE-ZT—R"E+-_A=1+—BL#F
EOMBE®mE - HEBRARARNRREE
HEEEFINER - EAKREH2EE
BHSREBNIPOREAERRRES
HERMIAREEFE BEIRE B RHE N (I
AEEERTRAENNTEREY
FAMBASHNEIFREN) FEZZ LR
iy BIERISHR B -

AR R ERLREERER I RREHR
RZBURR XA LER ER) - AIARE
ERFHEERHEHREHRIEN
BeZE—HEEERIER 81 :

() BEREHREMREFRAEANAG
I

(b) EMENRBPIELNERN &

() BREENKREENRBEERSTE -
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

—=

=

—NEFR PR ARG RITER AR AT

2.1 WBEE(E)

HERE(E

ME A RMNMERRDIREARFRER
RIS IR A — SR BORRH - KB
NAFEAAKE IS HIEZ AR
BAR - URESGE AREER LR
TR B AL

BEakHEMEERENRIRERBAEE
SRREAA RIS - AE%E
REGHOFERE R AR IR EAL -
AEEKERARANZ ZHEBOMEE
BREENRAE - BRHE - W Xk
REMERER S AR 20 -

68 F 8 RIERBR EXFrat =18 5
AEPA-AXZBELBRE - RIAE
EeERFEERREREHRERE
- MM B AR A EERDIRE
b ERBRKESE - BIEARIIE

W25 -

il A S [ 2k = 3 — R T B 8 R RO 4% )
R RIEIERR () ZMBARMNEE
(BREEE) RAE - () EMFHERER
) B T {1 B (i) IO A 2 D RE B O R AT I
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 ERBURE B RIKE
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for RAFEHNTFEREP - AEEH AR
the current year’s financial statements. TS TR B A R 5 22 R o
Amendments to Investment Entities: BIRMBREEAE 0% RETE BFHEE
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and Applying the Consolidation Exception BRIERERIZE 2RE
IAS 28 AREHEAIE 283 L
Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of ERBREENE LRET AERRLSERY
Interests in Joint Operations BiRE
Amendments to 1AS 1 Disclosure Initiative BR e ElE 1 56T RERH
Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods BIG e ERE 6% R TROINEREHTE
and IAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation BeIERIEISTET  AFE
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants Gil=Hp I BE . LEIREY
and I1AS 41 AR EaIEARET
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate BReERETRE]  BUIERRPOED S
Financial Statements
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs ZE-CEECE-mE SEERIBREENN
2012-2014 Cycle BEBFENE 31
The adoption of the above revised standards has had no significant AN bt S BT HE R0 8 52 B IS 1R

financial effect on these financial statements. RELERNERTHFE -
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.3 EfE#1E s R E NI EPREL

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS9
Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 40
IFRIC 22

IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Annual Improvements

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment Transactions®
Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?
Sale or Contribution of

Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture*
Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue

from Contracts with Customers?

Transfers of Investment Property?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration?

Leases®

Disclosure Initiative !

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses!

Amendments to IFRS 12!

2014-2016 Cycle
Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 12
2014-2016 Cycle
Annual Improvements Amendments to IAS 282
2014-2016 Cycle
i, Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

# No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

B
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.3 EfE#1E i) R E NI EPREL

(Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016 that address
three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement
of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification
of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features
for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax
obligation associated with the share-based payment; and accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment transaction changes its classification from cash-settled to
equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the approach used to
account for vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled share-
based payments also applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based
payment transaction with net share settlement features for withholding
a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified, with the result that
it becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the
date of the modification. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace IAS
39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. The Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have an
impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets. Further information about the impact will be available nearer
the implementation date of the standard.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and
a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for application now.
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2.3 EMEMIE R ERBIEFRE
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.3 EfE#1E i) R E NI EPREL

(Continued)

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRSs. In April 2016, the IASB issued
amendments to IFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more consistent
application when entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt IFRS
15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of IFRS
15 upon adoption.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives
and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The
standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of
low-value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property in IAS 40. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and
the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also
be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of
certain events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the
amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS
17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently
assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon adoption.
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2.3 EMEMIE R ERBIEFRE
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.3 EfE#1E i) R E NI EPREL

(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will result in
additional disclosure to be provided in the financial statements. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments, certain
available-for-sale investments and conversion rights of convertible
bonds at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHREME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, construction
contract assets , financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is

credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TEEBERBE (B)
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties FHER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: EUATERT - — AR AEAEER
RaE
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family (@) BEAFA—RBZALTEZALZE
and that person: FREEYREKE » Mz AL :

() has control or joint control over the Group; (i) el sk H Rl AR E

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i HAEEBERFE K

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) AAEESASETARN
Group or of a parent of the Group; FEEBABMESR—FK

g8
or B4
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) ZABREBMTE NIER—IA
applies: 154 -
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZEREASEBR—5E
ZKERF]

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (il ZEBRE —REBAEE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the ANEIHEERE (B K
other entity): ERNSNGE) - HBARH

BREHBAR)

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (i) ZEREANEEHAER—F
third party; ZHHAEDRE

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (iv) ZEBAFE=-FEEMNAE
entity is an associate of the third entity; T ME—XELBAAZ

F=FEBHBEAT
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced as intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value (nil
to 5% of cost) over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Land and buildings 50 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment and furniture 3-5 years

Solar photovoltaic power stations 25 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for any
impairment in value. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off the cost of investment property to its residual value
over its estimated useful life of 50 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHREME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the costs of the item can be measured
reliably; otherwise, the expenditures are recognised in profit or loss in
the year in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, the transfer does not change
the carrying amount of the property transferred, nor does it change the
cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be
highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a
disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether
the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as held
for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Software purchased is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Operating rights represent rights to operate solar power water heating
systems granted by certain schools and are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 7 to 10 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TEEBERBE (B)

POLICIES (Continued)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-

line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

EERY

NEERGENRARD @R KRR
BHBARBNELY  BIERLEHE
#) o MASBAHEA  AEBEREL
EHERHCBEFASERBEE - M
RELEHERKZHSRBEERNE
OEFTABER o WARERABEA
RIpEEENNENESENR A LHE
ARBEAHSEER - RERER
HEMARIEE AL -

REMPATHRN T REFRE L
IABCASIE - HIgABESENEEER

e

EHEREREN T RIETF 2 HA] 5
DB - BENHEEFETHERYE - K
FEhRiEzMERY  sTALRET
ZRRA ©

RERHMERIEE
VIR TR R AT B

CREENTERABDEREATE
SAABRZEREE ERRBWFR
EAfthESRRE (MEE) - «RE
EVRERE - DIRATEM EKES
BMEERENIZUAE  ERQF
Bt ABEZ SREBERSI



“E-REFER hEEERGRERMTER AR AR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2016 —ZE—X~"F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBREE ()

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBREE ()

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss

in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity investments and other financial investments.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Other financial investments in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other
expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount
is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the assets. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHREME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,

recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBREE ()

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in profit
or loss - is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBREE ()

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and borrowings,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
Costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, derivative financial instruments, bank advances for
discounted bills, convertible bonds, senior notes and interest-bearing
bank and other loans.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings (including senior notes)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHREME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities(Continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both a
liability and embedded derivatives are classified separately into these
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion rights that will
be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
other financial assets for a fixed number of the Company’s shares
are derivative financial liabilities, which are bifurcated from the
host contract and are accounted for separately. Redemption rights,
conditional call options and put options which are closely related to the
host contract are accounted for together with the host contract as a
liability component.

At the date of issue of the convertible bonds, the derivative component
of the convertible bonds is measured at fair value and presented as
part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component is recognised
as the liability component. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and derivative components of the convertible bonds based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative components
when the instruments are initially recognised. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component is recognised
initially as part of the liability. The portion relating to the derivative
component is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Conversion options accounted for as derivative financial liabilities are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TEEFBEREE (8)
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities(Continued) LA’ (E)
Convertible bonds (Continued) AJ AR (EZ ()
The liability component and the related embedded derivative of the BRIERT AR B A SRR+ =8 A B 8
convertible bonds are presented as a separate line item on the face of Al ERAAER - SRITTRKRESD
the statement of financial position under non-current liabilities, unless BEHS RABRAXITETAEENS
the convertible bonds become mature or redeemable by the holder in MRAKRFIERBDEETDHEZT -

the next twelve months.

If the bonds are converted, the respective conversion options MEHEELR  (EATESRARETER
accounted for as derivative financial liabilities, together with the S EREER B EIH D NERENER
carrying value of the liability component at the time of conversion, are HEERAEEITROMNREE ARARR
transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration for [ m E o

the shares issued.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate
swaps and cross-currency interest rate swap, to hedge its interest rate
risk and foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHRME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBREE ()

]

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill on an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(a)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b)  from construction contracts, on the percentage of completion
basis, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Construction contracts” below;

(c)  from sales of electricity, is recognised in the accounting period
when electricity is generated and transmitted.

(d) from tariff adjustment which represents subsidies received
and receivable from the government authorities in respect of
the Group’s solar power plant business. Tariff adjustment is
recognised at its fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the additional tariff will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions, if any.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

(e)  from the rendering of services, when the services are rendered.

(f) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the
costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the
relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management. Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
treated as an amount due from contract customers. Where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to
contract customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 FEEFTBOREE (/8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless
there are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local government. These subsidiaries and their employees are
required to make monthly contributions calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ wages and salaries, subject to certain ceilings and
local practices set by the relevant local governments, to the central
pension scheme. Other than the central pension scheme, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China have no legal obligation for retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. Contributions to these plans
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre are charged to profit or loss
as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBHREME (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB. The functional
currency of the Company is HK$. The Company’s presentation
currency is RMB because the Group’s principal operations are carried
out in Mainland China. Each entity in the Group determines its own,
functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain companies within the Group are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their profits or losses are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EEEFHHETRMEST(E)

il

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Judgements (Continued)
Operating lease commitments-Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased out on operating
leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or
leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Percentage of completion of construction contract work

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of individual contracts of construction work, which requires
estimation to be made by management. The stage of completion
is estimated by reference to the actual costs incurred over the total
budgeted costs, and the corresponding contract revenue is also
estimated by management. Due to the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the activity is entered
into and the date at which the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. Hence, the Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the budget
prepared for each contract as the contract progresses. Where the
actual contract revenue is less than expected or actual contract costs
are more than expected, an expected loss may arise. No expected
loss was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB1,486,000).

Corporate income tax (“CIT”")

The Group’s operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) CIT. As a result of the
fact that certain matters relating to PRC CIT have not been confirmed
by the relevant local tax authorities, objective estimates based on
currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies are
required in determining the provision for PRC CIT to be made. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
originally recorded, the differences will impact the income tax and
tax provision in the period in which the final outcome is determined.
The carrying amount of PRC CIT payable at 31 December 2016 was
RMB20,739,000 (2015: RMB11,348,000).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EEEFHHET A& (B)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of receivables

The provision policy for impairment of receivables of the Group is based
on ongoing assessment of the recoverability and the aged analysis
of the outstanding receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of those receivables, including the creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of the customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances
might be required. At 31 December 2016, impairment provision for
trade receivables and other receivables amounted to approximately
RMB48,817,000 and RMB4,578,000 (2015: RMB27,427,000 and
RMB4,578,000), respectively. Further details are given in notes 22 and
23 to the financial statements, respectively.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant, equipment and
investment properties

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant, equipment and investment properties, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in production, or from a change in
the market demand for the product or service output of the asset,
expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the
care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based
on the experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. The depreciation amount will be adjusted if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each financial year end date taking into
account changes in circumstances.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EFEEFHHET REST (EB)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets with definite lives are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of sell and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of sell is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of a
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customers’ interests or competitor actions. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting period. There was no
impairment provision for inventories as at 31 December 2016.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EEEFHHETRMEST(E)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued) EEtAEERER (B8)
Deferred tax assets BEEFIEEE

Deferred tax assets should be recognised when it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets at 31 December 2016 was RMB32,288,000 (2015:
RMB34,107,000). Further details are given in note 31 to the financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities should be recognised for all taxable differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates except
(a) when the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of
such temporary differences and it is probable that such temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Significant
management estimation is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax liabilities associated with the Company’s investments
in subsidiaries, based upon the likely timing of the reversal of such
temporary differences. The carrying value of deferred tax liabilities
associated with investments in subsidiaries at 31 December 2016 was
RMB86,860,000 (2015: RMB86,860,000). Further details are given in
note 31 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EEEHIETRMGE (8)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Where fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities cannot be
derived directly from active markets, it is determined using valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
estimation is required in establishing fair values. The estimations
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both a
liability and embedded derivatives are classified separately into these
respective items on initial recognition. The derivatives are accounted for
an initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss and remeasured
to fair value through profit or loss in subsequent reporting periods.
The Group engaged an independent professional valuer to assist
in determining the fair value of the conversion rights of convertible
bonds. The fair value of the conversion rights of convertible bonds was
estimated by the independent professional valuer using the binomial
option pricing model and the estimation included some assumptions
not supported by observable market prices or rates such as the
discount rate, volatility, credit risk, and expected future cash flows,
and hence they are subject to uncertainty. Favourable or unfavourable
changes to these assumptions would result in significant changes in
the fair value of conversion rights contained in the convertible bonds
and the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in profit or loss. The fair value of the conversion rights of
convertible bonds at 31 December 2016 was RMB15,227,000 (2015:
RMB63,552,000). Further details are given in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate
swaps and cross-currency interest rate swap, to hedge its interest rate
risk and currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. The Group
engaged an independent professional valuer to assist in determining
the fair value of the interest rate swaps. The fair value of the interest
rate swaps was estimated by the independent professional valuer using
the discounted cash flow method and the estimation included some
assumptions not supported by observable market rates such as credit
risk, discount rate and expected future cash flows, and hence they are
subject to uncertainty. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in significant changes in the fair value of the
interest rate swaps. The fair value of the cross-currency interest rate
swaps at 31 December 2016 was RMB22,961,000 (2015: Nil). Further
details are given in note 27 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE

Revenue represents an appropriate proportion of contract revenue of
construction contracts; net of government surcharges; and the invoiced
value of goods and electricity sold, and net of value-added tax and
government surcharges.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4. FEEFPEEBRUN (E)
REVENUE (Continued)
The Group’s revenue and contribution to profit for the year were mainly AEENRARFREMEREERE
derived from construction and installation of curtain walls (including B (BEAGEER) BRERLTE A
solar power products), as well as operation and management of solar MARIGREH R BINEE REIR - HE
photovoltaic power stations, which is regarded as a single reportable RBE—M 2RO ARAEBEERE
segment in a manner consistent with the way in which information is BERHEERREETHNATL2H
reported internally to the Group’s senior management for the purpose AR5 o AEEFEAY
of resource allocation and performance assessment. In addition, the FEEEMAPBRARE - Ft - BRIAE
principal assets employed by the Group are located in Mainland China. FARR A RIFEN  BEZ2HRY DD
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented other than entity-wide o
disclosures.
Information about products and services FRERRBRBHER
The following table sets forth the total revenue from external customers TRFINLE B MIRTEE D KR B M5
by product and service and the percentage of total revenue by product B PR BU A RN FEIRE M &R
and service during the year: EDMBRIMAE L
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE-hF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETR AREEFIT
Construction contracts EEA[R 3,849,519 73.4 2,748 251 65.7
Sale of goods ERiEE 1,308,550 25.0 1,365,059 326
Rendering of design services BRI RS 13,174 0.3 8,056 0.2
Sale of electricity BHHEE 68,321 1.3 60,683 1.5
Revenue WA 5,239,564 100.0 4,182,049 100.0
Tariff adjustment* EEMEL 93,224 57,387
* Tariff adjustment represents subsidies receivable from the government % BEMERAEE 2 K5 K2

authorities in respect of the Group’s solar photovoltaic power station
operation business.

BILEEET A BUTH R 7R -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4. FEEFBERBEAN (B)
REVENUE (Continued)
Geographical information = & ¥
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a) KESIEFEFATLA
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hE
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETT ARETTT
Domestic — Mainland China*  BIA - B ARE* 4,840,311 92.4 3,905,623 93.4
Malaysia 53k an 55,046 1.1 42,469 1.0
Macau SEPY 156,357 3.0 122,387 29
Hong Kong B 187,850 3.5 111,570 2.7
5,239,564 100.0 4,182,049 100.0
* The place of domicile of the Group’s principal operating * AEBFEEEWNB AR
subsidiaries is Mainland China. The principal revenues of the T ARR AR - AEBEMHE
Group are generated in Mainland China. ZIWAEEBPEIKRE -
(b)  Non-current assets ) ETEEE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREFx ARBT T
Mainland China A [ K B 4,639,545 99.5 3,941,838 99.4
Hong Kong a5 24,436 0.5 22,770 0.6
Others Hi 288 0.0 389 0.0
4,664,269 100.0 3,964,997 100.0
The non-current asset information above is based on the LI REBEEER IR EEMEE
locations of the assets and excludes investments in associates, 25D BWTABEREEATRE &

deferred tax assets and available-for-sale investments. ERHIEEERAHEERSE -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted to 10%

or more of the total revenue, is set out below:

4.

EENMER RN ()

AREXEEFRHEH

KEEETZEP (ERKAR10% 3 IA

E)RUAESIIT

2016 2015

—B-RE —ThF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT AREFIT

Customer A BEA * 518,861
Customer B =FB * 448 880

* Less than 10%

* B 10%
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5. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Hhlg A\ Rliz
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: E A RS ¢
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Deferred income released to BEERMEERE (H3E32) :
profit or loss (note 32):
Over the expected useful lives LRI EETEHA ] (AT
of the related assets 19,830 32,985
Receipt of government grants FHARTFEHEEE
related to disposal of assets in WKCER K AT 475 By
previous years - 44,205
Total deferred income released BEERNEEREERE
to profit or loss 19,830 77,190
Bank interest income HRTTAEHA 10,989 18,168
Interest income on retention money  E{R&F S A 15,077 26,780
Government grants* BATHEED * 7,467 12,620
Gain on disposal of items of HEDE  KER
property, plant and equipment** RAEIE B M T 146,002 12,332
Fair value gains on derivative PTESBMTANATFERS
financial instruments 27 22,961 -
Interest income from AHEEEH AR
available-for-sale debt instruments FEUA 1,413 i
Foreign exchange gains, net AP U 2 B8 12,371 22,657
Others Hith 6,966 2,463
243,076 172,210
4 There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these % BEE B S M B A R IER IRk
grants. REMH -
**  The gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment contained = REWEFEEEYE - BE &K
the deferred income released to profit or loss upon disposal of the related HEMBEREHERBEERESR

assets amounted to approximately RMB247,395,000. A AR 247,395,000 7T °
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6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BIERE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: REERRADHTAT ¢

2016 2015

—E—REFE —E—RF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BaE AREFT ARETTT

Interest on bank and other loans RITREMERF S 158,195 125,085
Interest on discounted BRIR IR R B

bills receivable 41 12,256 18,942

Interest on convertible bonds AR E ST B 29 116,299 100,610

Interest on senior notes BEEERE 30 71,819 67,285

Others Hih 9,459 4,989

368,028 316,911
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BBigniF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): INE BB B ATE R TAEF0RR, (A BA
T&IE :
2016 2015
—E—-REF —T—hEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETT AREFTT
Cost of construction contracts and BEA R REFRIEKA
design services 3,015,663 2,175,804
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 1,020,301 1,052,946
Cost of electricity sold BEENRA 68,890 68,916
Depreciation of property, Y - BE REETE
plant and equipment 13 151,275 134,489
Depreciation of investment REMENE
properties 14 557 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease A L EROEE
payments 15 2,133 2,252
Amortisation of intangible assets R EEEE 16 936 1,013
Total depreciation and amortisation 78 & #4485 154,901 137,754
Employee benefit expense EERAFALZ
(including directors’ and chief (BEEEK
executive's remuneration (note 8): 1T ﬁ S ) (BI5E8) -
Wages and salaries and T& e kiEEEF
relevant benefits 245,734 248,666
Pension scheme contributions IRIREET BN 10,546 8,899
Equity-settled share option expense X ZAN4EE 7 BEIGAERA <2 34 11,773 10,415
268,053 267,980
Minimum lease payments under KERETHRE
operating leases HERH 7,905 6,179
Research costs A 11,312 16,189
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREM BN & 8,590 9,109
Transaction costs related to listing ERMNB ARG LT
shares of a subsidiary R B 9,696 =
Impairment loss on goodwill [EESDERET 2! = 9,783
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEUX & 5 2B R (E &8 22 21,390 26,771
Impairment loss on other receivables £ fth FE UL Z IR R (E & 18 = 2,485
Loss on settlement of derivative EEITESM T AREIE
financial instruments 6,960 4,813
Fair value gains on derivative PTESRTAENAFERE
financial instruments 27 (22,961) =
Interest income from available-for-sale ] f & &7 T A/ F| S U A
debt instruments (1,413) -
Gains on disposal of items of LEME - BEMEEEB W
property, plant and equipment (146,002) (1:2:332)
Operating lease rentals ERERS (1,286)

Exchange gains, net PE b W e 5 58 (12,371) (22,657)
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EFRITHARME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed WIEE BN a) 155 5 383(1)@a) ~ (b) »
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of CEMEEEARI(EEEEFZERD
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BOIE2EHEBENFRNEES RITHEE
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as e T
follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Fees ik 5,185 4,858
Other emoluments: Hibe
Salaries, allowances e R REYR
and benefits in kind 2,222 2,702
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIMK 111 131

7,518 7,691
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EBFRTHAHNNE(E)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries,

allowances Pension
and benefits scheme

in kind contributions Total

Fees Hi& « #B4 B E5TE] remuneration

we REYI= LA El

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTET AREBTR ARBTET ARETR

2016 —E—R5E
Executive directors: WITESE -
Mr. Liu Hongwei* AT HE SR A~ 1,610 792 37 2,439
Mr. Sun Jinli HeBhE 1,342 669 37 2,048
Mr. Xie Wen B s 1,342 761 37 2,140
4,294 2,222 111 6,627
Non-executive directors: IEMITES :
Mr. Cao Zhirong BERELE 121 - - 121
Mr. Li Huizhong FEgmkE 121 - - 121
242 - - 242
Independent non-executive directors: JBI FFHITES ¢
Mr. Wang Ching TR&AE 179 - — 179
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SKEBEIAE 268 = - 268
Mr. Cheng Jinshu ReftE 202 = = 202
649 - - 649

5,185 D27 715 7,518
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERITHBUEHMN= (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries,

allowances Pension
and benefits scheme

in kind  contributions Total

Fees #r& » #28F  ERIKEFTE] remuneration

we  REWAE HR HrMAaET

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARBTT ARETE

2015 TR
Executive directors: WITEE -
Mr. Liu Hongwei* R 1,508 980 36 2,524
Mr. Sun Jinli e 1,257 791 36 2,084
Mr. Xie Wen Eip &t 1,257 931 59 2,247
4,022 2,702 131 6,855
Non-executive directors: EHITES -
Mr. Cao Zhirong BEREE 114 - - 114
Mr. Li Huizhong TEREE 114 - - 114
228 - - 228
Independent non-executive directors: ¥ JEETTESE
Mr. Wang Ching FREE 168 = = 168
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon GBS E 251 - - 251
Mr. Cheng Jinshu e il 189 - - 189
608 - - 608
4,858 2,702 131 7,691
% Mr. Liu Hongwei who acts as an executive director of the Company is also i BRI STEEEARRRRITES - I
the chief executive officer of the Company. BARRNBITHEE -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief FRI B E SR TRBENEXR
executive officer waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during EMEAATFMN L (ZT—RF :

the year (2015: Nil). ) o
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AfimEHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors FR - Al meFEEFEEMUES
and the chief executive officer (2015: two directors and the chief ROTBEH (ZZ—1F  MUESFK
executive officer), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 TBAEE)  HENFMFBEHN X
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two M8 e B TRAL(ZZ—H4F : MAL)
(2015: two) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor AN REZRIFTHBRE S FHEE
chief executive of the Company are as follows: FROEFBFFBOT -
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EBREYAE

in kind 3,607 4,211
Pension scheme contributions RIS EEIHR 32 30
3,639 4,241
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid T BN E A E = RIETTRRH &
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as SHEEMNHENT ¢
follows:

Number of employees

EE8HE
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET-RHF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 /& 7T % 2,500,000 7T 2 =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7T £ 3,000,000 % 7T - 2
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10. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the respective countries or jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, Samoa and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda, Samoa and the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore and Nigeria profits
tax has been made as the Group had no assessable profits derived
from or earned in Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore and Nigeria during
the year.

Mainland China profits tax has been provided at the respective
corporate income tax (“CIT”) rates applicable to the subsidiaries
located in Mainland China as determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC for the year.

Macau profits tax has been provided at the applicable CIT rate of 12%
as determined in accordance with the Macau income tax rules for the
year.

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as
follows:

“E-REFER hEEERGRERMTER AR AR

10. FRig#i

REBAREXE RARIMEMNELENE
BB Rk BDA R R A E 4 S R
o REREEI RSN o

REARE BEIMRBEZESE
BER  AEEBABMNBERE BE
D NEBE LS MEAMEH -

NEAXREELERES - FRAS
#o03 K JE B A SR A A S REVE AT ERR
B - S EpL A - HIRAE: - #
AN K fE B FIZE RS AT R -

REAEMRSHRYERPEAEMNER
FIERAMEHEERBR(EEMS
B E - BFATE 2 BRMEIAR
KRG A -

R F SRR BEAFRRFIFMEHRB
EIERREAEHRBE 12% B -

AEEMEHASEZIIT

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT

Current - Charge for the year BTSN - FARX
— Mainland China — B R 111,354 90,124
— Macau — BP9 1,200 1,399
Deferred (note 31) IERE (F97E31) 1,819 (1,599)
Total tax charge for the year FARIEFR BT 114,373 89,924
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. Frfe#i (4&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at NEEMBREINET - ZEERST AT
the applicable tax rates for the countries or jurisdictions in which FrfE 2 BIZR sk B1EAE B [2 a0 R T R 51
companies within the Group are domiciled to the tax expense at the HMBERY  RIEEEEEBRETE
Group’s effective tax rate is as follows: RRIBFAY - MELEREOT :
2016 2015
—EB—RE —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PEE ARETR ARBFIT
Profit before tax BRI AT A 626,922 447,370
At the applicable tax rates REAHEE (a) 113,382 76,647
Effect of tax holiday B EBErE (33,952) (4,964)
Income not subject to tax BERTUA (b) (24,508) (38,317)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR ER S (c) 54,486 48,742
Tax losses utilised from VART4F [ AR
previous years which were TIAEER A
not recognised before (634) (2,358)
Tax losses not recognised RERROIIEEE 5,599 10,024
Effect of tax rate change HEREgaHpge - 150

Tax charge at the Group’s effective REBERBENBIBERS

tax rate 114,373 89,924
(@) The applicable CIT rate for Mainland China subsidiaries is (a) HEKEMBARZEBLERN
25% except for certain subsidiaries that would be entitled to BHHEEE25%  EXTHIESR
preferential tax rates as discussed below: R ZHBATRRIN -
For Mainland China subsidiaries which are qualified as High ESHEMOEER 2P BRARE
and New Technology Enterprises, they would be entitled to a WBARENZEZIS% ZER
preferential tax rate of 15%. For subsidiaries engaging in the TRE - I BEM ARG B EE
approved projects of solar power station construction, they will HEMKBAR  BEERES
be exempted from CIT for the first three years and are entitled —SBEERERAFBNTEE
to a 50% tax reduction for the subsequent three years (‘=% B EFEE=FREPHI
=R since their respective first revenue-generating years. EAMBEM - HE=FRFBD
Thereafter, they will be subject to CIT at a rate of 25%. (¥MBEHI=2=R+E] - I

1% - [R5 BEIE25% 2 R E#A
RS
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FRfa# (%8)

(b)  Income not subject to tax mainly consists of unrealised foreign (b) HEARBRAFEZEIEREIHIN
exchange gain and the fair value gains on conversion rights of PE U 2 LA I AT A IR (B 5 B I i
convertible bonds, and the fair value gains on derivative financial NFEWE  ARTESRTAE
instruments. KA ERE ©

(c) Expenses not deductible for tax mainly consist of equity-settled () AR HEEBERY EEBE/A
share option expenses and finance costs incurred in offshore HEBRERSTARBERQRE
companies. These expenses are not expected to be deductible EZRBRAR - ZERZ BT
for tax. AIHUABIE o

11. DIVIDENDS 11. g2
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Proposed final - HK7 cents ERARARS - FREBAR 7B

(2015: HK3 cents) (ZZ=—R%F : 3%1)
per ordinary share 52,226 17,469

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval REEHR 2 KA EBERRRIIRE

of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general REERFEF RS EHEE -

meeting.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. AATEBERESISTEAE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
759,613,349 (2015: 698,860,042) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, adjusted
to reflect the interest on the convertible bonds and fair value changes
on the conversion rights of the convertible bonds, where applicable (see
below). The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

i EF

GREAREF THIRE A A B A
BEABREFRENRFRNDETER
S 80 DN 4E SF 15 759,613,349 (= =
—A 4 698,860,042 %) 51 & -

BRESERNTREFESREARR
BERARNARR L BRESRE ARG
FRBNTE - WIEHAR - URBRA]
BEREF NS R AR E S BN
RHEEE (ER) (RTX) - 5 EE
KA BRINEFOBANFERET
VEBEINETFOEE (BRFAEESR
EAXRN)  URBREME#HETELE
EBBREARTTERE RS EBRIEE
EEITE B BAINE IR -
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. KATEBERERIFEAE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EEREMN (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on: BRERREERFINFTEHIRE
2016 2015
—B—-RE —ZE—FHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Restated
K&

Earnings 27

Profit attributable to ordinary equity ~ sTEBREKREFIH
holders of the Company used inthe — ZNA B & @AR#E 25

basic earnings per share calculation:  #8 A& F 501,961 355,986
Interest on convertible bonds AT E A F) B (MI5E29) **
(note 29) ** - 100,610

Less: fair value gains on the conversion J : AI 32 & (E H Rk

rights of the convertible bonds AR F(EUES (FsE29) **
(note 29) ** - (163,586)

Profit attributable to ordinary equity 1k AT 3R AR (& 5.8 K

holders of the Company before AR E SRR
interest on convertible bonds and A ERZA DB LB
fair value gains on the conversion IRz B AR ET

rights of the convertible bonds 501,961 293,010
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

12. AABEEIER A AR
i EF ()

Number of shares

[iavE S EE]
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
Shares B
Weighted average number of ordinary s+ E & EAZEF &
shares in issue during the year used ~ FAE 21T LR
in the basic earnings per share =SSk
calculation* 759,613,349 698,860,042
Effect of dilution — weighted average — BEEF/Z — E@A%
number of ordinary shares: INHEF 98 -
Share options A 1,772,823 11,617,510
Convertible bonds** AR ES - 71,941,829
761,386,172 782,419,381
* The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic * REE-ZT—AF+=-A=1+—81t

and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2015
have been adjusted and restated for the rights issue on the basis of one
rights share for every five existing shares held by shareholders of the
Company at the price of HK$2.60 per share.

el The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2016 does not assume the exercises of convertible bonds for
the year ended 31 December 2016 since assumed such exercises would
result in an increase in earnings per share.

* %

FESRER RS BN & E RN
BFHHERA A BRERIAFA2.60
ALz BRIZERERABRBRMNA
B — IR AR AR 7 2 B E AR 1T
HERED -

HERE-T-AET-A=T-8
L2 K9S R A L AR BRAR 1T
BE-T-<F+-A=+—ALLF
EHTRRES - BERKIERE
BSRAFIEN -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BERRE
Office Solar
equipment photovoltaic
Land and Plant and Motor and furniture power stations Construction
buildings machinery vehicles #oE K5t in progress Total
THRETF EEE) RE RERHR ks HRIE it
31 December 2016 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—§-7"E+Zf=+-8 NREFT NRBFT NREFT NREFT NRBFT AREIL  ARETR
Cost: Bk
At 1 January 2016 R-Z-7"E-F-B 1272372 335,182 17,047 36,564 2,274,108 312,133 4,247,406
Additions AE 2,640 5,824 386 3379 3214 1,030,609 1,046,052
Transfers 1 9,964 5814 - 1,729 741,446 (758,953) -
Transferred to investment EHERENE
properties (note 1)~ (HiEE14) (71,947) - - - - - (71,947)
Disposal of a HE-HHBAR
subsiciary (note 36) (&£ 36) - - - - (22,258) - (22,258)
Disposals e (3,616) (3,656) (741) (42) (304,274) - (312,329)
Exchange realignment B 5% 1,250 - 80 495 - - 1,825
At31 December 016 R=F—F
t-F=1t-H 1,210,663 343,164 16,772 42,125 2,692,236 583,789 4,888,749
Accumulated RHERAE:
depreciation
and impairment:
Mllay N6 R-E-75-F-8 93762 136,934 11417 22,985 147,070 - 168
Depreciation provided ~ AR ERE
forthe year (note 7) ~ (Hf3t7) 24,716 30,420 2,801 2,703 90,635 - 151,275
Transferred to investment BB 2R ENE
properties (note 14) (Rt 14) (3,240) - - - - - (3,240)
Disposal of a HE-EHBAR
subsidiary (note 36)  (Ff3¥36) - - - - (214) - (214)
Disposals HE (555) (3,529) (656) (6) (30,322) = (35,068)
Exchange realignment (B3 33% 201 5 2 78 = 1 281
At31 December 2016 R=F—F
s =H 114,884 163,825 13,564 25,760 207,169 - 525,202
Net carying amount,  ARE(E :
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-—"E-A-H 1178610 198,248 5,630 13,579 2,127,038 312,133 3,835,238
At31 December 2016 R=F—A%
R 1,095,779 179,339 3,208 16,365 2,485,067 583,789 4,363,547
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BERRE (B)
(Continued)
Office Solar
equipment photovoltaic
Land and Plant and Motor and fumiture power stations Construction
buldings machinery vehicles HAZ A in progress Total
T RiEF BRRE i FERGE KRB ERIE @
31 December 2015 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB' 000
“E-RE+-A=1-H ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL  ARETR
Cost: Bk
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%-A-8 1129210 293,728 14,261 211% 1825918 442579 3732891
Additions HE 452 39,793 2,580 9162 54,151 442735 548,873
Acquisition of a subsidlary 4188 —FEHE A7) 75 - %1 201 - - 537
Transfers &y 141584 1,661 - - 429936 (573,181) -
Disposals il - - (35) - (35,897) - (35932)
Exchange realignment ~ [E3 5% 1,051 - (20 6 - - 1,037
At31 December 2015 R-E-1%
T-A=+-H 1,272,372 335,182 17047 36,504 2274108 312133 4247 406
Accumulated RHRERAE:
depreciation
and impairment:
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-1%-A-A 71074 108777 10,016 18,382 69,071 - 211820
Depreciation provided ~ AEEHAERE
forthe year (note 7).~ (Hi&7) 2548 28,157 1,375 4044 78,365 - 134489
Acquisifion of a Subsidiary 45— B AR 7 5 61 50 - - 118
Disposals HE - - (30) - (366) - (3%)
Exchange realignment B 2 33% 133 - (5) 9 2 - 137
At31 December 2015 R=Z-%E
T-A=t-A 93,762 136,934 11417 22,98 147,070 - 412,168
Net canying amount,  FRE S :
At 1 January 2015 R-B-R%-A-B 105813% 184,951 4245 8313 1,756,847 442579 3455071

At31 December 2015 R-E-1f%
e, 1,178,610 198,243 5630 13579 2,127,038 312133 3835238
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB583,090,000 (2015: RMB310,073,000)
were pledged to secure bank and other loans granted to the Group (note
28(a)).

As at 31 December 2016, the application for the property ownership
certificates of certain buildings with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB271,458,000 (2015: RMB448,842,000) was in
progress. Those buildings can only be sold, transferred or mortgaged
when their relevant ownership certificates have been obtained.

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s solar photovoltaic power
stations with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,325,534,000
(2015: RMB1,150,558,000) were pledged to secure bank and other
loans granted to the Group (note 28(b)).

As at 31 December 2016, the rights on the annual return generated
from the solar photovoltaic power station with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB29,903,000 (2015: RMB31,200,000) were assigned
to an independent third party for twenty years for a loan obtained by the
Group (note 28(c)).

=

B A SRR IR A R A ]

13. M2 - BE KRR (E)

R-ZB—RF+-A=+—0 £&&
= AR HDFE 49 3 A R 1 583,090,000
T(ZZT—ARF : AR 310,073,000
) ZEFEEREAR TFAEEMNR
TREAE R Z HER (3£ 28(a)) °

RZZE-—R"F+ZA=+—0" &K@
FELHABARYE 271,458,000 (=2
—FF  AR¥448842,0007T) 25
TEFZYEERFESETRFERRE
B 2 SEFERRSEMBNE
EEERN S HE - EiEslRs -

M-Z—RE+-A=+—8 " K@
EEH AR 1,325534,000L(=F
—RF : AR¥1,150,558,0007T) 2
AEBEFHRREWHDEKIFIEAET
RNEEMRITREMERZ ER (5T
28(b)) °

RZE-—RF+ZA=+—8" %
REWELEHEEFEHNARE
29,903,000 (=T —HF : AR
31,200,000 7T ) 2 4F [ [6 54 A 2 7t
AEERBSZFHA-TFENERE
ETENE = (MFE28(c)) °
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. Ia&E%=%

2016
—E—REF
RMB’000
AREBTR
Cost 5% -
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—A—H -
Transferred from owner-occupied e EEME(HFEL3)
properties (note 13) 71,947
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RF+-_A=+—H 71,947
Accumulated depreciation: RiHiRE .
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—H—H -
Transferred from owner-occupied e EYE(WFE13)
properties (note 13) 3,240
Depreciation (note 7) e (M) 557
At 31 December 2016 R-E—XRF+-_A=+—H 3,797
Net carrying amount ARTEFE :
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—R"F+=-A=+—H 68,150

As at 31 December 2016, the fair values of the investment properties
were estimated to be approximately RMB70,970,000 (2015: not
applicable). The valuation was performed by Zhuhai Dewei Real
Estate and Land Appraisal Company Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer. Selection criteria of the external valuer
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The valuation was estimated
using discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future rental income or market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, where appropriate. The fair value measurement
hierarchy of the investment properties requires certain significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The investment properties are leased to the third parties under
operating leases.

R-ZE—A"F+-A=+—H L&D
MR THEMET AL AR 70,970,000
T(ZZE—RF : TEA) - HEBHBIL
BEAERGEMKSEEEETE
BIRAREALT o SN2 H(ERD A BLIE R
BIETISANE - B8 BUMREEH
LARIS B ZATA o (HEDIREARKEE
WA B AT SE {51 2B R B R AR B9 R
EyErmEES (WER) - IRABRS
BHREREFAMEE - REVENQF
B EBAEEETEATAEHEREA
HIE(E=E) -

N

BREMERBEEEERTE=T -
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14.

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. H&ME (B)
As at 31 December 2016, the application for the property ownership RZBE—ARF+ZA=+—0 " KEF
certificates of certain buildings with a net carrying amount of BEHAANRE 57478000t 2 & TIEF
approximately RMB57,478,000 was in progress. Those buildings can CYEEEFEZELERBBREED - Z
only be sold, transferred or mortgaged when their relevant ownership EEFERDSEEBNEREERS
certificates have been obtained. AT - EERE o
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. fEft L HERE
2016 2015
—E—RE ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBEFTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBZEmE 96,136 97,513
Additions NE 108,998 875
Amortisation charged for the year AEEE (MFE7)
(note 7) (2,133) (2,252)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEAE 203,001 96,136

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s prepaid land
lease payments with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB59,791,000 (2015: RMB89,569,000) were pledged to secure
bank loans granted to the Group (note 28(d)).

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s prepaid land
lease payments with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB108,998,000 (2015: Nil) were sub-leased from certain grantees
of the land use rights and therefore, the relevant land use rights were
not registered under the name of the Group which cannot be sold,
transferred or mortgaged.

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank loan with
a principal of RMB30,000,000. Such bank loan was repaid by the
Company in December 2016 and the Group is still the customary
procedure to discharge the land mortgage.

RIB—RFE+ZA=+—R ~%£E
BREFEANARKES,791,000L(=F
—hF AR%89,569,0007T) B TENS
THAEEFRD EIRERE TAREEN
RITEFRZ R (M3 28(d)) °

RZB—XRE+=ZA=+—8' ' ~58
REFEAN AR 108,998,000 0 (=
T-RF:E)zETHEMIHEER
FORRME T T AEERRASHELT
ME R - Bt - AR AR
NAEEREED  TAETHE - &
RIIRE o

R=ZE-"FHt=H=+=H  ~&E
= FEf LA E R EBIEARE
B R4 58 A R 30,000,000 TR TE K
ZHEAR o ZERITERTIAAR AR
ZEAFtZRAEBERAEE TR
B R IE AR RIZE o
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Software
B
31 December 2016 RMB’000
—®¥—RE+=A=+—H ARETT
Cost: 5% -
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R~"F—A—H 5,178
Additions NE 593
Disposal HE (63)
Exchange realignment P& H TR 14
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+ZA=+—H 5,722
Accumulated amortisation: Sty .
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—HA—H 1,692
Amortisation provided FREHRE (E7)
during the year (note 7) 936
Disposal & (12)
Exchange realignment P& H 1
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+-A=+—H 2,617
Net carrying amount: IREFE -
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—H—H 3,486

At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+_A=+—H 3,105
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16. R EE (/&)

Operating
Software rights Total
= ey HET
31 December 2015 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—ET—hHF+-_A=+—H AREEFTT AREBFIT AREFTT
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—HF—H 2,273 4,107 6,380
Additions NE 2,905 - 2,905
At 31 December 2015 R-E—FAF+-_A=+—H 5,178 4,107 9,285
Accumulated amortisation R RRE
and impairment:
At 1 January 2015 R-E—RF—A—H 1,151 3,635 4,786
Amortisation provided
during the year (note 7) GBS (NRET) 541 472 1,013
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF+-_A=+—H 1,692 4,107 5,799
Net carrying amount: BREFME -
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—HF—A—H 1,122 472 1,594
At 31 December 2015 R-E—FAF+-_A=+—H 3,486 - 3,486
17. PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE 17. EHRIE
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
Advance payments in respect of: LT IE A ByFET3500E -
Land use rights b AR 1,547 21,131
Purchase of machinery B E SR 7,567 9,006
9,114 30,137
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. NEtEATIRE

2016 2015

—E—REF —ET—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFTT

Unlisted investments, at cost JELTIRE » AR 40,330 1,200

Share of losses of associates DL E N R EE (29,204) (5,944)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REEREE N FIRER

Group’s investments in 4R B
the associates 11,126 (4,744)

The Group’s trade receivable and other receivable balances with the
associates are disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, there were no material associates of the
Group during the year.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held through the
subsidiaries of the Company.

The Group continued the recognition of its share of losses of
associates despite the share of losses of these associates exceeded
the Group’s interests in these associates because the Group has
capital contribution obligation to an associate (note 39). Further losses
of RMB19,915,000 (2015: Nil) were not recognised in profit or loss
during the year due to the share of losses of an associate exceeded the
Group’s capital contribution, for which the Group has no obligation.

AR B SR N B 2 B WU B R
i FEWRRIR A R TR B TS SRR T RE 40 3

3= o

EER/ FRAKEETEEABMER
Eik

EANCIYS: I WNGIEIE s 3t RN

BEDEZSEHE QR BIERELNEE

RElZ s - NEBDEE
HREDIEBEARER  RELAE
BB L AR AHEEEMEEI) -
E—HBEBARK19915000T(=F
—HF E)YERAFEZERRA
R RERSEBMEARNEIEER
AEBENHER  MAREHLSEER
o
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. o[t ERE
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PEE ARETT ARETTT
Unlisted equity investments, I EMRAKE - (a)
at cost: IRRAR
Weihai China Glass Solar Co., Ltd. BRI EER AT 13,468 12,614
Jiuhua New Energy Management NEFREIREEARAT]
Co., Ltd. 380 380
Shanxi Singyes Solar Technology PR ELZE KBS RERHE,
Co., Ltd. BIRAT] 7,600 7,600
Zhuhai Xinye Green Energy KRG IREELR BB REHY
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAT] 9,500 9,500
Others Hith 5 5
30,953 30,099
Debt investments, BEREE -
at fair value: BAFE
Life insurance contracts ASRBE L (b) 22,316 20,901
Asset management plans BEEEE (c) 27,243 -
49,559 20,901
80,512 51,000

177



178

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

31 December 2016 —ZE—X~"F+=-A=+—H

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2016, the equity investments listed above were
stated at cost as the Group has no significant influence or control over
the entities. The unlisted equity investments represent the Group’s
investments in enterprises domiciled in Mainland China. They are stated
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their
fair value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to
dispose of them in the near future.

The life insurance contracts at fair value at 31 December 2016
represented the cash surrender value (“CSV”) of two life insurance
contracts (the “Insurance Contracts”) entered into between the Company
and an international insurance company in July 2015. The Company is
the policyholder and beneficiary of the Insurance Contracts.

The salient terms of the Insurance Contracts are disclosed as follows:

19. [ ERE ()

(@ RZE—RF+ZA=+—80 L%
BRAIGE TR NGB - AR E S
ERWES KBTS LT
AR EHEAE BN A B A D
BE - BRRERKAREFBET
i EREAEATEMFZHEE
R EEZRA  EATEEEEM
2 AEEESNIHHEEERE -

(b)) RZE-RF+_A=+—"HELQF
BEIRASREBANEARF E—H
BEREREB AN ZZE—RFL AL
MIEABRB A (REREL)) WE
He((BO2]) ARRARRRELH
EIRRARZRA -

R A AR T EZIFRIRELT -

Contract 1 Contract 2
a1 a12
Life insured ASRE Liu Hongwei* A senior management member
P47 4 —HERMERERE
Sum insured (US$'000) REg2 % (T%7T) 10,000 5,000
Premium mode RBEIL TR Single premium Single premium
HHIRE HHIRE
Single premium (US$'000) BHERE (TET) 3,077 946
Effective date £ A 20 August 2015 14 August 2015
—ZT-RFENAZ+H —Z-RFNA+HEA

In accordance with the Insurance Contracts, upon giving a written BRERBREYH  REMRERZRLEER

notice, at anytime, the Company has a right to surrender the Insurance
Contracts and receive the CSV for each insurance contract as quoted by

BR ARBBERRIERB AR
EREHERENRRA OBEEOS -

the insurance company.

i Mr. Liu Hongwei is the chairman and chief executive officer of the

Company.

£ BIAT L E R R R EEFRIT
BB
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Total single premium sum of approximately US$4,023,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB26,129,000) has been fully paid by the Company
at the inception of each of the Insurance Contracts. During the year, no
further loss in respect of the Insurance Contracts was recognised in other
comprehensive income (31 December 2015: RMB5,228,000) as the
difference between the CSV at 31 December 2015 and at 31 December
2016 is estimated to be zero.

As at 31 December 2016, the Insurance Contracts were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 28(g)).

The asset management plans at fair value at 31 December 2016
represented the consideration paid by Hunan Singyes Green Energy Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary within the Group, to acquire specific asset management
plans issued by GF XINDE Investment Management Co., Ltd. (B3 =&
BHIREERBERAR).

The specific asset management plans are used to provide loans for the
construction of a 100 MW solar photovoltaic power station of Huizhou
Yongjing Renewable Energy Technology Co., Ltd. with the interest rate
being non-guaranteed. The investments principals are RMB27,243,000
with an estimated annual target return rate of 11%, which will be due
in 24 months since the payment of consideration. The fair value of the
specific asset management plans has been calculated by discounting the
contractual cash flows over the remaining contractual term of the specific
asset management plans at the risk free interest rate plus credit spread.
As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the specific asset management
plans approximated to their costs.

“E-REFER hEEERGRERMTER AR AR

!

19. [ ERE ()

BRE - ()

(b)

(&)

BEHIR B 42 $ 58 494,023,000 % 7T (#H
ERHARY26,129,0007T) B B A
REREMRBELBEHBEEZ -
REERN - WERRBEHNREMS
EHREANERE—FPEER(ZT—h
F+ZA=+—8 : AR¥ 5,228,000
) PEARZ-ZZ-—RAF+=A
=t+—ARZE-R"F+ZA=1+—
HEFH S 2 MR ZRET AT -

R-ZB—REF+-A=+—0  &®
AHEEBEABE FALENRITE
2R (7R 28(g)) °

RZZBE—RE+ZA=+—HRAT
EBEIRAEEEABEASEANBR
AMEEEEREERRNDERARD
NRE REBEEREREBREE
BHERARBTZHEAEEHEE -

BFEEEERTEARARESIMNT
XEFAREHR AR QB Z 100K
HRBEHIBHER - WERFFE -
BERE A AR 27,243,000 « {4
ATEFEZEEEREALLY  AXAR
BREEr24 @ ARIE - FE B EB LT
B2 AFEBBEANEERERE
RBRFIENEESENEEEEER
SR FIRANBBRAITERGTE - 1
—E-XNF+ZA=+—8 BEE
EEEEz ATFEREKAESE -
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20. INVENTORIES 20. 786
2016 2015
—T—RE —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Raw materials [E 69,964 73,928
Finished goods EK G 112,636 19,243
182,600 93,171
21. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 21. BEER
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
Contract costs incurred plus FrEi & RIACA NN B FER& T
recognised profits less recognised BIES B R TEREE
and expected losses to date 5,118,525 3,368,845
Less: progress billings B IREEAEROE (4,407,982) (2,441,347)
710,543 927,498
Gross amount due from contract YA REFRFIBERE
customers 713,945 937,546
Gross amount due to contract B & RRFPRFIBHEEE
customers (3,402) (10,048)

710,543 927,498
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. WS 5 R IE R FEW SR i

2016 2015

—E—REF —ET—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Trade receivables RUE 5508 3,122,110 2,233,345

Bills receivable JEWE & 299,772 86,277
Less: impairment o ORE (48,817) (27,427)

3,373,065 2,292,195
As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables contained retention money RZE—RF+_A=+—8" E
receivables of RMB355,523,000 (2015: RMB273,088,000). Retention WEZRERRERER: AREK
money receivables are normally collected within one to five years after 355,523,000 L(ZE—HF: AR
the completion of the relevant construction work. 273,088,0007T) © JEME R & —RHHE

P TI2SERiE — 2R FRUER -

Credit terms granted to the Group’s major customers are as follows: BRTASEXZEXFPHEERHOT
Construction contracts BESR

The majority of the Group’s revenues are generated from construction AEBHRBALWANBBEESRE
contracts and are settled in accordance with the terms specified in A WIRREERBEETRMNERT
the contracts governing the relevant construction work. The Group BENBGREE - AEEHARETHEZ
does not have a standardised and universal credit period granted to HRBEFPRERG—EER - @5
its construction contract customers. The credit periods for individual EERBEREPNEEHEBEIME - I
construction contract customers are considered on a case-by-case FIAREEERP (WEE) o W—I8IE
basis and set out in the construction contracts, as appropriate. In the BEXRETHAEER - BIAXSERES
event that a project contract does not specify the credit period, the BATFNTI0BZE 180 HHEEH -

usual practice of the Group is to allow a credit period of 30 to 180
days.
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Sale of materials

For the sale of materials, the Group normally grants credit periods
ranging from three to six months to major customers. Trade receivables
from small and new customers are normally expected to be settled
shortly after delivery of goods. No credit period is set by the Group for

small and new customers.

Sale of electricity

The Group’s trade receivables from the sale of electricity are mainly
receivables from the State Grid Corporation of China (“State Grid”).
Generally, trade receivables are usually settled within one month from
the date of billing.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-

bearing.

22. ﬂ%ﬂ&z%&%ﬂﬁ&ﬂ&ﬂ&%ﬂ%

&)
MHEHE

RMEHEMS  AEE—RETEE
EENF=Z2XEANEEM - ka1
HRFIEEFPHNREE S RIRBE AN
EEBINEMRZRINEER - NEE
AN BEFIEEFREEER -

ENHE

AEBRBENHENEEE SKRAE
EREREEREEAR(ERER])
FIE - —RWME - BRESFE—RE
EE AR —E AR -

REEY EL K E S FORBRBIFEE
E MR EE IR - B
ZHBRRE -
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the billing date and net of impairment, is as

22. FEWEE SRIE R FEWEHE

(#&)

RREHR - HRRARE A H RINRRE
HEGFENRWE Z50R R ERE R

follows: BTN
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
Within 3 months =EARA 1,630,871 860,566
3 to 6 months =Z&X[EA 372,652 435,525
6 to 12 months NETZ@A 1,057,272 629,739
1to 2 years —EMFE 172,676 318,022
210 3 years ME=F 128,829 42,097
Over 3 years =FLAE 10,765 6,246
3,373,065 2,292,195

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

EWE S RREREZEHMT

follows:
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—AREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
At 1 January e E 27,427 2,833
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 2 HERRIEREE (FizE7) 21,390 26,771
Amount written off as uncollectible ~ NATUR B4 5F$5 & 58 - (2,177)
48,817 27,427
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. [EYG B S RIE R B EE

(&)
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables is a LEWE SFRIERERBERERES
provision for individually impaired trade receivables of RMB48,817,000 B (R 2 51 AR 589,523,000
(2015: RMB27,427,000) with a carrying amount before provision of T(ZZE—HF: AR®234,760,000
RMB589,523,000 (2015: RMB234,760,000). 70) B {E B B RVE UL E 5 FRIE B A

R¥48817,000t(ZE—HF : AR
w5 27,427,0007T) °

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that &R E K FE U E 5 5/ I8 T EL A B 75
were in financial difficulties or were in default interest or principal MR B A RS mEREN
payment or both and only a portion of the receivables is expected to XFEAH - BrEHEAIWNESNZERE
be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit W& SFRIE - AEBWERZSEHRE
enhancements over these balances. BEMEIRRIEMEEINERTEE o
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables that are not AEBERRHRENEYKE 508K E
considered to be impaired is as follows: WEBRIRITAOT
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT
Neither past due nor impaired REEATARE 2,049,619 1,543,384
Past due but not impaired: BEEEERRE :
Less than 6 months past due wEAR R NEA 724,005 510,645
6 to 12 months past due wmEAAE+ @A 51,051 27,621
Over 12 months past due wEA+ @A E 7,684 3,212

2,832,359 2,084,862
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no further provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

The Group’s trade receivables include amounts due from the Group’s
associates of RMB371,270,000 (2015: RMB63,629,000), which
are repayable on credit terms similar to those offered to the major
customers of the Group (note 40).

The Group has pledged trade receivables of approximately
RMB5,598,000 (2015: RMB597,000) to secure bank loans granted to
the Group (note 28(e)).

“E-REFER hEEERGRERMTER AR AR

22. ﬂ%ﬂ&z%&%ﬁ&ﬂ&ﬂ&z%ﬂ%

= )

REERTRARBE ) UG T LK 85
B MROTHENZEEFEH -

B 16 BB SRR (E 80 FE WK IB T B 2 2
NEPEW BN EEERIELRSE
RE8) - BAMSRDER BRI 28U
Bl RAREFRABARZSERIE
B —RERE  AEETERZE
A EEAER RS EMEEMRE
Bt ©

AEEZEKESFHBERIERRAEE
Bt A RIFUE AR 371,270,000 70 (=
T—FF: AR®63,629,0007T) © I
AEURHTAEREERFPEEERRX
2 FEWERIE (FFE40) o

REBEBEIFL AR 5,598,000 7T (=
T—RF: AR#597,0007T) & FE UK
BERBIEARTASENRITERZ
IR (MisE28(e)) °
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. JAfRRIE - ST R E MR

RECEIVABLES =N

2016 2015
—B—RE —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARETTT

Prepayments to subcontractors TE DB R AR R R
and suppliers 135,386 165,997
Deposits HES 55,745 65,731
Tariff adjustment receivables* JEYE B AL * 122,009 99,355
Deferred listing fees of a subsidiary BB RIEL _ETHE A 3,084 -
Other receivables EAh R Y R IE 559,437 325,885
875,661 656,968
Less: impairment W RE (4,578) (4,578)
871,083 652,390

The Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables include AEBREBEMNRE - 5T REAER

amounts due from the Group’s associates of RMB97,980,000 (31 HEAEWAEEBREARZTBEAR

December 2015: RMB6,210,000)(note 40). ’%97,980,00071:( —E—RHFE+=AH

=+—H: AR#¥6,210,0007T) (M
40) °

The Group has pledged tariff adjustment receivables of approximately KREBEBEML ARY 103,293,000 7T

RMB103,293,000 (2015: RMB89,396,000) to secure bank loans (ZZ—FR%F : AR¥89,396,0007T)HY

granted to the Group (note 28(f)). BEMEUIEEAR FAEEMNIR

TERZ R (R 28(1)

The balances included in other receivables of approximately FFAHMEBERRIENESHRNDAR ﬁ@

RMB275,311,000 (2015: Nil), which are secured by the rights on the 275,311,000 c(ZZE—RHF : £) -

annual return of the 178MW solar photovoltaic power stations, bear 178J|:Eﬁ‘1’:1k§'§jﬁﬁ’]¢r@%&%*UVET&

interest at rates ranging from 4.35% to 5% per annum and will fall due B BN T EBFA435%E5%MFIEE
in 2017. BN E—+FEZIH -

. The Group’s tariff adjustment receivables from the sale of electricity are E AEBERBENHENEREE /AN
mainly receivables from the State Grid. Tariff adjustment receivables FEAEERER/ELRGKIE - B
represented the government subsidies on renewable energy for ground BEMAERBRITBN B FRER
projects to be received from the State Grid based on the prevailing REAUWEZ 7] B A LR E 1A B X

government policies. FI#EEL o
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ZEAEER PRREXAGERMERER AR

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

24. & RINESFFEYLI R

PLEDGED DEPOSITS Eod N
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETF T
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHETT 328,205 1,265,303
Time deposits EHFER 735,231 376,055
1,063,436 1,641,358
Less: pledged time deposits for: W BRAT IR B 2 I BT

Bank loans IRITE - 20,000
Bid guarantee TR IR 34,528 -

Long term performance REIBAER
guarantee 17,352 -

Short term performance R AR
guarantee 7,520 -
Bills payable (note 25) FERTEIR (Hf3E 25) 323,831 356,055
383,231 376,055
Cash and cash equivalents B MIREEEY 680,205 1,265,303
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24, IRERIREEEULL R

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

The Group’s cash and bank balances and time deposits denominated
in the following currencies:

#™R(E)

REBR S RIRTTEER AR HBF A
THE®TIE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRT AR¥ETT

RMB equivalent amount: AREEZEDH
RMB AR 943,919 1,513,396
us$ E 30,293 63,643
HK$ BT 76,577 46,966
SG$ ¥t 1,617 63
MOP SBPT 10,170 2,171
MYR ME 860 15,119
1,063,436 1,641,358

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposits rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ARBIIT BRI BREMER - R
i - AR BK R MY SN E B IR AR e i
- SERMEETERTE  AEFREE
BEEREREINEXBNRITHAR
BRBREME -

RITHSRE ARITEARN KR ZFEF
KR - EMERZERHAN T —H
E2=EA  RAEEZ KRS F KM
E o WIRBERAREHE B SR KRR -
RITEBNEBERERCEALRLET
RABRGLEE ~ (B RIFHIRITH o
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25. BB SRIERERER
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the REEHR - ERNEEA TR
reporting period, based on the invoice date or issuance date, where (RFIBRME) T EEN B S FIERIE
appropriate, is as follows: NEBERRR AT -
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARETTT
Within 3 months =EAR 834,118 365,420
3 to 6 months =z A 366,059 411,341
6 to 12 months ~ze+=f@Aa 89,032 88,685
1to 2 years —EWE 33,496 21,114
2 to 3 years WZE = 4F 9,641 3,974
Over 3 years =FPAE 13,606 12,969
1,345,952 903,503
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ZERNESRERENZR AR B
settled within one to six months. BEA—E2XNEAANGEEHE -
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bills payable were secured by RZE—XRFE+ZA=+—H" &
the pledged deposits amounting to RMB323,831,000 (31 December EENENREEDUSEARE
2015: RMB356,055,000). 323,831,000L( ZZE —HFE + = A

=+—H: AR%¥356,0550007T) &
SRR IEER
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

26. HtFEFRRIAR ERTRRIR

2016 2015

—E—REF —ET—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFTT

Advances from customers BRI 209,232 122,042
Tax and surcharge payables FETREIE K T N2 76,106 66,566
Accrued expenses BRI X 22,550 17,520
Other payables H b S 508 202,734 125,161
510,622 331,289

Other payables and accruals are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

The Group’s other payables and accruals include amounts due to one
of the Group’s associates of RMB3,892,000 (31 December 2015: Nil)
(note 40).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
received deposits of HK$25,080,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB22,434,000) in relation to the sale of equity interests in Xinjiang
Singyes and Wuwei Dongrun, two subsidiaries of the Group. As at
31 December 2016, the transaction is conditional upon fulfillment of
certain conditions precedent set out in the relevant conditional sale
and purchase agreement signed between the Group and Excel Deal
Investment Limited, an independent third party. The transaction is
expected to be completed on or before 30 June 2017.

Hip N FOE R ER RIAREER -
BNEREEEES -

AN B ) Ho M FE A B R EET RUE B
ER ARG E - E A RRIEARE
3,892,000 (= E—HFE+-A=+—
B : &) (M 40) °

HEZZ—XR"F+ZA=+—HLF
B AEEGFLHEEAWNENE R A
6 B R R OB A IR R R B %
425,080,000 T (10 E P 4 A R
22,434,00070) e RZE—XF+=A
=+—H - ZRGBEFERNERE—
BB E=HEBREBR AR
B E i B BRI FTEE TSR R
& HAEE - ZRHEHNR =T —+
FXNA=Z+BE AR o



ZEAEER PRREXAGERMERER AR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFEERAR MY RE

31 December 2016 —ZE—X~"F+=-A=+—H

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

27. THESMTA

2016 2015
—E'—% ZT—RHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARETT AREBFIT
Cross-currency interest rate swaps ~ RAF(ER X G F & 5 £
at fair value (notes 5 & 7) (FFE5 K 7) (a) 22,961 -
Interest rate swaps 2R 45 HY (b) - -
22,961 -
Derivative financial instruments represent fair value gains on cross- RZE—XR"F+ZA=+—8 T4
currency interest rate swap contracts as at 31 December 2016. RTERERINEBNEREHEH 2 AT
B ©
Notes: BT

(a) The Group uses cross-currency interest rate swaps to manage its
currency and interest risks. On 28 January 2016 and 2 November 2016,
the Group entered into cross-currency interest rate swap contracts with
banks, covering a period from 19 February 2016 to 13 August 2018.
The cross-currency interest rate swap contracts entitle the Group to
receive interest at floating rates on an aggregate notional principal of
US$100 million and to pay interest at fixed rates on an aggregate notional
principal of RMB669 million simultaneously. The Group agreed with the
banks to swap the interest difference between fixed rate and floating rate,
as well as the currency difference between US$ and RMB, respectively,
on the respective deemed notional principal amounts on a three-month

basis.

(b) The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk. On
30 June 2015, the Group entered into interest rate swap contracts with
the bank, covering periods from 30 June 2015 to 29 June 2018. The
interest rate swap contracts entitle the Group to receive interest at floating
rate on an aggregate notional principal of US$5 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB33 million) and to pay interest at fixed rate on the
same notional principal amount simultaneously. The Group agreed with
the bank to swap the interest difference between fixed rate and floating
rate, on the deemed notional principal amount on a three-month basis.
As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the interest rate swaps was

estimated to be zero.

AEEFAZXXEEFERFHEER
EELMERR  R_T—X<F—A
—+tNBEERZZE—R"F+—A=ZH"
ANEEE ERIRTTEI S R X G MR R 5 H
AH) AHHA-TE—XRE_AtA
BHE-Z—)/\F/N\A+=8- - REX
XEBFEEHELH  NEBAER
TE B 4 2 AR 4858 100,000,000
ETTUERF B - B RHRE E M E A
E A& 485 A R % 669,000,000 7T %
AL - RZRIEREANSEEIZ=(E
AEEHNE - AEBARTHERR
EEF KRB ZEFROFEE5E
IARFETHARBHEBZE -

AEEMBAANRIEHEREFERR
BeR-ZT—AEA=1+H " K&
EHEETSREBII LN EREHE
4 AHBRA-—T—RFA=1+H
ZE-ZE-NEXAZTNB - REF
RIEHAEL  REEFRIRFEFER
BB E A S A% 55,000,000 5T (4
R4 A R # 33,000,000 7T ) W ELF
B RNEEEMERZRA—BER
SEINAE - AR EERASHE
BRoEAEEHNE  AEEHE—RR
T E IR E T R BRI Z B F R Y
MEZ - RZB—RF+_A=1+—
B FIREHH AR EGT AR -
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. Mt BRITREMER
LOANS
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
—g-~&t+-H=1+-H =
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB" 000
ERHIZE%) HE  ARETT  EBEAE(%) Elf i ARETT
Current ok )
Revolving loans BREN
~secured By Hong Kong
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“HIBOR") HIBOR
+3~3.5 +3~35
FERT BBRIT
FE%FE  Ondemand FZFE  Ondemand
+3~3.5 BEK 40,323 +3-35 BEX 28,051
~ Unsecured - BER London
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“LIBOR") +3.25 LIBOR+3.25
fREERTT WHIRIT
FI%#E  Ondemand FZ#E  Ondemand
+3.25 BER 3,466 +3.25 REX 3,246
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. M BRITRAMERR (E)
LOANS (Continued)
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
—%-"§t-A=t-H B =
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB" 000
ERHIZE%) HE  ARETT  EBEME(%) HE ARETR
Bank loans BITER
~ secured - BEA LIBOR+3.4
®Z#E7T  Ondemand
- - - FEKRE+34 REX 18,046
LIBOR+1.5~3.75 LIBOR+3.75
fREERIT tRFIRTT
GEiCN REFE
+1.5~3.75 2017 314,150 +3.75 2016 12,697
HIBOR+0.95~4 HIBOR+0.95~4
ERRT BRI
FEHE RIZEFE
+0.95~4 2017 50,109 +0.95~4 2016 30,352
4.35~6.9 2017 598,910 4.30~7.84 2016 824,700
Bank loans HBITER
~ unsecured - EEA LIBOR+2.75
fREIRIT
R E
- - - +2.75 2016 5,309
4.35 2017 70,000 535 2016 50,000
Other loans HER
- secured -5ER 3.92 2017 15,000 5.04 2016 30,000
- secured® -BHEEL 9.41 2017 31,579 9.41 2016 36,770
- secured®? - 9.55 2017 24,235 - - -
Other loans HiEH
— unsecured® B Siiwilt) 9.07 2017 528 9.07 2016 1,606

1,148,300

1,040,777
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. M BMITRAMERR (5)
LOANS (Continued)
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
—g-~&t+-H=1+-H =
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB" 000
ERHIZE%) HE  ARETT  EBEAE(%) I ARETR
Non-current FinE
Bank loans BITER
- secured -BHA LIBOR+
LIBOR+1.5~3.75 3.4~3.75
RERIT fRFIRTT
CES/C) RZEHRE+
+1.5~3.75 2018-2022 474,769 3.4~3.75 2017-2018 713,993
HIBOR+
HIBOR+0.95~3 0.95~4
ERMT BRRIT
FEHE EES-RS
+0.95~3 2018-2020 269,925 0.95~4 2017-2020 214,632
5.15~5.93 2018-2029 761,817 5.15~6.67 2017-2029 519,148
Other loans HiE®
- secured - BER 3.92 2018-2019 45,000 - - -
- secured” - BEmO 9.41 2018 54,668 9.41 2017-2018 78,810
- secured®@ - BHEF 9.55 2018-2023 146,087 - - -
Other loans HER
- unsecured® - AR 9.07 2018-2034 17,704 9.07 2017-2034 15,323

1,769,970 1,541,906

2,918,270 2,582,683
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

1

It represented the other loan borrowed from an independent
third party leasing company by Hunan Singyes, a subsidiary of
the Group, by way of a solar photovoltaic power station sale-
leaseback arrangement, with the principal of RMB125 million
on 9 July 2015, which bears interest at an effective rate of
9.41% per annum with monthly equal instalment payments up
to the maturity date on 30 June 2018. Hunan Singyes sets its
37.72MW solar photovoltaic power station as the security to the
other loan in substance. In addition, Hunan Singyes made a
refundable guarantee deposit of RMB7.8 million with the leasing
company.

It represented the other loan borrowed from an independent
third party leasing company by Yangjiang Singyes, a subsidiary
of the Group, by way of a solar photovoltaic power station sale-
leaseback arrangement, with the principal of RMB200 million
on 26 January 2016, which bears interest at an effective rate of
9.55% per annum with monthly equal instalment payments up
to the maturity date on 30 January 2023. Yangjiang Singyes sets
its 5OMW solar photovoltaic power station as the security to the
other loan in substance. In addition, Yangjiang Singyes made a
refundable guarantee deposit of RMB10 million with the leasing
company.

On 7 November 2014, Singyes Green Investment (HK) Company
Limited (“Singyes Green Investment”) entered into a revenue
distribution agreement regarding a SMW solar photovoltaic power
station (the “Relevant Asset”), which is one of the assets held by
Hunan Singyes, a subsidiary of the Group, with a counterparty,
whereby the counterparty prepaid RMB19,000,000 to the Group
to exchange the right on annual return of the Relevant Asset
for each fiscal year (the “Annual Return”) for twenty years. The
Annual Return is the annual electricity revenue on the Relevant
Asset minus related PRC tax. If in any fiscal year the Annual
Return is less than RMB2,000,000 (the “Minimum Return”), the
Group shall pay the counterparty the Minimum Return. During
the year, RMB2,004,000 was paid to the counterparty.

28. MRRITREMERK ()

(2)

(3

HiEASEME A RHEEER
BUE=TTHERRIAKGEN
REWBEREOZH 2 TAEE

ZEHMER  R-E—RFtA
NAZARE /AR 125,000,000

T BRI RIEFFE.41% 5T
B RERESFRAHAK
R-E—NFEXA=+HIH-
B EEE AE3772KE R
FHEE R BIEREMER o 1t
SN R BB E R EE] A
RIEERET & AR 7,800,000
5o

HiEAREEHBE ARG IZER
BN E=HHEERRAARBEE
REMERBAR LT 2 H A E
BExHMER R-_ZT—XF
—AZtRNBZAEAARE
200,000,000 7T * & B F & #7 &

FMEIBE%EE  HERENE
Ao 8NR REZZE-=F—A8

=TRBH - BIBEXEENE
S0 B ARG RE S KB ERE
R - fhoh - BIIBREHE
DRIV ARERRI 2 AR
10,000,0007C °

R=F-—mO&E+—ALR  BEX%
HREREEB)BRAR([EX
BRERE]DB-2HEF IO
RABRE L AE ([HEEE ]
REAEEMBRRNEEERE
BEE) FT ML — TR A D BC 1A -
Bt ZBFHREAEEENA
X #19,000,0007T - LA 32 #2 48
BMEER -+ RS EMBF
EONFERERH(FRER®R]) 2
M- FREHAEBEENFE
ENWARERBETBEBIE - 1
T B EEOFERHRERA
¥ 2,000,000 7T ([ KB ) -
AIRKEAERHF I N&RER
e £ AR 2,004,000 T2
X FEFT
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. MBRITREMER ()

LOANS (Continued)

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
Analysed into: DR -
Bank loans repayable: AR THIRAAER ZRITER

Within one year —FR 1,076,958 972,401
In the second year FF 786,936 88,472

In the third to fifth F=FEFOF
years, inclusive (BIEBEMSE) 184,144 1,017,953
Beyond five years HEA 535,431 341,348
2,583,469 2,420,174

Other loans repayable: RTYIREEZ HMER

Within one year —FR 71,342 68,376
In the second year FF 110,606 33,809

In the third to fifth F-FEZFERF
years, inclusive (RIEEEME) 108,620 50,689
Beyond five years RAENE 44,233 9,635
334,801 162,509
2,918,270 2,582,683

As at 31 December 2016, except for those bank loans with interest
rates linked with the HIBOR and LIBOR which are denominated in
HK$ and US$, totalling RMB360,357,000, and RMB792,385,000,
respectively, all bank and other loans are denominated in RMB.

RZB—RE+ZA=+—0 KX
HBEBRITRAERB RBBRITRZE
HREHBNRITER(DHEHEARE
360,357,0007T & A B # 792,385,000
TO) BT RERTTAHESN - FIBRTTR
HipEFIGAARKEHE »
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by:

(a)

mortgages over the Group’s buildings with an aggregate carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB583,090,000 (31 December 2015: RMB310,073,000) (note
13(a));

mortgages over the Group’s solar photovoltaic power stations and
their respective rights on the annual return thereof, which had
an aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting period
of approximately RMB1,325,534,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB1,150,558,000) (note 13(c));

the rights on the annual return of the Relevant Asset with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB29,903,000 at the end of
the reporting period (31 December 2015: RMB31,200,000) (note
13(d));

mortgages over the Group’s prepaid land lease payments,
which had a carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period of approximately RMB59,791,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB89,569,000) (note 15);

the pledge of certain of the Group’s trade receivables
of approximately RMB5,598,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB597,000) (note 22);

the pledge of certain of the Group’s tariff adjustment receivables
of approximately RMB103,293,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB89,396,000) (note 23);

28. MRRITREMERK ()

AEEETRITEEMERBATEIR
R

(a) AEEEFHKRE RBREHK
BREEA AT AR 583,090,000
T(ZE—RAF+=ZA=+—8:
A R #310,073,0007t ) ( Mf &
13(a))

by AEBEAGHEARELRES
EEZFERRRENZIZIE -
RBEEHREMEATOAR
#1,325534,000L( =& — &
F+ZA=+—H: AR%
1,150,558,000 7t) (FI7E 13(c))

) REEHAEEEHOARE
29,903,000 ST Y AB B & = F E B
HiE(ZZ—hAF+=ZA=1+—
A : AR #31,200,000 7T (i 5
13(d)) :

d) AEBEENTHBERBENE
B RREHREAEHARE
59,791,000t (=B —HE+—A
=+—H : AR¥89,569,0007T)
(KtzE15))

(e) AEEEMHEKESREHA
FR #5,598000T( =& — R 4
+-A=+—8: AR#¥597,000
7o) (fiEE22)

() ANEEEREEFHIEEKE
4 A R #103,293,0007t( = &
—AETZ A=+ R AR
89,396,000 70) (FzE23) + &
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

(g) the pledge of the Insurance Contracts with fair value of
approximately RMB22,316,000 (note 19); and

(h)  the pledge of equity interests in the following subsidiaries of the
Group:

94.9% equity interests in Xinjiang Singyes;

ii. 94.9% equity interests in Wuwei Dongrun;

iii.  94.9% equity interests in Suixi Xinye; and

iv. 94.9% equity interests in Yangjiang Singyes.
In addition, the Company’s directors have guaranteed certain of the
Group’s bank and other loans for nil consideration, details of which are
as follows (note 40(b)):
() the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei, has guaranteed

the Group’s bank and other loans of RMB475,568,000 (31
December 2015: RMB173,000,000);

(I)  the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun
Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of
RMB290,000,000 (31 December 2015: RMB118,000,000);

(I) the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Xie
Wen, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of
RMB114,710,000 (31 December 2015: RMB153,500,000);

28. MRRITREMERK ()

(g

R DT ELH AR 22,316,000
TERRIRA K (HFE19) : &

REBANATHERRORES
e

i FHIBEERAY94.9% g

i  EVEEEA94.9% g

i, BORIRER4.9%[%IE &

iv.  FTEFEAI94.9% itk -

AN - KRB EERAEEE TIRITR
HEEERMEER  FRBOT (M
5£40(b)) :

)

(1

(11

ARRERIAHEEERAE
SERTREMELERAR®E
475,568,000 T (= F—HF+=
A=+—AR: AR 173,000,000
L)

RARBERA B EERES
BELHEAREREAEEETE
A R #290,000,0007T( = =
—AE+-HA=+—8: AR
118,000,0007%)

ARFEEBAHEERHX
FELRERAFAKRERITER
A R ¥114710,0007t( = &
e R ot el e A NG .
153,500,0007T)
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (Continued)

(Iv)

(v

v

the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei, Sun Jinli and
Xie Wen have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of
RMB50,000,000 (31 December 2015: RMB100,000,000);

the Company’s directors, Mr. Liu Hongwei and his spouse, Ms.
Li Wei, Mr. Sun Jinli and his spouse, Ms. Wang Yanfang, have
jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of RMB87,500,000 (31
December 2015: RMB100,000,000);

the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and
Sun Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank
loans of HK$382,775,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB342,396,000) (31 December 2015: HK$113,705,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB95,260,000); and

the Company’s directors, Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun Jinli,
have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of US$2,909,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB20,177,000) (31 December
2015: Nil).

28. MRRITREMERK ()

(V)

(vin

RARERRMELE  Hoig
FTERHNAERLRERAEE
IRITE AR 50,000,0007T(=
TZ—RAF+-A=Z+—H: AR
#100,000,0007T) :

RARERRMA R ERERD
ERETURBRSETERER
BEEHS X T HRABERAEER
7B R AR %87,500,0007t (=
T—RAF+ZA=+—H: AR
# 100,000,000 7T) :

RAREERA G ELERFZEDE
TEEHRERNEDMBITER
382,775,000 T (HHERDAR
#342,396,00070) (ZE —AF
+=A=+—H : 113,705,000
TT - HHE R A R % 95,260,000
) R

RARERRNEEERESE
FEHRERINEBMBITER
2,909,000 T (HHERHAREE
20,177,00070) (ZE—HF+=
A=1t—8:&)-
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29. TRz &S

2016 2015
—T—RE —T—hEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5T ARSTT ARET T
Convertible bonds, AR ES

liability component: aEHMy (a) 703,989 634,017

Fair value of embedded BMARSTET AR
derivatives ~NEE (b) 15,227 63,552
719,216 697,569

On 8 August 2014, the Company issued 930 units of 5% convertible
bonds in the denomination of RMB1,000,000 each due 8 August
2019 (the “2019 Convertible Bonds”) with a nominal value of
RMB930,000,000. The Company repurchased 6 units of these
convertible bonds during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the subscription agreement
dated 8 August 2014, the conversion price of the 2019 Convertible
Bonds was adjusted to HK$15.72 due to the cash dividends paid by
the Company and rights issue during the year ended 31 December
2016.

The salient terms and conditions of the 2019 Convertible Bonds are as

follows:

(i) Interest rate

The Company shall pay interests on the 2019 Convertible Bonds
at 5.0% per annum.

RZZE—WOENANEB » RABFETR
—Z-AFNANBEHEEAARE
930,000,000 L 930 HFMHEE AR
#1,000,0007C5% AT MK EH ([ =&
—NFARRESR] BE_T—1F
FTZA=+—HLFE AAREREH
6L RES ©

RIEEBHA=—T—MFE N\ A/N\HRER
BRI NEY  BRAR B NR S
BREERREBEZTE—A~Ft+t-A=1+—
AIFFEHR  —E—NEaRRES
BB TR 15.728TT ©

T AF AR E A BRI
s -

(i) #Fi=

AR RRIEEF5.0%FEpL —
T-NEABMBRESFINHE
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Conversion price

The 2019 Convertible Bonds will be convertible into the
Company’s ordinary shares at the initial conversion price
of HK$16.11 per share, subject to adjustments. Amongst
others, consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital distribution, rights
issues of shares or options over shares, rights issues of other
securities, issues at less than the current market price, other
issues at less than the current market price, modification of
rights of conversion, other offers to shareholders, change of
control and other usual adjustment events. The conversion price
may not be reduced so that the conversion shares would fall to
be issued at a discount to their par value.

Maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased and
cancelled, the Company will redeem each of the 2019
Convertible Bonds at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB
principal amount on 8 August 2019.

29. iR fES (8)

(i)

(i)

BiRfE

“E-NFUREREFSAIED
HREREFK 16118 7T (7] T3
E)EBRARAR L AR - ik
BAR (EHEE)ROEH - #F
MREHDE  BAXHEHER
£~ BADIK - S &
RBRAE - BITHEMES  RE
RERHEET BRRERMME
MVEAETT - (BRI BB - Ak
RETHMEE  ZFHEEHR
HMEEHEEMRETHE -
BRETFHREESERERN
N EESTENERET

B HARF R

BRIFENZATER - ERRBEE
N BRAIRQAGR -F
—NEFENANBERARELRS
BNEEXTEESNH —T—N
FABBRES
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(iv) Redemption at the option of the Company

The Company may:

(1)

Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’
notice to the bondholders, at any time after 8 August 2017
but not less than 14 days prior to the maturity date redeem
the bonds in whole but not in part at a redemption price
at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB principal amount
plus accrued and unpaid interest to such date; provided
that no such redemption may be made unless the closing
price of the shares (translated into RMB at the RMB:
HK$ fixed rate as set out in the terms and conditions of
the 2019 convertible bonds) for 20 out of 30 consecutive
trading days ending on a date which is no more than
three stock exchange business days immediately prior to
the date upon which notice of such redemption is given,
was at least 130% of the conversion price then in effect
(translated into RMB at the RMB: HK$ fixed rate as set
out in the terms and conditions of the 2019 convertible
bonds); or

Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 90 days’
notice to the bondholders and the Trustee (which notice
will be irrevocable), the Company may at any time redeem
all, but not some only, of the bonds for the time being
outstanding at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to
such date provided that prior to the date of such notice
at least 90% in RMB principal amount of the bonds
originally issued have already been converted, redeemed
or purchased and cancelled.

29. TR A ()
(iv) FAEEEZERED

R-ZE—tFNANRKE
NERBIH A AT 14 B AR
BH - RESHEAZLT
LIR30 BB TEBE60 HEY
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BELBOBEMNE BT =@
BRrEEA 2 BIbEE
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BB GRS MR TR A R
BHEBTHEEERRER
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18 18R R A P Bl E A
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HEITHEE 2k
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 29. ik EH ()

(v) Redemption at the option of the holders (v) FHHEAREED
The Company will, at the option of the holder of any 2019 RNARBEEMN T —NFAR
Convertible Bonds, redeem all or some only of such holder’s BEHFFEANEE RZ2F
2019 Convertible Bonds on 8 August 2017 at the US Dollar —tFNANBBARB ARG
equivalent of the RMB principal amount. MEBEXTELZIEE ANZE

LEHH T NFAIRRES -

(vi) Redemption of delisting or change of control (vi) PBRhRkiEHIRES SHRFAS
Following the occurrence of a change of control (means when RAEEEEGIEZE (R
Mr. Liu Hongwei ceases for any reason to be the majority wEERERNREETNHAEAT
shareholder of the Company or any other events lead to the FERRIBEARNR AL
significant change of the ownership structure of the Company, BB ERE NI
“Change of Control”) or delisting of the Company (including ([fEdlEE 8 |) SBriE (B FERD
suspension of trading of the Shares on the stock exchange for a RBEHFRXGAEEERESNK
period equal to or more than 20 consecutive trading days) (the HBREE20EZ5RH) ([HBEE
“Relevant Event”), the holder will have the right to require the "% BEABBEZRAR
Company to redeem all, or but not some only, of such holder’s IR ARBEARSENEEEZTTM
2019 Convertible Bonds at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB FEHZEETER BB ET AR
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date FE - EEZBEANEE (BF
fixed for redemption. B ) ZE—NFrJRRES

The fair value of the 2019 Convertible Bonds was determined by an ZE-NFRABRESFHATEIIHRE

independent qualified valuer based on the binomial option pricing

TR EBRGEMBRE A REEEE

model. The carrying amount of the liability component on initial RIEETF - VIAERE B EIS O NEEE
recognition was measured at the proceeds of the 2019 Convertible TR =—F— ﬂﬁT?ﬁﬂxﬁ%mFﬁ@?ﬂ
Bonds (net of transaction cost) minus the fair value of the conversion (B RZEA) BEZZ—NF B
rights of the 2019 Convertible Bonds. BEHFE R L\quEJFE o
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 29. TliRpRtES (8)
(a) Liability component (a) BfEHR
2016 2015
—E—RE ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREEFIT
Liability component at 1 January A— A —H®EEZBD 634,017 589,131
Effective interest recognised FAERNERFE
for the year (notes 6 & 12) (fizE6 X2 12) 116,299 100,610
Interest payable during the year 4 R fEfHFIE (46,327) (50,427)
Repurchase of bonds ERIES - (5,297)
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H 703,989 634,017
(b) Conversion rights (b) EHIRME
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Fair value of conversion rights B8R — B —HMAFE
at 1 January 63,552 227,138
Less: fair value changes of A IR T EEE
conversion rights (fFzE12)
(note 12) (48,325) (163,586)
Fair value of conversion rights ¥R +—A=+—HMNAFE
at 31 December 15,227 63,552
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(b) Conversion rights (Continued)

The fair value change of the conversion rights for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was RMB48,325,000 (2015:
RMB163,586,000), which was recognised in profit or loss and
disclosed separately. The related interest expense of the liability
component of the 2019 Convertible Bonds for the year ended
31 December 2016 amounted to RMB116,299,000 (2015:
RMB100,610,000), which is calculated by using the effective
interest method with an effective interest rate of 17.79% per
annum.

/\Eﬂzﬁt EF'

BERiTEB AR A

29. TiRffES (F)
(b) WiReE(E)

IFFEEBRENR $ﬁ“@%
ARM48325000c (=& —H

4 AR#163,586,00070) © %
é$%¢\¢ﬁ—&%iﬁ%°
—NFIRRESFBEITS
ﬂai E-RNF+ZA=+—
BIEFEOEBAFNERIAAR
#£ 116,299,000 (= — R & :
AR#100,610,0007) @ %458
TH{E FAE BRI R % DA E B FI R
17.79% 5T& -

30. SENIOR NOTES 30. BRERE

2016 2015
ZF—RE i
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AREFT AREFTT
2017 Senior Notes —tFEEER (a) 554,211 548,200
2018 Senior Notes B \EBLEEE (b) 216,792 198,492
771,003 746,692

(@) 2017 Senior Notes (a) =F—tFEEBRERE

On 21 November 2014, the Company issued 7.875% senior
notes with an aggregate nominal value of RMB560,000,000
(the “2017 Senior Notes”) at face value. The net proceeds,
after deducting the issuance costs, amounted to approximately
RMB542,327,000. The 2017 Senior Notes mature on 21
November 2017 and have been listed on the HKSE (stock code:
85704).

R=ZF—HmNE+—A=+—8 "
RARIRHEZETEEEARE
560,000,000 7T #)7.875% 1& 5t 2
B2 —tFEEZRE]D -M
PRABEEEITRAR - FIISRIEE
B A4 A R #542,327,000 7T °
ZELtFBEAEBRBER=_Z
T i i e B Ed B
REBE A LW (FEHFRE :
85704) °
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(@) 2017 Senior Notes (Continued)

The major terms and conditions of the 2017 Senior Notes are as
follows:

(i)

Redemption at the option of the Company

Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’
notice to the holders, at any time, the Company may at its
option to redeem the notes at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the principal amount plus the applicable
premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to (but not including) the redemption date. The applicable
premium is the greater of (1) 1.0% of the principal amount
and (2) the excess of (A) the present value at such
redemption date of 100% of the principal amount, plus
all required remaining scheduled interest payments due
on the 2017 Senior Notes through the maturity date (but
excluding accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption
date), computed using a discount rate equal to 2%, over
(B) the principal amount on the redemption date.

Upon giving not less than 30 days’ nor more than 60
days’ notice to the holder, at any time, the Company may
at its option redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2017 Senior Notes with the net cash
proceeds of one or more sales of common stock of the
Company in one or more equity offerings at a redemption
price of 107.875% of the principal amount of the 2017
Senior Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to
(but not including) the redemption date; provided that at
least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the Senior
Notes remains outstanding after each such redemption
and any such redemption takes place within 60 days after
the closing of the related equity offering.

30. BEF®E(E)
(@) ZT—tFBERR(E)

“EEFEARBNIZERNK

R AgfFan
(i) AR EEREED

AABAITRAREAELT
D30 B L AEEE60 A HY
BAR - BERSRBRENA
©EA100% M EEEEE H
HEREEIEEZA (B
TBEZA) EARMNE
WECBEELOREE - B
BRATERTHRSE
DAL EHLO0% : &(©2)
(A)100% A& B E4 B B B
HHRE ME—T—+5F
BEZEREH B AR 2
FEXNHME TS
(BETRBIENER A g
AEFE) GRFER 2% KO8
BEGHE)BLHBERDA
HIRSEERIRE D

ARAR AR AR A AZELT
230 B BT EBE60 HEY
BRI BERER_-F
—tEFEARBNASEN
107.875% i FE ZEEE A
HUETBHEZB) WES
AFE(E) 2 EEE -
IA—IREZ RIS ED —
R REEARREBR
BTSRRI EFH - fED
B FRERERSR
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(a)

2017 Senior Notes (Continued)

(i) Repurchase of the 2017 Senior Notes upon a Change of
Control

Not later than 30 days following a Change of Control, the
Company will make an offer to purchase all outstanding
2017 Senior Notes (“Change of Control Offer”) at a
purchase price equal to 101% of the principal amount
thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but
not including) the 2017 Senior Notes Change of Control
Offer payment date.

As the estimated fair value of the early redemption right is
insignificant at initial recognition, the embedded derivative
is not separately accounted for. The effective interest rate is
approximately 9.33% per annum after the adjustment for
transaction costs.

30. BEFE®E(E)

(a)

-t EBERR(E)

(i) PEHEZBFELN —F—+
FEILEE

PIN/NETE S el ke
30 HATIR B4 ([ 125 4
BEELN])  RERL L
101% N &L &= e s

ENNFBE(TREZA)
JEET RS F B (anE) K E
EfE  BEMEAEE=Z
—tFRERE -

B A 42 P R (o] 4 0 ) 4 e R B O
R ERBF R - HIRARITE
TAVEBBAR - ERZHK
AEHBER  BEREMNEXHAE
49.33% °
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued) 30. BRER (&)

(@) 2017 Senior Notes (Continued) (a) ZT—tHFEBXEER(E)
The 2017 Senior Notes recognised in the consolidated statement RERE M BAREKPERN =T
of financial position are calculated as follows: —tFEBEEBRZEUATHAG

i
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January " —A— B ZERMEE 548,200 542,822
Effective interest recognised FRERNERF B
during the year (note 6) (FfizE6) 50,111 49,478
Interest payable during the year F R ERFIE (44,100) (44,100)
Carrying amount at Rt A=+—HB2ZFEEE
31 December 554,211 548,200

Fair value of the 2017 Senior —ZE—+FEEEHENATE*

Notes * 536,833 525,694
* The fair value of the 2017 Senior Notes was determined based on * —EtFREERENATE
the price quoted on the HKSE on 31 December 2016. DERBEBHZIMN=_Z—

F+ZA=+—HMMEEE -
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(b) 2018 Senior Notes

On 30 January 2015, the Company issued 7.75% senior notes
with an aggregate nominal value of HK$250,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB197,150,000) at face value, which will
mature in February 2018 (the “2018 Senior Notes”). The 2018
Senior Notes will only be offered outside the United States in
compliance with Regulation S under the United States Securities
Act of 1933, as amended. None of the 2018 Senior Notes will be
offered to the public in Hong Kong and none of the 2018 Senior
Notes will be placed to any connected persons of the Company.
The net proceeds, after deducting the issuance costs, amounted
to approximately RMB182,492,000.

The major terms and conditions of the 2018 Senior Notes are as
follows:

(i)  Redemption at the option of the Company

Upon giving not less than 30 days’ nor more than 60 days’
notice to the holder, at any time, the Company may at
its option redeem the notes at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the principal amount plus the applicable
premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to the redemption date. The applicable premium is the
greater of (1) 1.0% of the principal amount and (2) the
excess of (A) the present value at such redemption date of
100% of the principal amount, plus all required remaining
scheduled interest payments due on the 2018 Senior
Notes through the maturity date (but excluding accrued
and unpaid interest to the redemption date), computed
using a discount rate equal to 2%, over (B) the principal
amount on the redemption date.

30. BEFE®E(E)

(b)

- \FEEER

RZZ—RAFE—A=1+A AR
AIRmEETR -_E—N\F_A
I H 7K € 48 58 /5 250,000,000 7
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FREEERE]) —T—N\FEL
EREEER N - FXEHE
FETSHEA(EIERT) NERE
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)
(b) 2018 Senior Notes (Continued)
(i) Redemption at the option of the Company (Continued)

Upon giving not less than 30 days’ nor more than 60
days’ notice to the holder, at any time, the Company may
at its option redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2018 Senior Notes with the net cash
proceeds of one or more sales of common stock of the
Company in one or more equity offerings at a redemption
price of 107.75% of the principal amount of the 2018
Senior Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to
(but not including) the redemption date; provided that at
least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes
remains outstanding after each such redemption and
any such redemption takes place within 60 days after the
closing of the related equity offering.

(i) Repurchase of the 2018 Senior Notes upon a Change of
Control

Not later than 30 days following a Change of Control, the
Company will make an offer to purchase all outstanding
2018 Senior Notes (“2018 Senior Notes Change of Control
Offer”) at a purchase price equal to 101% of the principal
amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to (but not including) the 2018 Senior Notes Change of
Control Offer payment date.

As the estimated fair value of the early redemption right is
insignificant at initial recognition, the embedded derivative
is not separately accounted for. The effective interest rate is
approximately 11.06% per annum after the adjustment for
transaction costs.

30. BEF®E(E)

(b)
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued) 30. BRER(E)
(b) 2018 Senior Notes (Continued) (b) =T—N\FEREE(E)
The 2018 Senior Notes recognised in the consolidated statement RERE M BAREKFERN =T
of financial position are calculated as follows: —NFEEZBZEUATHAG
=

2016 2015

—E—REF —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETIT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZRmEE,/

(fair value at date of issuance)  (Z%7T B HAEY A F1E) 198,492 182,492
Effective interest recognised FAERNERFE

during the year (note 6) (MizE6) 21,708 17,807
Interest payable during the year R JE{F] S (16,581) (13,860)
Exchange realignment PE 3% 13,173 12,053
Carrying amount at Rt A=+—HZEHEE

31 December 216,792 198,492

Fair value of the 2018 Senior ~—ZE—N\FEEZEHNAFE*

Notes * 226,383 215,815
* The fair value of the 2018 Senior Notes has been calculated * - N\FEEAZENATE
by discounting the contractual cash flows over the remaining BBKEANReRERERR
contractual term of the 2018 Senior Notes at the risk-free interest MEMEERERRSMHEE
rate plus credit spread and liquidity spread. RZZE-NFELEZBOFR

BRHMRAFEHE
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31. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

31.

EEBIIR

EXEHBAEERABRRNFARANZSHN

are as follows: T
Deferred tax assets IBEBIEEE
Discount in
Govern- retention
ment receivables
Tax losses grants FEl Others Total
BIEEE BRFEE ERSrm Hit @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARETR
At 1 January 2015 RZZ—H%—H—H 6,070 18,682 5,766 1,990 32,508
Deferred tax credited/ FREEA/ (NBRA)
(charged) to profit or loss BaEmELETE
during the year (note 10) (P 10) (3,734) 4,924 (3,423) 3,832 1,599
At31 December2015and ~ R-Z—HFE+-A=+—H
at 1 January 2016 ERZZE—R"E—A—H 2,336 23,606 2,343 5,822 34,107
Deferred tax credited/ FREEA/ (NKRA)
(charged) to profit or loss BaRmIELRE
during the year (note 10) (fit3E 10) (2,191) (2,259) (558) 3,189 (1,819)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—R"F+-A=+—H 145 21,347 1,785 9,011 32,288
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31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax assets (Continued)

The Group has total tax losses arising in Malaysia, Singapore and Hong
Kong of RMB38,983,000 (2015: RMB88,208,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in
Mainland China of RMB25,600,000 (2015: RMB46,603,000) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these tax losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss making and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities

31. BEHIE (45)

EERIAZE (H)

REBMAEESRAD « FIEREEE
ERITIB 1B 4858 A R 38,983,000 7T
(ZZ—1%F : AR¥88,208,0007T) Al
FA A 48 PR B S E AE 548 2 A AR AR 2R
FERBUR T o ANEEING B RREE
4 R B IE 18 A R ¥ 25,600,000 7T (=
T—AhF : AR 46,603,0007T) 7] A
RIS E £ 518 2 A Bl AR R FERFLE
A R —ERFRINE - RZEHIE
BEITEBRREEHIEEERERN—B
BENNBRARES  BERRRERT
AT AEEEERIESBE 2 e
Koo

BEBIEAR

Withholding taxes

&
RMB’000
AREBTR
At 1 January 2016 and RZZE—R"F—A—ABK
31 December 2016 —E-XF+-A=+—H 86,860
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31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 31. EREHIIE ()

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Under the CIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in
the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of temporary
differences attributable to the profits of the PRC subsidiaries during
the year, as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB1,407,503,000 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: RMB848,182,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

EERESR (E)

BRETBECEMEHE  A-TTN\F
—A—Bi& - st B E A R AR
EANE RS BRRTEI - AR
B AR R AR - B
ZFEAREEERATEED - I ER
FREL BT EKNE QRSN E =
BESEMBANKATRIELENIA
RIZE-—RF+-A=+—0 BHEKE
R EORBARBENE R EME
(L EH U RERIBLERIBEE) & KO
ANER#1,407,503,000C(ZF—FH4F :
ARHE848,182,0007T) °

AN A ) B BROIR A A B R R R B AT
{FEHiEE -
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ERMTIERBERAR A

32. DEFERRED INCOME 32. iBEWER
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AREEFIT
Government grants BT B
At 1 January n—H—H 537,807 439,273
Government grants related to assets 4 AURENEE & E R BT A BY
received during the year 888 175,724
Released to profit or loss (note 5): B =EE (MRED)
Over the expected useful lives of LB EE AT
the related assets (19,830) (32,985)
Upon disposal of the related assets &/ & ER (247,395) -
Related to disposal of assets FHARTFEHEEE
in previous years - (44,205)
At 31 December ®W+—-—A=+—H 271,470 537,807
Deferred income represented government grants received by the Group BEWEEASEBEFABE 2 K5
in respect of the construction of roof top solar power stations under the HIR| TERNETEAGESL - A
“Golden Sun Demonstration Project”, and other items of property, plant REAMYIZ - HE &R EBEB MR8
and equipment. BT #E8h °
The deferred income is released to profit or loss at the annual BEWEIEF D BREEELE - UG
instalment to match with the expected useful lives of the relevant EEEEMTEEAR(F AFHE -

assets.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. Ig&
Shares B
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FET FET

Authorised: VERE ¢

1,200,000,000 ordinary shares 1,200,000,000 A%

of US$0.01 each BEEOC.0l E AT B 12,000 12,000

Issued and fully paid: BEITREHR

834,073,195 (2015: 695,060,996) 834,073,195 fix

ordinary shares of US$0.01 each (ZZ—HRF : 695,060,996 %)
SREEO.01 =L E B 8,341 6,951
Equivalent to RMB’000 e AREFT 55,785 46,443
During the year, the movements in issued capital were as follows: RAFEE  BEITRAZEHIT ¢
Number of Issued
shares in issue capital
25817
BRiEE EETIRA
RMB’000
AREET T

At 1 January 2015 e e e 695,395,996 46,466
Shares repurchased Al (1,369,000) (87)
Share options exercised [EESRE e 1,034,000 64
At 31 December 2015 and R-_Z—HF+-_A=+—8k

1 January 2016 R=F—nF—HA—H 695,060,996 46,443
Rights issue* AR * 139,012,199 9,342

At 31 December 2016 R A e e 834,073,195 55785
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

* A rights issue of one rights share for every five existing shares
held by members on the register of members on 20 June 2016
was made, at an issue price of HK$2.60 per rights share,
resulting in the issue of 139,012,199 shares for net proceeds,
after deducting issuance expenses, of HK$354,681,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB305,596,000).

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include directors and employees of the
Group. The Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders on
19 December 2008 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

33.

34.

B ()
Rzt (48

* 12T B BB 19 2.60 7 TTE 1T B 5t
R E—RNENA_THBREER
MREFHFE AR ARG AT &%
— AR B AR AR 1D MEATHEAR - Rk AT
139,012,199k A& 15 - P15 3K F 88
(B 37T F 2 18 ) 354,681,000 7% 7T
(HHE 74 A R % 305,596,000 7T) °

N

FERHEST S

ARRRIERAETE (%8 2R
TREREENKDEEMBRRING
RS EERHEE LR - ZFTENA
ERZPEEQREERAKEES - %
AER—TENFT_ATIABEERR
BIRCRHALME - BRIFBGEIHHIER] - BH
ZaT I B RRRE T F RO

BB AL FFR IR AL AT B H O RTT R AR
BERSEE AEEN (FRETRE) A
AR E S #EITRN Z10%
PAME -+ —{E A EAfE A T AR SR B A ()
BERAER2EERTHNRSRNOEUE
TIRR AR BN EAEFEE #HTR D Z
1% o (B HURENE - HFREE
PR RIS R INBRR A& LU ©
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive officer or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
RMB1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a
vesting period of 0.5 to 3 years and ends on a date which is a period of
10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the HKSE closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average HKSE closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

34. Rt R (8)

BYRARAIEE  THEHKEER
R SRESEMBBEA T ZERE 15
BELREGSEIIINITES 2L - 1t
AN IMEA+ =@ A B AR T AR E]
FTERRAEIIFNITES - I EF
B8 AT 2 FERE - LBBAA
BRI R B BT 1D 2 0.1% sk &
BEGRBARRNEL A B ZRE
H) #8318 5,000,000 7T + HAERKEA
@ FREEERE B -

REBERE EHNTTHARABEYR
HESF T NAARINREBEANRES
AR I TRER - IR EREZ
THRHHMESET  UNFFE=F2
FRAKMLER R AR m T 5
ZBABILE-

BREZITFEEHESET  ETAE
RAT&ESE : () AR RRMDRERE
T A B BB R AT 2 TTE ¢ ()&
RERMIREEZH A AERS A
BB 2 FHWRTE i)k
D2 EE -

FERHE Y T T A AWER I B SR
RARE LIRERER -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. MERztEsTEl (8)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during FRZETE THARITEZBRENAT ¢
the year:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise price Number exercise price Number

% IniE of options SR IniE of options
EHITEE  BRERE  FHaEE BIREsE

HK$ HK$
per share '000 per share ‘000
T T3 BT T
At 1 January wn—A—H 5.31 24,414 3.21 19,448
Granted during the year FREN - - 11.70 6,000
Adjusted during the year * FRFEE 5.26 107 - -
Exercised during the year FERNTE - - 3.08 (1,034)

At 31 December WtTtZA=+—H 5.29 24,521 531 24,414
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. RERR#ERHEI (/8)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options R EAREARITEBEREITEER
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: TTEEAAT

Number of options '000*

BRESE TH
Before adjustment After adjustment
TRA kg
Exercise Exercise
price HK$ price HK$
per share per share
before after As at As at
adjustment  adjustment  31/12/2016 31/12/2016
k] HEE R-B-REF Rights issue NoB—RE
Exercise period BRITEE BRTEE +=A Exercised  adjustment Exercised +=A
TER BT BT =t+-8 EfTfE iR EfTfE =t+-8
23/01/10-22/07/19 3.58 3.56 2,772 - 12 - 2,784
23/07/10-22/07/19 3.58 3.56 3,321 - 15 - 3,336
23/07/11-22/07/19 358 3.56 5,121 - 22 - 5,143
11/10/12-10/10/21 2.68 2.67 1,440 - 7 - 1,447
11/10/13-10/10/21 2.68 2.67 1,440 - 7 - 1,447
11/10/14-10/10/21 2.68 2.67 1,440 - 6 - 1,446
11/10/15-10/10/21 2.68 2.67 1,440 - 6 - 1,446
11/10/16-10/10/21 2.68 2.67 1,440 - 6 - 1,446
22/05/16-21/05/25 11.70 11.65 2,000 - 8 - 2,008
22/05/17-21/05/25 11.70 11.65 2,000 - 9 - 2,009
22/05/18-21/05/25 11.70 11.65 2,000 - 9 - 2,009
Total 5t 24,414 - 107 - 24,521
i Upon completion of the rights issue which was approved by the * REXHR(EREREAAFTRZE
shareholders in an annual general meeting of the Company held —ANFRAZHABBIZRRBF
Ag EHE) 1% - RIBE SR E 2 BAR

on 26 May 2016, the exercise price of the share options granted - = £
2 ATEEA RN BEATE R ARITE

under the Scheme and the number of shares to be allotted and B K B 25 S 1 U P B B 1

issued upon full exercise of the subscription rights attaching SRGBE - DIREE ER AR
to the outstanding share options were adjusted in accordance MY AA-ZEEREAARBEY
with the terms of the Scheme and the supplementary guidance R B AS 2 B R IR AR 2 W TR
attached to the letter from the Stock Exchange dated 5 SIfEHLFREE -

September 2005 relating to adjustments to share options.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The Group recognised a share option expense of HK$13,756,883
(equivalent to approximately RMB11,773,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$12,963,591, equivalent to
approximately RMB10,415,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 24,521,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, results in the issue of 24,521,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of US$245,210
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,701,022) and share premium of
approximately RMB114,235,185 (before issue expenses and after the
amount to be transferred from share option reserve to share premium
upon the exercise of the related share options).

As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the Company
had 24,521,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 2.94% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

=

—NEFR PR KR

BERiT R AR AT

34. BER#EsTEI (8)

E&f

ZE-RF+ZA=+—HLF
e ZK% TR R 13,756,883
B (EERH AR 11,773,000 )
—E—FHF 12,963,591 87T 0 HE
R AR 10,415,0007T) °

—

RBESHR RARBREZStEAE
24,521,00017 i RITFE B AR 4 » 32 5
WARTTE RS AR N 2 BUETTIE - TEAR
AIZIRAEREET BRI
724,521,000 8% 78 2 7) I 38 B8 I E A4
FIMNE AR 245210 T (BBERHAR
¥ 1,701,022 7T ) K& 17 i B AN R
114,235,185 7T, (PAH0RR 81T R 2 AT K7
OB H PO AE A B AR R T T R Pr E B R A
BEERERMEENSHEE)

A B MARAER - AR ARBEZET
&1 24,521,000 17 M AR TERE R - 48
ERARRNZACETRNEI2.94% -
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35. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 90 to 91 of the financial statements.

(a) Statutory reserves of the PRC subsidiaries

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using
Chinese and Foreign Investment” and the respective articles
of association of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China,
appropriations from net profit, as determined in accordance
with PRC generally accepted accounting principles (“PRC
GAAP”) and after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years,
should be made to the statutory reserve fund and the enterprise
expansion fund, and before profit distributions to the investors.
The reserve fund can be used to offset accumulated losses or to
increase capital.

(b) Enterprise expansion fund

The enterprise expansion fund can be used for business
development or to increase capital. The percentages to be
appropriated to the reserve fund and the enterprise expansion
fund in the foreign investment subsidiaries are determined by
the board of directors. In addition, the wholly-foreign-owned
subsidiaries are not required to appropriate the enterprise
expansion fund, and the percentages to be appropriated to the
reserve fund shall be no less than 10%. When the cumulative
reserve fund reaches one-half of the registered capital, the
appropriation is no longer mandatory.

35. e

AREAEERBEFE RECER
B B RN BEEFE0ASHL
B2 GAERETEN -

(@) PEMBATNEERAE

RIBCPEARLMBE TG EL
B FIR) R ANER B P B FEH
BRRMARER - BItREH
BAREFEN((HFEARER
R ) EERAH (RIEHEFR
HEEE - RAKREE D IKEF
A BWEEREES REEER
A ZREESTHIEHER
FHEERIENEA -

(b) HEERES

CEERESTAREBERSL
BINEAR o SR E B QAR
NEREESREEBERESH
BOLLHESEEE M 5
BEECEBABENENED
ERRED MENEFRGER
MBDLLAETDRI0% - R
BESRAEZEIEMER—¥
By AR -



-

=

—NEFR PR ARG RITER AR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY et

31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—8

35. RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire or be forfeited.

Safety fund surplus reserve

Pursuant to a Notice regarding Safety Production Expenditure
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Work Safety of the PRC in February 2012, the
Group is required to establish a safety fund surplus reserve. The
safety fund can only be transferred to retained profits to offset
safety related expenses as and when they are incurred, including
expenses related to safety protection facilities and equipment
improvement and maintenance as well as safety production
inspection, appraisal, consultation and training.

35. fi#fE ()

(c)

(d)

RRRz R

BRERERFCRHERARTT
R EREN A TE  E—2H
i BTSRRI L 2.4 B B AR
RERO G FHE - %K
EAR T ER TR ERE
Bt Bk - ARk AR E
AR - RIS REB R o

REEERRHA

REPRET BRI RERE 2 EE
EEERBRN T —=-F=A
sEEMN—REARNEEEESR
BiEM . AEBARULZEES
BpFEE Z2ESRARESE
e 2R M A L 248
R - BEETREE LR

RARGENR T EERSE
EEEE KFEIEENFAE o

UV

aha
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36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

36. HE—RIMEBAE

2016
—E—REF
RMB’000
AREBTR
Net assets disposed of: BHEEEFE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B kB 22,044
Cash and bank balances & MIRITEETT 131
Trade receivables eI E 5508 911
Prepayments, deposits and TERNRIE - 5] REARUEIR
other receivables 3,637
Other payables and accruals Bt JE TR IE [ FE AT FRIA (26,265)
458
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FNBARZEE (8)
450

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and

cash equivalents in respect

HHE-—FHRBRARNRENREEE

of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: IR ERE AT
RMB’000
ARETRT
Cash and bank balances disposed of © &R E RIFITHAET (131)
Net outflow of cash and cash HHE—EHBA R
equivalents in respect of the B RESEEMTRE
disposal of a subsidiary (131)
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. FAREE
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no significant contingent RZZE—ARF+ZA=+—H  A5£H
liabilities. WEEBASAEE ©
38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 38. FEERYILHE
(@) As lessor (@) fEBHIBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) under REBERBEEHNLHELHEE
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms BEME(HiE14)  ZEHRY
ranging from three to four years. TEHHA=FMUF -
At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum RZE—XRF+=-_A=+—H"
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its NEBRER T3 FHEEHH T
tenants falling due as follows: A JAY B8 4K = AH K9 Y R R S AR R IR
ME@EOT -
2016 2015
—E—REFE —E—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARETTT
Within one year —FR 2,483 -
In the second to fifth years, F_EFEAF(BEERMT)
inclusive 4,880 -

7,363 -
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38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(Continued)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office premises and land from
certain grantees of the land use rights under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of
one to twenty-five years. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

38. FERHRH(E)

(b)

{EFZBEAN

AEBERBLEHOLHA 0
ERENE TRRABRRE TH
NEMEANR T4 - ZEWETE
WHERRR—2-THF -1
BERR - ARERER T4
HIZI e A AT AR R 2 AR R
REERNESEBMT

2016 2015

—E—RE ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBFT

Within one year —FR 2,532 571
In the second to fifth years, F_EZEAF(REERMT)

inclusive 3,279 20

After five years R 4,281 -

10,092 591
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39. COMMITMENTS 39. &1
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 38 B _ESCBT 5E 38 Bl 2 A8 R AT EAES -
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of REREIR « AEEE T ERAE

the reporting period:

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Contracted, but not provided for: EEESIEES LR

Construction of buildings and BREF R AR
solar photovoltaic power stations FIRE UL 205,533 250,030
Purchase of machinery IR E SR 788 5,318

Capital contributions to MEEARNEE

be injected into associates 12,000 38,962

218,321 294,310




228 China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

31 December 2016 —ZE—X~"F+=-A=+—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. FAEH X SR8
BALANCES
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) FRZEMEHREE MM T FRRZ
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions S9N FRNEBEBEAE T 5 R
with related parties during the year: EHNRS
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
Associates: Bt N T] -
Sales of products HEEM 635,237 132,856
Construction contracts BEAR 169,038 -

804,275 132,856
Interest-free advances B B8R 23,660 6,210
Loan* B 68,110 -
The sales and construction services provided to associates were ME AR RIRMZ HE REER
made according to the published prices and conditions offered B DURETAEEXERR
to the major customers of the Group. ZE DB R R KR
- The loan to an associate is interest-bearing at a fixed rate of 4.75% * M E ARIREMNEFRUAEE
per annum and will fall due in 2017, which is secured by the FREATS%ETE  RIERZ
rights on the annual return of a 100MW solar photovoltaic power T—EFEH - WAI00KE
station. SR E 5k B 3R A0 HE FIER

o
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(b)  Other transactions with related parties

As at 31 December 2016, details of bank and other loans
guarantees provided by related parties of the Group for nil
consideration are as follows:

(i)  the Group’s bank and other loans of RMB475,568,000
were guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei;

(i) the Group’s bank loans of RMB290,000,000 were
guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun Jinli;

(i)  the Group’s bank loans of RMB114,710,000 were
guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Xie Wen;

(iv) the Group’s bank loans of RMB50,000,000 were
guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei, Sun Jinli and
Xie Wen;

(v)  the Group’s bank loans of RMB87,500,000 were jointly
guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei and his spouse, Ms. Li
Wei, and Mr. Sun Jinli and his spouse, Ms. Wang Yanfang;

(vi) the Group’s bank loans with a principal of
HK$382,775,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB342,396,000) were guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu
Hongwei and Sun Jinli; and

(vii) the Group’s bank loans with a principal of US$2,909,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB20,180,000) were
guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun Jinli.

40. FER X SR &0 (1F)

ks

TR

PEHNEAMZ 5

RZE—RE+ZA=+—8H"
AEBRETBEERT ZBRITR
HWERERET

() AEEZBITIREMERA
R # 475,568,000 7T # 24T
SRR

(i) AEBZRITERARE
290,000,000 7T 3 24T # 55
ERFERTEKRER

(i) TEBZRITERARE
114,710,000 7T 1 24T 4 5
A A SRR

(iv) ARBZRITERARE
50,000,000 7T £ 2 AL 4 55
£ ReREERHXEE
HEHER

V) AEBMZRITEZFRARE
87,500,000 7T Jy 1 B 4T #E
TERERBIHZLE - &
SEEERERBTYRS X
THEER

Vi) RNEBZRITEREESR
382,775,000 7T (48 & R
# A R # 342,396,000 7T )
mBAI R ER AR EE
HEER: &

(i) AEBZRITERLAEE
2,909,000 7t (18 & M 49
AR#20,180,0007T) H 2|
AR ERRSE AR
IR -
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

40. FER X SR &0 (45)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) MBEHKREEER
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB
ARETT AR

Due from associates: FEYEEE AT

Trade receivables FEWE 53 IE 371,270 63,629
Other receivables H A e R IE 97,980 6,210
469,250 69,839

Due to an associate: FEf— B AR

Other payables HAb e FRIA 3,892 -
Trade receivables are unsecured and interest-free. The credit EWE SHRIBAERFRRE -
terms granted to the associates are consistent with the terms B —HBEE FNEERE
offered to the major customers of the Group. REFAEETERP ZHR—

ﬁ o

PR BB & R R IR BRI AR
68, 11000075( —E-HEF:

Except the balances of approximately RMB68,110,000 (2015:
Nil) due from an associate are secured by the rights on the

annual return of the 100MW solar photovoltaic power station,
bear interest at 4.75% per annum and will fall due in 2017,
other balances included in other receivables due from the
associates are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment.

4 ) LAL100 YK FL ¢ 4K B vk R & (8]
R BEFEER - RETEF =
475% T ERER T —+F 5|
HRZ Hh - Efth B U B & A R FRIE
REREMEMERAERER - £
B I 4 E E SR EARR o
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. FEFR R SR (E)
BALANCES (Continued)
(d)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group (d) AEETEEREABNH N
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—HRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Salaries, allowances and e ERREYA =
benefits in kind 8,629 10,172
Pension scheme contributions  R{R& 5T 2130 181 196
8,810 10,368
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments ERAEERITHAENENE—PHEB
are included in note 8 to the financial statements. BN S RERMITES o
41. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 41. £RIEEEZR
Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety AERERIERANEEZCREE
2016 2015
—F—REF —E—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BIsE AREFT ARETTT
Gross amounts of assets that HETRRNEERTE
continued to be recognised:
Discounted Bills AR E IR (a) 146,935 255,840
Endorsed Bills EFERR (b) 106,666 144,189

253,601 400,029
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41. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

(a)

Discounted Bills

At 31 December 2016, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable (the “Discounted Bills”) with a total carrying amount
of RMB146,935,000 (2015: RMB255,840,000) to certain local
banks in the PRC. The Discounted Bills have a maturity from
one to eleven months at 31 December 2016. In accordance
with the law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders
of the Discounted Bills have a right of resource against the
Group if the PRC banks default. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to the Discounted Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the carrying amounts of
the Discounted Bills and the respective bank loans (the carrying
amounts of the Discounted Bills deduct the discount interest).
Subsequent to the discounting, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Discounted Bills, including sale, transfer
or pledge of the Discounted Bills to any other third parties.
The aggregate carrying amount of the bank loans recognised
due to the Discounted Bills was RMB144,949,000 (2015:
RMB251,699,000) as at 31 December 2016.

41. ERMEEER(E)

(a)

AEIREER

RZE-—RNE+ZA=+—
H A5EBRAEEREARE
146,935,000t (=T —HF : A
2 #255,840,0007T ) 9 & T f&
WEE(TRRERK ) AR T A
BE T EHiET - RZZT—RF
TZA=+—8 " BEZENE
HEEA—Z+—@A - BiEH
BIZEEL  mPERTELY B
REBRFBEABERANEEE
R-BERB AKEEREBX
o R RO R (RENEER
BHRR)  FAEEmERILE
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(BH3R 25 /) BR T (B 30 B 8L IR 7
B BhR%E  AEBEWERE
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41. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

41. ERMEEER(E)

(Continued)
(b) Endorsed Bills (b) FEER
At 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed certain bills RZE—RF+=ZA=+—

receivable accepted by certain local banks in the PRC
(the “Endorsed Bills”) with a total carrying amount of
RMB106,666,000 (2015: RMB144,189,000) to certain of its
suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to those
suppliers. The Endorsed Bills had a maturity of one to six
months at 31 December 2016. In accordance with the Law of
Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Endorsed
Bills have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default. In the opinion of the directors, the Group has retained
the substantial risks and rewards, which include default risks
relating to the Endorsed Bills, and accordingly, it continued
to recognise the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills
and the associated trade payables settled. Subsequent to the
endorsement, the Group did not retain any rights on the use
of the Endorsed Bills, including sale, transfer or pledge of
the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties. The aggregate
carrying amount of the trade and other payables settled by
the Endorsed Bills during the year to which the suppliers have
recourse was RMB106,666,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB144,189,000).

B AEEKFTEETE
BITEXHBEREEEARE
106,666,000 L( =T —HF : A
R #144,189,0007T ) M) & T J&
KER(TEEERDBETET
HER  UAEBENZSHERS
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HEEAE—ZNER - RETEH
L R ERITEN  BE
EEBEAGERAEEER -
EERE AEECRBAIBH
R ER(EIESEZHRELR
%) A EERRSEZE A
HEEEENESRIBR IR
HE - BER  AEETERSR
FERAEEZEMNEMER - 21E
MEAEME = HE - #iEs
EREERRE - FANRERS
BRENSEZBAENEIR
HihENFIERZE—RF+=
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41. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their
entirety

As at 31 December 2016, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC, with
a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB58,118,000 (referred
to as the “Derecognised Bills”, 2015: RMB110,863,000). The
Derecognised Bills had a maturity from one to five months at the end
of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amount of the Derecognised Bills. The maximum exposure to loss from
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is
equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
are not significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expense of
RMB12,256,000 (2015: RMB18,942,000) (note 6) on discounted bills
receivable. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.

41. ERMEEER(E)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2016

Financial assets

42. BEMEI ST A

FHEERIANKSHRNERER

-

—T-RF

Loans and Available-for-sale

receivables  financial assets

S04 oIt E Total

FEMSRIE SRIEE “ast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETRT AREBTRT

Available-for-sale investments AHEEERE - 80,512 80,512

Trade and bill receivables FE W 5 008 I R R B 3,373,065 - 3,373,065

Financial assets included in FFATEREUE « 5Te &

prepayments, deposits and Hi B IERN SR EE

other receivables 702,507 - 702,507

Derivative financial instruments #7448 T A 22,961 - 22,961

Pledged deposits HEIRTFI 383,231 - 383,231

Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 680,205 - 680,205

5,161,969 80,512 5,242,481
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. €T AN AFEEAFE
(Continued) =g (E)
2016 (Continued) —EB-RE(E)
Financial liabilities THEE

Financial liabilities

at fair value
through profit or Financial
loss upon initial liabilities at
recognition amortised
MIATERET cost
BRATE g
T B R A FIRRHY Total
SRIBE SRERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARETT ARETT

Trade and bills payables ETE 538 MEN Rk - 1,345,952 1,345,952
Financial liabilities included T AE AR FRIE K

in other payables and [ErTRENEREE

accruals (note 26) (FF5E26) - 202,734 202,734
Convertible bonds (note 29) AR A (MR 29) 15,227 703,989 719,216
Senior notes (note 30) BFEER (M7 30) - 771,003 771,003
Bank advances for ARIREIRIRTTE R

discounted bills (note 41(a)) (7% 41()) - 144,949 144,949
Interest-bearing bank and M BERTT REAME R

other loans - 2,918,270 2,918,270

15,227 6,086,897 6,102,124
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. €T AN AFEEAFE
(Continued) ER|(E)
2015 —T—hHF
Financial assets THEE

Loans and  Available-for-sale
receivables financial assets

BER Kk Al E Total
U IR SEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMETTT ARMETTT ARMETTT

Available-for-sale investments AEHERE - 51,000 51,000
Trade and bill receivables EE 5708 M EW=IE 2,292,195 - 2,292,195
Financial assets included in FFATERRIE ~ FTe &

prepayments, deposits and HEMEYREN S mEE

other receivables 281,340 - 281,340
Pledged deposits i 376,055 - 376,055
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 1,265,303 - 1,265,303

4,214,893 51,000 4,265,893
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. EMTANAFERATE

(Continued) Fah (&)
2015 (Continued) —Z-RF ()
Financial liabilities ZTHEE
Financial liabilities
at fair value
through profit or Financial
loss upon initial liabilities at
recognition amortised
AT R cost
BRAVE R
T AIEEAE B AR AR A Total
TEIAE TRAE 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFT ARBFT
Trade and bills payables JETE 5 30B MBS Rk - 903,503 903,503
Financial liabilities included FTAE A FE A FRIE B
in other payables and JEETHIER SR A S
accruals (note 26) (ftzE26) - 125,161 125,161
Derivative financial PTESMIA
instruments (note 27) (M7E27) - - -
Convertible bonds (note 29) AT AR ES (FIRE29) 63,552 634,017 697,569
Senior notes (note 30) BREE (MHFE30) - 746,692 746,692
Bank advances for MIRFRRITER
discounted bills (note 41(a)) (MizE41G)) - 251,699 251,699
Interest-bearing bank and M B ERIT R EMER
other loans - 2,582,683 2,582,683
63,552 5,243,755 5,307,307
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. S TAPNAFERATE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS =3
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial AEEST A(RRIBAFERE
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably REEREAFESEMEEERIN MK
approximate to fair values due to short term to maturity, are as follows: HEEAFERT
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREFE AFE
2016 2015 2016 2015

ZE-RE —ET—HF ZB-RE —ZT—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARBFrT ARBTRT ARETT

Financial assets SRIEE
Pledged deposits, HEIRF R

non-current portion JEMBNE D 17,352 - 14,408 -
Derivative financial PTESMIA

instruments 22,961 - 22,961 -
Available-for-sale investments AMHHERE 49,559 20,901 49,559 20,901

89,872 20,901 86,928 20,901

Financial liabilities SRIBE
Convertible bonds AR ES 719,216 697,569 860,509 825,070
2017 Senior Notes "R ERERRE 554,211 548,200 537,948 527,045
2018 Senior Notes —E-N\FELEEE 216,792 198,492 226,383 215815
Interest-bearing bank and B BARTT

other loans, R HAER

non-current portion: IERBNES

Bank loans RITER 1,506,511 1,368,963 1,488,583 1,383,138

Other loans HMER 263,459 172,943 232,767 172,943

3,260,189 2,986,167 3,346,190 3,124,011




240 China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

31 December 2016 —Z—XF+-A=+—8

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. EMTANAFERATE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, short term pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The Group has entered into derivative financial instruments, such as
interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps, with the
banks. The fair value of the interest rate swaps and cross-currency
interest rate swaps was estimated by the independent professional
valuer using the discounted cash flow method and the estimation
included some assumptions not supported by observable market rates
such as credit risk, discount rate and expected future cash flows. The
carrying amounts of interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest
rate swaps are the same as their fair values.

The fair value of the 2019 Convertible Bonds was valued by estimating
the value of the whole bond with and without the embedded
derivatives using the binomial option pricing model. The model
incorporates inputs including market price, discount rates and share
price volatility. The value used for significant unobservable input is:
volatility at 54.77%. If the volatility rate had been 3% higher/lower
than management’s estimates at 31 December 2016, the fair value of
conversion rights would have increased/decreased by RMB3,111,000
and RMB2,874,000, respectively.

F4(E)

GEREIE RERRLZEY 8
SRR MR 5O R IR R
- BB REREARE  FTAE
W3R 58 REMBUREN S RE
BE LA B A KL A 3008 2 FE B EOB 0
SRMAEEREEAMGEE  TEREAR
BT A E RIS -

TRMEENBENAFERERESZ
ME AR S (&b B8 ERIN) P %
TAR B ERTIRR

THTDERBRRANREFTAFE

AEBRRFTAIITESHBTEA - 1
MERHRRIXEEM XL - F|Rm
IR X N E B E i ) A FE BB
BXEAEMERBRRSIEMGS &
FAERYEABREMGERREXRL
OO REZ(MEERR - BRRER
BEHRERESRE)  RAUFETEE
Mo g B R X XN B R Be ik
HERKREN A TERR -

“E-NFAHRBREFN QT EBBE
AR =R O e (B AR A (A AT B (B 25 MY
RS RARITE TARSEEN
Al o REGE AT - BBRRRARE
KBEBARBR - REATHERHA
BURERMBE  KIE54.77% ° AR
B ARFETZ A= T BRRSER
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. ST AHNAFERATE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the 2017 Senior Notes are based on quoted market
price (unadjusted) in active markets.

The fair values of the 2018 Senior Notes have been calculated by
discounting the contractual cash flows over the remaining contractual
term of the 2018 Senior Notes at the risk free interest rate plus credit
spread and liquidity spread.

The fair values of the non-current portion of the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other loans have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities,
adjusted by the Group’s own non-performance risk where appropriate.
Values used for significant unobservable input are: discount rates from
1.27% 10 9.55% based on individual loans.

The fair value of the available-for-sale investments relating to the life
insurance contracts is based on the quoted price in a non-active
market obtained from HSBC Life at the end of each reporting period.

The fair value of the available-for-sale investments relating to the
specific asset management plans is calculated by discounting the
contractual cash flows over the remaining contractual term of the
specific asset management plans at the risk free interest rate plus
credit spread.

HR(E)

—E - ERAERBNATEDREE
BTSN TISRE CREHE) -

ZE- \FEAERBNATERBES
HEERERERRTENMEESER
RBEEEN T \EELXZHENT
BRE KV EAIR AITIRETE -

REBEMBRITREMEROAFET
FBERFE  FERBR R T HEH
B RELIA & B T AR R Al S F R
(MAEEEHAERORBRIEL AR (WA
) ARTBERKIR e REMTE - 3t
BEARTAEIREASIRERANEE - &
PMEAEFRBALIRE 1.27% E£9.55% °

BERASRRENAIHEERENAT
EREREREMNREELASRE
HIER RIS MESH -

BFRREEEEEMBZAHHERE
MAFHEBEBRA RS RERERR
MEMEERE  NETEEEHEE
ZRBAHBERAFTRHE
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. EMTANAFERATE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) FH(E)

Fair value hierarchy AFEHER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRHEELAEEESHRTAENHATETE
the Group’s financial instruments: 4

Assets measured at fair value: e FEGTEREE -

Fair value measurement using
FRAUTEEEATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EE  EXUHE EXTOHE
TIRERE LT 6 EANBR
(5—1E) (E=E) (B=@) st
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFRT ARBTT AREBTT

As at 31 December 2016 RIE—7RE
+=-A=+-—H
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIA - 22,961 - 22,961
Available-for-sale investments: AMRHERE ¢
Life insurance contracts ASREBEY - 22,316 o 22,316
Asset management plan BEEETE - = 27,243 27,243
- 45,277 27,243 72,520
As at 31 December 2015 N-T—H%E
+=-A=+-—8
Available-for-sale investments: AEHERE ¢

Life insurance contracts ASERBEL = 20,901 = 20,901
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. EMTAPNAFEHRAE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) EFER (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEHER (B
Liabilities measured at fair value: R FEFENEE

Fair value measurement using
FERALTEERATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EE  EXUHE EXTOHZE
TIBERE LN 6 EABU®
(5—18) (E=E) (B5=E) “aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT ARBTT AREBTT

As at 31 December 2016 R-F—RE
+=-A=+-—H
Convertible bonds: ATMARES ¢
Conversion rights (note 29) B (M7 29) - - 15,227 15,227
As at 31 December 2015 NoT—RE
+=ZA=+—H
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA - - - -
Convertible bonds: AT E S
Conversion rights (note 29) e (fI5E29) i 2 63,552 63,552
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no transfers of BHE—_T—X"E+-A=+—HL#F
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers B oREERSREBENE—EHE
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities. TEZRAYEATFEFTEER N E

BANEHE=E -
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. €T AN AFEEAFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) Eh(B)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEER (B
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: WEEINFENEE -

Fair value measurement using
FERAULTEETEATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EE EXUHE EXTUHZE
TiGR{E LD e LN G
(65—FE) (=) (B=R) #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETR ARETR ARETR

As at 31 December 2016 NZT—7REF
+=-A=+-—H
Pledged deposits, EIRFR -
non-current portion ERBNE S - - 14,408 14,408
Liabilities for which fair HENTFEBE -

values are disclosed:

Fair value measurement using
FERAUTEETEATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
I BEXUHRE EATRTHE
TiGHRE EARR EABHR
(5—E) (B=@) (E=1E) fast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETR ARETR ARETR

As at 31 December 2016 N-B—RE
E=HEk=H

Convertible bonds Bk ES

— Liability component (note 29) - B & (fI3E29) - = 845,282 845,282

2017 Senior notes (note 30) —T—+FEB%EEE 537,948 = = 537,948
(FF5E30)

2018 Senior notes (note 30) —E-N\FELEE = — 226,383 226,383
(FF5E30)

Interest-bearing bank and M BER1T R EAERK -

other loans, non-current portion ERBEB D - = =.1,72%350 1,721,350

537,948

2,793,015 3,330,963
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

-y
_FH
g‘_yﬁ
+
[
B

43. £ TAMNAFERAFE

M2 K PR AT IR AR B BR A 7]

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) E(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEFR (B
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (Continued) RELNFEMNEE - (&)
Fair value measurement using
FANTSEFEATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
JEER EAAEE EATAER
MSME LN BAE
(F—E) (5=1E) (F=1) 4ET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFT AREFTT AREFT
As at 31 December 2015 R-E—A%F
+=HA=+—H
Convertible bonds AR ES
— Liability component (note 29) - BEBD (MizE29) - - 697,569 697,569
2017 Senior notes (note 30) “E—tFEEEE 527,045 = - 527,045
(FF3E30)
2018 Senior notes (note 30) ZE-N\FEERE - = 215,815 215,815
(PI=E30)
Interest-bearing bank and W ESRITREMERR -
other loans, non-current portion IERBE D B = 1,556,081 1,556,081
527,045 - 2,469,465 2,996,510
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. A EEEEEN REBUE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other loans, derivative financial instruments, convertible
bonds, senior notes and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals,
and bank advances for discounted bills, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing bank and
other loans are disclosed in note 28.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in the market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and variable rate debts. At 31 December 2016, approximately 60.5%
(2015: 60.3%) of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other loans
bore interest at fixed rates.

FEENTEZEMTABREMERTR
HMEXR TEemTA  ATRKRE
% BARBULRSFIREEEY -
ZETRTANTIEZRRR/SANEEN
REEgEs  ARBERREEME
BEERAE  PINEEEETEEE
RN E 5 RIARBKRERE - AR
A Al REMERGOR - BNE SN
BAREMNRE - AR B RERT K
FARRERIRITER

AEBEBMTAMES 2 X ERRAF
KRR - SNERR - FERRMRBE
TRk - EESFERLBAETESEA
REVBCR - BRABERAAT -

T ERR

M EERTT R EME AR M EEHR
AHTFE 28 1 -

AEEmRTEEASETSNRER
BTSN R B SRR -

AEBENBEZRAEE K BFEE
BHEEBEEFNBERAE - RZF—R
FH+-A=+—8 ' *EBEFERT
REAERHK60.5% (ZF—RH4F -
60.3% ) IR EIEF KA ©
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. A EEEEEN REBUE

AND POLICIES (Continued) &)
Interest rate risk (Continued) FlZ=E b (5)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRETEMBEMESRFTEBER
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, T AEBEBRBADERN (BT EERL
of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate FE)NFIREAIEEBHRE -
loans).
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in

basis points profit before tax

& i enpaedl
s, (R) i, (L)
RMB’000
ARBEFTT
2016 —E—REF
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (3,604)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 3,604
US dollar ETT 100 (7,924)
US dollar ETT (100) 7,924
2015 —T—hF
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (2,816)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 2,816
US dollar E 100 (7,447)

US dollar ETT (100) 7,447
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. m%rw‘%ﬂammﬁ

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s principal businesses are located in Mainland China and
most of the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for those of the
overseas subsidiaries which functional currencies are currencies other
than RMB and certain items of cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in HK$, US$ and other currencies.

If RMB weakens/strengthens against HK$ as a reasonable possible
change of 5%, the profit before tax of the Group will increase/decrease
by approximately RMB8,468,000, due to changes in fair values of
monetary assets and liabilities. The Group does not consider that it
has any significant exposure to the risk of fluctuation in the exchange
rate between US$ and RMB as a reasonable possible change of 5%
in RMB against US$ would have no significant financial impact on the
Group’s profit.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade and other receivables, and other financial assets represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
held in major financial institutions located in Mainland China, which
management believes are of high credit quality.

B)
e LR

REB T BEBRNPEARE - KEfo
RHUAREHET - KEBAIDEE
REBBAARKEHE - HRINHEAF
W EB Y IFARBRETRE LA
EFEMAET  ETREMEEF
R

WAREH B TIR e REEHNE
FHE - BIZRE BRI AT R E &
BERBEHATEESNEM ROL
AR#8,468,0007T - B AR HZE
TTHERNAIREA B E 5% TS H A
SERFIEKEAMBTE  WAEE
RAEIWEEATE TR AR 2 HHEE
BEMEREMERRER

SEEbE

ReRREFEY HEHRFER E5K
HAth MR IE LA R Bt & R & E R AR E
BEREASEMATEHEREEERNY
BEeEERR - Zligliﬁﬁ;v%@@hi&
ReSEYVHRERERRAEREER
EMFRBERERE S RMERE -
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. A EEEEEN REBUE

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties
and its associates. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 8.29% and 26.37% (2015: 4.32% and 28.24%) of the
Group’s trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers, respectively. All of these customers
have good credit quality by taking into account of their credit history,
and a long-term business relationship has been established by both
parties. The Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and monitoring procedures to ensure that there will be
follow-up action to recover overdue debts.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the settlement from customers and the payment to vendors.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows:

&)
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RENE 2 EE
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. A3 EEEE B KRB

AND POLICIES (Continued) &)
Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE RS (5)
3toless
Less than than 12 1to5 Beyond
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
=EDLR
nEkE LR=EA +={@AH —ERFE AFUELE sast

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETET

2016 —E—-RE
Convertible bonds * AR E A - 18,353 4,936 22,910 1,016,400 - 1,062,599
Senior notes BREE 11,670 1,828 614,770 225,456 - 853,724
Interest-bearing M BERIT R

bank and other loans ~ E M EFKR 43,790 581,144 597,972 1,338,113 625,931 3,186,950
Trade and bills payables JE{HE 5 78 145,211 366,624 834,117 - - 1,345,952

MERSEE

Other payables HAvpEfRIE

and accruals BT A 202,734 - - - - 202,734

421,758 954,532 2,069,769 2,579,969 625,931 6,651,959

2015 —E-A%F
Convertible bonds * Al AR fE A 46,500 4,968 41,659 1,051,027 = 1,144,154
Senior notes BEEE 44,100 6,099 53,568 620,932 = 724,699
Interest-bearing M BERIT R

bank and other loans ~ EALE X 49,343 530,981 544,330 1,369,077 456,095 2,949,826
Trade and bills payables &1 & 5 78 448972 281,000 173,531 = = 903,503

P ANES

Other payables E b eI 5RIE

and accruals M ER A 125,161 = L = = 125,161

714,076 823,048 813,088 3,041,036 456,095 5,847,343

“ Conversion rights of the convertible bonds are not included in the table % AR E SR E R E EA A ER

above as they will be settled through issuance of own shares. RASEEEBETEERNMES -
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. A EEEEEN REBUE

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The Group’s objectives of its capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by
pricing services and products commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprises trade and
bills payables, bank advances for discounted bills, interest-bearing
bank and other loans, other payables and accruals, senior notes and
tax payable, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.
Capital includes the liability component of convertible bonds and equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted
by the Group include, but are not limited to, reviewing future cash
flow requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if
necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of capital to
support its business. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

&)
BEXER

REBNEAEEBBRREREAEER
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FEN FIA R ERT IR - BARBREN
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R BARBEARRERAESD A
NRIER ARG o

AERBE RIS RFERL T ERED
BAKE - ATRFE RS - AERERE
MEBRRMEIBETRNEARRRE
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44, B EPEETE BB R EBUR

AND POLICIES (Continued) &)
Capital management (Continued) BEXEHE(5)
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Trade and bills payables FETE 5B B RIE 1,345,952 903,503
Bank advances for discounted bills  BAIREIR 7 $RITE 144,949 251,699
Interest-bearing bank and other loans [t /2817 M E M E K 2,918,270 2,582,683
Other payables and accruals Eofh FE S 5B N AT OB 510,622 331,289
Senior notes BERRE 771,003 746,692
Tax payable FETERIS T 21,939 12,747
Less: cash and cash equivalents B REeRIReEEY (680,205) (1,265,303)
Less: pledged deposits B IR (383,231) (376,055)
Net debt (A) FETS (A) 4,649,299 3,187,255
Convertible bonds, the AMRES - BESD
liability component 703,989 634,017
Equity attributable to owners of RAEIEA AELERS
the Company 4,141,822 3,424,622
Adjusted capital AR AR 4,845,811 4,058,639
Capital and net debt (B) BARRRE (B) 9,495,110 7,245,894

Gearing ratio (A/B) TEIR L (A/B) 49% 44%
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45.

46.

47.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 15 February 2017, the Company has entered into a placing
agreement in connection with the issue and placing of the 7.95%
senior notes with an aggregate principal amount of US$260,000,000
which will mature in February 2019 (the “2019 Senior Notes”). The
2019 Senior Notes will only be offered outside the United States in
compliance with Regulation S under the United States Securities Act
of 1933, as amended. None of the 2019 Senior Notes will be offered
to the public in Hong Kong and none of the 2019 Senior Notes will be
placed to any connected persons of the Company.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with
current year’s presentation.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

45.

46.

47.

HEHHREIR

RZE—tF-A+HAB » ARAFIZ
REHZE - NABREITREEASLE
£8260,000,000E T =T —hLhFE =/ %
HFB7.95% MELEER( ZT—NF
BEER]) —E-NFELEZEHE
BR-N==FEFEHZE T SHEOI(KL
BRI REBIRINEE - —T—NFR
EZEERTSRAEERRALERE - B
ZE-NFEARBETERAARE
BALTRE -

AR

ETURESBRCERIE  UNAAF
EZ25 -

KATWIMABIRRR

REEHR - ARARDTNHBHRRE
BRI

2016 2015
—B—RE —ZET—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BERERE 21,602 21,028
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ ENGIE e 3,287,135 2,919,293
Available-for-sale investments AIEHERE 35,784 33,515
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 3,344,521 2,973,836
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  47. AL SRR FE (8)

COMPANY (Continued)

2016 2015
—E—-REF —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepayments, deposits and R - AT
other receivables I E A fE M R TE - 1,256
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTA 22,961 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkIREZEEY 72,308 76,563
Total current assets MENEERE 95,269 77,819
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE
Other payables and accruals Eo A FE{S 5B M AT R 63,419 45,423
Interest-bearing bank loans MEIRITER 364,259 61,095
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR PN E R 10,588 24,370
Senior notes BAEEE 554,211
Total current liabilities mEN A ERE 992,477 130,888
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEETFE (897,208) (53,069)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEERREEE
LIABILITIES 2,447,313 2,920,767

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Convertible bonds Al E S 719,216 697,569
Interest-bearing bank loans M EERITE R 744,694 928,625
Senior notes {Ef‘ﬁmﬁf 216,792 746,692
Total non-current liabilities IEmB B IERE 1,680,702 2,372,886
Net assets BEFE 766,611 547,881
EQUITY T
Issued capital BB TR A 55,785 46,443
Reserves (note) et (P EE) 710,826 501,438
Total equity B RE 766,611 547,881
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

—NEFR PR ARG RITER AR AT

47. KATIMBIABRRR (B)

Note: MisE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RATNRERENT -
Available-
for-sale
Share  investment Share Exchange
premium  revaluation  Contributed option  fluctuation Accumulated
account reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total
o
i) HERSE FERRE 5:47)
fER EftfiE  GABE fiktE  kERE  RitBiE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETH ARETT ARETT AR®TR
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF 641,869 - 10,475 24,847 (35,302) (148,392) 493,497
—A—H
Profit for the year REFHT - - - - - 16,342 16,342
Change in fair value of A HHERER
available-for-sale ATERE) -
investments, net of tax ~ HERFIE - (5,228) - - - - (5,228)
Other comprehensive  Ef2EME
income - - - - 38,347 - 38,347
Total comprehensive AEERH
Income for the year leatekd] - (5,228) - = 38,347 16,342 49 461
Repurchase of shares BRI (4,980) - - - - - (4,980)
Exercise of share options 178 Rk 4 2,468 - - = = = 2,468
Transfer to share option ~ 17{E AR IEES
reserve upon the B ERRE
exercise of e 1,207 d - (1,207) = L -
share options
Transfer to contributed ~ EBEHA
surplus otk (60,000) - 60,000 — A bk ot
Equity-settled share RAGEE
option arrangements  BERRAELHE e = o 10,415 - L 10,415
2014 final dividend BEER=S—NEF
declared RERRE - - (49,423) - - 4 (49,423)
At31 December 2015 WZZE—1F 580,564 (5,228) 21,052 34,055 3,045 (132,050) 501,438
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  47. AL SRR FE (8)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: (Continued) Mg (48)
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: (Continued) AATRERENT « (8)
Available-
for-sale
Share  investment Share Exchange
premium  revaluation  Contributed option  fluctuation Accumulated
account reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total
o
Kty  HERE FalRiE EX
mER  EEGE GAER fiF  HEBRME  RiAEE @t

RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBO0O  RMBO0O
ARETT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR

At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF 580,564 (5,228) 21,052 34,055 3,045 (132,050) 501,438
—A—H
Profit for the year AEREH - - - - - (124921)  (124,921)
Other comprehensive b2 EME
income - - - - 43,751 - 43,751

Total comprehensive ~ AEEZEMAE

Income for the year zaz - - - - 43,751 (124,921) (81,170)
Issue of shares BIIRG 302,071 - - - - - 302,071
Share issue expenses  Z1TRRINBIT (5,817) - - - - - (5,317)
Equity-settled share BABE

option arrangements  BERRMEZHE - - - 11,773 - - 11,773
2015 final dividend BEER=Z—HF

declared KA - - (17,469) - - - (17,469)
At 31 December 2016  WZZE—XF 876,818 (5,228) 3,583 45,828 46,796 (256,971) 710,826

+-A=1+—H
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted ERERELRBRERDEHKRITENE
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for REREH A T(E - E— il BB EHREK
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will M2 AR A ARSI NNE

either be transferred to the share premium account when the related options are

TR » ZARRHR R RETER
HEERMGER - SHAEERERE
MO - BB EREEN o

exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the related options expire
or be forfeited.

48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 48. #it ERAFSHR TR

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of BB ER T +FE=A—+HhEE
direct 29 March 2017. e
S ek EEOIERITETIE -
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